
Planning and Zoning Commission

City of Grand Prairie

Meeting Agenda - Final

City Hall

300 W. Main Street 

Grand Prairie, Texas

Video Conference5:30 PMMonday, December 14, 2020

Due to the ongoing the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, this meeting of the Planning and 

Zoning Commission shall be held in-person in the Council Chamber at Grand Prairie 

City Hall, as well as by videoconference.  Members of the Commission and the public may 

elect to participate by attending the meeting in-person, or remotely via videoconference.  

Members of the public may participate in the meeting remotely via broadcast by webinar 

or telephone through the following URL location:

You are invited to a Zoom webinar.

When: Dec 14, 2020 05:30 PM Central Time (US and Canada)

Topic: City of Grand Prairie - Planning & Zoning Meeting

Please click the link below to join the webinar:

https://gptx.zoom.us/j/93453006740?pwd=Q1V1VFJqSksrVENEZDRYWjJsbTRoUT09

Passcode: gdARBp467f

Or iPhone one-tap : 

    US: +13462487799,,93453006740#,,,,,,0#,,6608281050#  or 

+14086380968,,93453006740#,,,,,,0#,,6608281050#

Or Telephone:

    Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location):

        US: +1 346 248 7799  or +1 408 638 0968  or +1 669 900 6833  or +1 253 215 8782  or 

+1 312 626 6799  or +1 646 876 9923  or +1 301 715 8592

Webinar ID: 934 5300 6740

Passcode: 6608281050

    International numbers available: https://gptx.zoom.us/u/abvZxeBAkt

All meeting participants attending remotely will be automatically muted until it is their 

turn to speak.  To be recognized to speak, use the “raise hand” feature in the Zoom meeting 

platform.  Those joining the meeting by phone may press *9 to raise your hand.  After 

speaking, please remute your phone by pressing *6. 

Any speaker wishing to visually display documents in connection with a presentation must 

submit them to sware@gptx.org and msespinoza@gptx.org in PDF format no later than 3 

o’clock p.m. on Monday, December 14th.

Page 1 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 12/10/2020



December 14, 2020Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

Call to Order - Commissioner Briefing 

It is the intent of the Planning and Zoning Commission to be briefed by staff, and that all 

items on the agenda shall be available or open for discussion during the Briefing Session.  

The Planning and Zoning Commission may ask applicants and other interested parties for 

information or presentations.  All interested parties are invited to attend.  Briefings are 

taped.

*Agenda Review

*Boards and Commissions Training

                                                 __________________________________

                                                                    Public Hearing                                                             

                                                           6:30 p.m. Video Conference

                                                 __________________________________

                                                  Chairperson Shawn Connor Presiding

Invocation

Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flags and to the Texas Flag 

Citizen Comments -  Citizens may speak during Citizen Comments for up to five minutes 

on any item not the agenda by completing and submitting a speaker card.

Public Hearing Consent Agenda

Items listed on the Public Hearing Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be 

approved by one motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of the Public 

Hearing Consent Agenda items unless requested.  If discussion is desired on an item, it will be 

considered separately.  The Commission may ask questions of those present on an item from 

the Public Hearing Consent Agenda.

1 20-10675 Approval of Minutes of the November 23, 2020 P&Z meeting. 

PZ Draft Minutes 11-23-2020.pdfAttachments:

Page 2 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 12/10/2020



December 14, 2020Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

2 20-10677 P201202 - Preliminary Plat - Prairie Modern Addition (City Council District 1).  A 

Preliminary Plat for one multi-family and one commercial lot totaling 7.608 acres.  

Legally described as Tract 6, Elizabeth Gray Survey, Abstract No. 517, Page 215, 

and part of Lot 2, Block 1, Curtiss-Wright Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas 

County, Texas, and zoned PD-388. Generally located east of S Highway 161 and 

north of Dickey Road and within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay

Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Preliminary Plat.pdf

Attachments:

3 20-10678 P201203 - Final Plat - Prairie Modern Addition (City Council District 1).  A Final 

Plat for one multi-family and one commercial lot totaling approximately 7.608 acres.  

Legally described as Tract 6, Elizabeth Gray Survey, Abstract No. 517, Page 215, 

and part of Lot 2, Block 1, Curtiss-Wright Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas 

County, Texas, and zoned PD-388. Generally located east of S Highway 161 and 

north of Dickey Road and within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay.

Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Final Plat.pdf

Attachments:

Public Hearing Postponement, Recess, and Continuations

In accordance with Section 1.11.5.7 of the Unified Development Code (UDC) a public hearing 

for which notice has been given may be postponed by announcing the postponement at or 

after the time and place the hearing is scheduled to begin.  A public hearing may be recessed 

and continued any time after the hearing has commenced. Section 1.11.5.7.C of the UDC 

states if a postponement or continuance of a public hearing is to a specific date and time no 

later than 60 days from the first or most recent hearing, the announcement of the 

postponement of continuance at the public hearing in which the application has been 

postponed or continued by the Planning and Zoning Commission shall be sufficient notice and 

no additional notice is required. However, the Planning and Zoning Commission may direct 

staff to re-notify postponed or continued applications for which public hearings have not yet 

commenced.

4 20-10683 Z201201 - Zoning Change - Zoning Change at 1620 Vicky Ln. (City Council District 

6).  A request to change the base zoning from Single Family-One Residential District 

(SF-1) to Commercial District (C) to allow for future commercial development at this 

location. Located at 1620 Vicky Lane, legally described as 1.49 acres out of Tract 

36.1, W. H. Beeman Survey, Abstract 126, Page 11, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas 

County, Texas, zoned Single-Family One Residential District. This property is 

generally located south of Interstate 20 and west of Lake Ridge Parkway, within the 

Interstate 20 Corridor Overlay District. 

Page 3 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 12/10/2020



December 14, 2020Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

Items for Individual Consideration

5 20-10679 S201201 - Site Plan - Warehouse at 2700 Avenue K East (City Council District 1).  

Site Plan for a 198K SF industrial warehouse building on one lot on 26.46 acres.  

Tract 4 of M. K. Selvidge Survey, Abstract No. 1423 and Lot 1, Block 6, Safety 

Net Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial 

(LI), generally located northwest of Avenue K and future extension of N. Great 

Southwest Parkway Road, and specifically addressed at 2700 E. Avenue K.

Exhibit A S201201 Location Map

Exhibit B S201201- 2700 Avenue K - Site Plan

Exhibit C S201201- Landscape Plan - 2700 Avanue K

Exhibit D S201201 Tree Preservation Plan

Exhibit E S201201 - Exlevation Plan

Attachments:

6 20-10680 S201202 - Site Plan - Prairie Modern Apartments (City Council District 1). Site Plan 

for Prairie Modern Apartments, which includes 272 multi-family units in one building 

with a five-story parking garage on 5.355 acres. Legally described as Tract 6, 

Elizabeth Gray Survey, Abstract No. 517, Page 215, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas 

County, Texas, and zoned PD-388. Generally located east of State Highway 161 and 

north of Dickey Road and within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District.

Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Site Plan.pdf

Exhibit C - Landscape Plans.pdf

Exhibit D - Building Elevations.pdf

Exhibit E - Appendix W Checklist.pdf

Attachments:

Public Hearing

Page 4 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 12/10/2020



December 14, 2020Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

Members of the public may address the Commission on items listed on the agenda under 

Public Hearing Items.  Persons wishing to address the Commission must first complete a 

request to speak card.  A person may also use the request to speak card to indicate his or her 

support or opposition to a case without speaking.  Cards may be picked up at the desk by the 

entrance to the City Council Chambers and may be deposited at the desk or given to a staff 

member.  Speaking time is generally limited to five minutes per speaker.  Per the by-laws of 

the Planning and Zoning Commission, the applicant and those favoring the request shall have 

a maximum of 30 minutes, including rebuttal, to present their arguments for the request.  

Those in opposition to a request shall have a maximum of 30 minutes to present their 

arguments against the request. When a large group is present, it is encouraged that 

representatives be appointed to speak for the group so that redundant testimony is minimized.  

Commissioners may have questions of those speaking at the public hearing. The time used to 

answer the Commission's questions will not be deducted from the allotted 30 minutes.  These 

rules may be temporarily suspended, in whole or in part, by a unanimous vote of the 

Commission.

7 20-10681 SU180504C - Specific Use Permit Renewal - 3025 Hardrock Rd (City Council 

District 1).  Renewal of a Specific Use Permit for a Trucking and Storage Terminal 

Facility located at 3025 Hardrock Rd.  Lot 3, Block A, Matt M. Lavail Addition, 

City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-39, within the SH-161 

Corridor Overlay District, and generally located north of W Oakdale Rd and east of 

Hardrock Rd.

Exhibit A -Location Map update

Exhibit B 3025a Hardrock - SUP Parking Exhibit

Exhibit C SU180504B Operational Plan 2020

Exhibit D Reason of Additional Parking

Attachments:

8 20-10682 SU191101A - Specific Use Permit Renewal - Kia Auto Sales (City Council District 

5).  Renew a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Internet Auto Sales and amend the SUP 

to add Major Auto Repair.  Lot 446R of Burbank Gardens Unit 2, zoned 

Commercial (C), within the Central Business District No. 4, and addressed as 3118 

E Main St.

Exhibit A SU191101A Location Map

Exhibit B SU191101A Renewal Site Plan 3118 E. Main St Kia Auto

Exhibit C SU191101A New Operational Plan

Attachments:

Adjournment

Page 5 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 12/10/2020



December 14, 2020Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

In accordance with Chapter 551, Subchapter C of the Government Code, V.T.C.A., the 

Planning and Zoning Commission agenda was prepared and posted on 12/10/2020.

Monica Espinoza

Planning Secretary 

The City Hall is wheelchair accessible.  If you plan to attend this public meeting and you 

have a disability that requires special arrangements, please call 972-237-8255 at least 24 

hours in advance. Reasonable accommodations will be made to assist your needs.

LEGISLATIVE PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

It is the custom and tradition of the members of the Planning and Zoning Commission to 

have an invocation followed by recitals of the United States of America and State of Texas 

pledges of allegiance prior to the beginning of its meetings.  The invocation and pledges 

are directed to and offered solely for the benefit of the members of Commission, though 

members of the audience are welcome to participate.  However, members of the audience 

are not required to participate.  The decision to participate is strictly a matter of personal 

choice and will have no bearing on any matter considered or decision made by the 

Commission during the meeting.

Page 6 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 12/10/2020



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10675 Name: Approval of Minutes of the November 23, 2020 P&Z
meeting.

Status:Type: Agenda Item Public Hearing Consent Agenda

File created: In control:12/7/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:12/14/2020

Title: Approval of Minutes of the November 23, 2020 P&Z meeting.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: PZ Draft Minutes 11-23-2020.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza, Executive Assistant

Title
Approval of Minutes of the November 23, 2020 P&Z meeting.

Presenter
Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 12/10/2020Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™



1 
 

 
 

 
 

REGULAR PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
MEETING MINUTES 
 NOVEMBER 23, 2020 

 
COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Chairperson Shawn Connor, Vice-Chairperson Bill Moser, 
Secretary Cheryl Smith, and Commissioners, Josh Spare, Julia Perez, Max Coleman, Eric Hedin, 
John Fedorko. 
     
COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: Warren Landrum 
 
CITY STAFF PRESENT: Rashad Jackson, Planning and Development Director, Savannah Ware, 
Chief City Planner, Charles Lee, Senior Planner, Jonathan Tooley, Planner, Mark Dempsey, 
Deputy City Attorney, Tiffany Bull, Assistant City Attorney, Brett Huntsman, Transportation 
Planner, Monica Espinoza, Executive Assistant. 
  
Chairperson Shawn Connor called the meeting to order by Video Conference at 6:42 p.m. and 
Commissioner Moser gave the invocation, and Chairperson Connor led the pledge of allegiance to 
the US Flag, and the Texas Flag. 
 
Citizen Comments: None  
 
AGENDA ITEM: #1 - APPROVAL OF MINUTES: To approve the minutes of the Planning and 
Zoning Commission meeting of November 9, 2020.  
  

CONSENT PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA Item #2- P201105 - Final Plat - Elevation One Six 
One (City Council District 2).  Final Plat for a 322-unit (8 buildings) multifamily development 
on one lot on 14.449 acres. Elevation Addition, Block 1, Lot 1, 14.449 acres situated in the 
Friedrich Dohme Survey, Abstract No. 395 and the Stephen B. McCommas Survey, Abstract No. 
888, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-383, within both the SH-161 & I-20 
Corridor Overlay Districts, generally located south of Forum Drive, approximately 210' east of 
SH 161 and west of Robinson Road., specifically addressed as 3800 Robinson Road. 
 
 
 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, NOVEMBER 23, 2020 
 

2 
 

 
 

Item #3 – P201106A - Amending Plat - Prairie Ridge Phase 2C (City Council District).  An 
Amending plat for Prairie Ridge Phas 2C. The Final Plat is for 99 lots and 10 non-residential lots 
on 31.351 acres.  J. Stewart Survey, Abstract No. 961, Grand Prairie ETJ, Ellis County, Texas, 
located south of Prairie Ridge Blvd. (proposed) and west of Soap Creek, Midlothian, Texas. 
 
 

Item #4- P201107 - Final Plat - I30 MacArthur Business Center Addition, Lots 1 and 2, Block 2 
(City Council District 5).  Final Plat for Lots 1-2, Block 2, I-30/MacArthur Business Center 
Addition, creating two industrial lots on 5.982 acres.  Tract 2, 5.982 acres situated in the Joseph 
Graham Survey, Abstract No. 506, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-41, 
within the IH-30 Corridor Overlay District, and generally located south of eastbound I-30 
Service Road between Bagdad Road and Burbank Way, north of Gifford Street. 
 
Item #5- RP201101 – Replat – EpicCentral Phase III (City Council District 2).  Replat of Lots 2-3, 
Block 2, Lots 1-2, Block 3, and Lot 1, Block 4 of Central Park Addition, creating three lots, 
dedicating right-of-way and easements, and partially abandoning easements.  Lots 2-3, Block 2, 
Lots 1-2, Block 3, and Lot 1, Block 4 of Central Park Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas 
County, Texas, zoned PD-390, within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, and generally located 
south of Arkansas Lane, north of Warrior Trail, and west of SH-161. 
 
 
  
Vice Chairperson Moser moved to approve the minutes, cases P201105, P201106A, P201107 and 
RP201101. 
 
 
Motion: Moser     
Second:  Smith                                
Ayes: Moser, Smith, Spare, Hedin, Coleman, Perez, Fedorko, Connor 
Nays:  none 
Approved: 8-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
 

ITEM FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDREATION: Item # 6- S201102 - Site Plan – Wolff Multi-
Family Phase 2 (City Council District 2). Planner Jonathan Ware presented the case report and 
gave a Power Point presentation for a Site Plan for a multi-family development of 326 units and 
eight buildings on 13.536 acres.  Located at 2105 South Forum Drive, legally described as Lot 1, 
Block A, Forum at Sara Jane Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, NOVEMBER 23, 2020 
 

3 
 

 
 

Planned Development-377 District. This property is generally located south of Forum Drive and 
West of Sara Jane Parkway, within the HWY 161 Corridor Overlay District. 
 

Mr. Tooley stated the applicant intends to construct a multi-family development of 326 units and 
eight buildings on 13.536 acres.  Any multi-family development or development in a planned 
development district or overlay district requires City Council approval of a Site Plan.  
Development at this location requires site plan approval by City Council because the property is 
for multi-family use, zoned PD-377, and within the SH-161 and I-20 Corridor Overlay Districts. 
The 326-unit multi-family development will be accessible from the main access point on South Forum 
Drive with an additional exit only drive approximately 500 feet west of the main entry.  There is a 
third point of access, between phases 1 & 2, which is labeled for emergency use only. The Site Plan 
depicts six four-story residential buildings, internal green spaces, a one-story clubhouse, maintenance 
building, and a dog park.  Other amenities include a pool, fitness center, and entertainment areas.  

The applicant is requesting the following variances: 

1. Exception from carport standards: Appendix W requires that covered parking have roof 
supports encased in masonry and roofing material similar to the residential buildings. The 
applicant is providing no masonry and a metal roof.  

2. No pedestrian connection with Phase 1:  PD-377 requires at least one concrete pedestrian 
path connection point shall be provided between each phase. The applicant is providing no 
connections.  

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval.  

 

Chairperson Connor asked if they are wanting to be looked as 2 separate units but only judged as 
one, why look or treat them separately. Mr. Tooley stated Phase one was approved with the same 
conditions before, but they are two apartment complexes. Mr. Connor asked if the applicant is here 
to speak on it. Mr. Tooley stated yes. 

McKenzie Darr, 1305 Dexter Ave North Seattle WA 98109, stepped forward and represented the 
case, she stated this is phase two of a two phase planned development. Phase one is currently under 
construction and excited to have this opportunity with phase two to expand their relationship with 
the City of Grand Prairie. Phase one and phase two will be two separately marketed projects 
separately meeting the UDC requirements for parking, amenities, landscaping etc. Phase one is 
called Copeland and has the same building form but different color and separate use of form. Phase 
two will have a separate name and have not yet engaged their asset management and marketing 
team because it is the beginning stage of this project. They do find when you have a masonry block 
around the carport support beam it can make it harder for someone to park a truck or a SUV directly 
adjacent to that support post, which would either require they potentially have narrower parking 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, NOVEMBER 23, 2020 
 

4 
 

 
 

stalls or rearrange the site plan in a way that causes them to lose some parking stalls. They feel 
like maintaining that design parking for residents is important to do.  

Mr. Connor asked why not widen the parking spaces to eliminate the issue of stone columns. Ms. 
Darr stated currently they are meeting the parking spaces city requirements and if they were to 
encroach the column of the carport to widen the parking spaces, they would either need to remove 
some landscaping or the total parking count to provide that additional space but the carport post 
as they are without the masonry enclosure are slightly narrower so you don’t run into the same 
issues because they can sit along that paint strip. Mr. Connor stated he has several concerns that 
once phase one and phase two are completed they will have 600+ total units. Ms. Darr stated that 
is correct, phase once has 336 units and phase two has 326 units. Mr. Connor stated he wants to 
understand why they want to separate the two units. Ms. Darr stated the two projects have the same 
general building form as the same roofline and accent colors, but they have different stones. At the 
end they are two visual distinct projects that have continuity. 

Commissioner Smith asked if they have similar projects anywhere else. Ms. Darr stated yes in 
Issaquah, Washington called Revel Issaquah.    

Commissioner Spare asked timeline on when each phase would be sold. Ms. Darr stated it all 
depends on the market conditions but usually when they are fully running and occupied. Mr. Spare 
asked by separating the two units is it easier to sell. Ms. Darr stated yes, to preserve their options.  

Vice Chairperson Moser asked if there will be connecting parking connection between the two 
units. Ms. Darr stated it will be only for emergency situations where the fire department would 
need to access.  

Commissioner Connor asked will the two units be gated or have security at all time. Ms. Darr 
stated yes, they would be gated, and it would have a video/intercom entrance at the gate to allow 
guest in at all hours.  

 
There being no further discussion on the case Commissioner Smith moved to close the public 
hearing and approve case S201102 per staff recommendations.   
 
Discussion: 
 
Vice Chairperson Moser offered an amendment to require them to supply masonry supports for 
the carports and do not want them to reduce parking at all or impact their landscaping.  
 
The action and vote recorded as follows:   
 
Motion:  Smith  
Second:  Moser                           
Ayes:  Smith, Moser, Spare, Connor, Fedorko, Perez, Hedin 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, NOVEMBER 23, 2020 
 

5 
 

 
 

Nays:  Coleman 
Approved: 7-1 
Motion:  carried.  
 
 

Item # 7- S201103 - Site Plan - Shady Grove Industrial (City Council District 1). Senior Planner 
Charles Lee presented the case report and gave a Power Point presentation for a Site Plan for a 
209K SF industrial warehouse building on one lot on 12.130 acres.  Being 12.130 acres (two 
tracts) out of the John Spoon Survey, Abstract 1326, PG 150, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas 
County, Texas, generally located northeast of SH 161 Service Road and W. Shady Grove Road, 
specifically addressed at 804 W. Shady Grove Road.  Zoned LI Light Industrial and within the 
161 Corridor Overlay. 
 
Mr. Lee stated the applicant intends to construct a 209,424 sf. office/warehouse building on 12.13 
acres.  The proposed site consists of two undeveloped tracts that would be subsequently platted into 
one property. Site Plan approval by City Council is required for any project involving industrial uses. 
The purpose of site plan approval is to ensure that development meets requirements in the Unified 
Development Code (UDC), provides adequate circulation, and uses quality site planning 
techniques.  The UDC identifies criteria for evaluating proposed developments.  Criteria include 
density and dimensional standards, landscaping and screening requirements, and architectural 
design for special districts. UDC’s Appendix X, Industrial Development Standards addresses 
potential adverse environmental, visual, and truck traffic associated with large warehouses, outside 
storage, distribution-logistical related developments exceeding five acres in size. The proposal 
includes one side-loaded office/warehouse-building.  Tractor/trailer parking and storage is located 
on the eastern portion of the site facing truck court.  The overhead truck docks are located on the 
east side of the building and faces east.  The building is speculative and will be developed without 
specific tenants. The site will be accessible from a commercial drive off W. Shady Grove Road 
with a 24’ fire lane and access easement looping around the facility.  The 24’ fire lane and access 
drive shall serve 42 east orientated overhead dock doors along with 49 tractor trailer parking 
spaces. No variances requested. 

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval. 
 

Tyler Bushong stepped forward and represented the case.  
 
 
There being no further discussion on the case Commissioner Moser moved to close the public 
hearing and approve case S201103 per staff recommendations.   
 
The action and vote recorded as follows:   



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, NOVEMBER 23, 2020 
 

6 
 

 
 

 
Motion: Moser    
Second:  Coleman                           
Ayes: Smith, Moser, Spare, Connor, Fedorko, Perez, Hedin, Coleman 
Nays:  none 
Approved: 8-0 
Motion:  carried 
 
 
 
Item # 8- S201104 - Site Plan - Springs at Grand Prairie (City Council District 2). Senior 
Planner Charles Lee presented the case report and gave a Power Point presentation for a Site 
Plan for a multi-family development of 276 units in twelve buildings on 18.97 acres.  Being 
18.975 acres situated in the Charles D. Ball Survey, Abstract No. 1699 (Tract 2-15.5 acres) and 
the William H. Beeman Survey, Abstract No. 126 ( Portions of Tracts 1&2-3.4 acres), City of 
Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-288, within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay 
District, and generally located on the southwest of S. Forum Drive at Sarah Jane Parkway. 
 
Mr. Lee stated the applicant intends to construct a multi-family development on 18.97 acres.   
Development at this location requires City Council approval of a Site Plan because the property is 
intended for multi-family use. The purpose of site plan approval is to ensure that development meets 
requirements in the Unified Development Code (UDC), provides adequate circulation, and uses 
quality site planning techniques.  The UDC identifies criteria for evaluating proposed 
developments.  Criteria include density and dimensional standards, landscaping and screening 
requirements, and architectural design for special districts.  In addition to the UDC, this site shall 
comply with recently adopted Planned Development-405 and accommodating Concept Plan 
(Z200903/CP200901). The applicant intends to develop 18.97 acres for multi-family use.  The Site 
Plan includes 276 multi-family units in 12 residential buildings and one leasing/clubhouse building.  
The property includes an existing pond, adjacent to pergola and outdoor grilling area.   Other 
amenities include two pet parks and a pool adjacent to the clubhouse. Primary access to the site is 
being provided by a fully divided 52 ft.-access drive connecting to Sarah Jane Parkway.  A proposed 
secondary, emergency access point is located approximately 220’ to the south of primary access drive. 

VARIANCES: 

1. The applicant is requesting a variance to UDC Article 8, Landscape and Screening 
Subsection 8.10.2 requiring the construction of a ‘Type 2’ perimeter decorative fence of wrought 
iron construction with masonry columns a maximum 24 feet on center. 
 
The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval of the proposal with the 
following conditions: 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, NOVEMBER 23, 2020 
 

7 
 

 
 

1. The perimeter fence shall include masonry columns; and 

2. The applicant shall provide the required shrubs.  Prior to the City Council meeting, the 
applicant shall revise the landscape plan to include the shrubs and submit the revised plan 
to staff. 

 
Commissioner Smith asked doesn’t the 2018 Comprehensive Plan limit a number of family units 
going up. Mr. Lee stated some of these planned developments have vested multifamily rights along 
with commercial rights in these older PD’s. Ms. Smith stated she has concern of having too many 
apartments in a concentrated area. Planning Director, Rashad Jackson stated City Council and the 
city manager’s office are aware of units coming in. They have been informed any new proposals 
to rezone or rezone specifically for commercial to multi family is a no go. They are welcomed to 
submit or propose what they like but moving forward the vested ones they will be developed. New 
Comprehensive Plan will address all these concerns.  
 
Commissioner Spare thanked Mr. Jackson for addressing their concerns but went on to say we 
can’t continue to allow the same number of apartments to the south.  Grand Prairie should learn 
from other cities mistakes like Arlington and it could hurt our city in the long run. He believes if 
we are patient better things will come. By adding more apartments, it will cause more traffic and 
lower our taxes and he cannot continue to vote yes on any more apartments because they are wrong 
for Grand Prairie.  
 
Chairperson Connor stated he agrees with Commissioner Spare on putting a halt on multi family 
and asked what they can do to recommend or not deny cases. Mr. Jackson stated once the zoning 
is vested as long as the developer meets the requirements, they have the right to allow use. Moving 
forward we have the right to let them know we are full.  
 
Vice Chairperson Moser stated he wanted to back up Mr. Jackson and Mr. Lee’s statement and let 
the system work the way it’s supposed to.  
 
Commissioner Spare stated since applicant is asking for variances it means they aren’t meeting the 
requirements. Wants to make sure they don’t make the same mistake with the land that is left.  
 
Jason Pyka, Manhard Consulting, 12225 Greenville Ave Ste 1000 Dallas TX 75243, stepped 
forward and represented the case. 
 
Chairperson Connor asked why they are requesting a variance on the columns but not for the rod 
iron. Mr. Pyka stated because the soil in Texas has a lot of movement. This is a new prototype they 
are going with that allows landscape around it and long-term maintenance seems to be better 
without it.  



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, NOVEMBER 23, 2020 
 

8 
 

 
 

Fredrick Hood, W134N8675 Executive Pkwy Menominee Falls, WI 53051, stepped forward and 
represented the case, he stated he wanted to provide additional information on the variance for the 
fence.  They decided to follow the UDC on the height for the entire perimeter. They have used this 
fence across 91 communities and just want it to look good.  
 
Commissioner Moser asked if it would get approved without the variance, can he assume he would 
be willing to put the masonry columns. Mr. Hood asked that they limit the masonry columns to 
the frontage along Sara Jane Pkwy and listed his reasons. Mr. Moser stated seems reasonable. 
 
Commissioner Smith stated she agrees with Commissioner Moser. 
 
Mr. Hood asked could they also look at going from 30-foot centers to 50-foot centers.  
 
Commissioner Coleman stated he doesn’t agree with changing the distance because if they can 
agree to masonry towards, they front they can tighten it up for ascetics purposes.   
 
There being no further discussion on the case Commissioner Spare moved to close the public 
hearing and approve case S201104 per staff recommendations and no modifications.   
 
Commissioner Moser stated he doesn’t agree with Commissioner Spare motion we shouldn’t 
require them to put masonry columns on a flood plain, but he won’t vote against it.  
 
The action and vote recorded as follows:   
 
Motion:  Spare 
Second: Smith                            
Ayes: Spare, Smith, Coleman, Connor, Perez, Moser Fedorko   
Nays: Hedin  
Approved: 7-1 
Motion:  carried 
 
 
 

Item # 9- S201105 - Site Plan - Hamilton Matthew Business Center (City Council District 6).  
Planner Jonathan Ware presented the case report and gave a Power Point presentation for a Site 
Plan for (2) two Office/Warehouse Distribution Buildings on two lots.  The proposed buildings 
are 52,000 and 31,540 square feet.  Located at 4200 Matthew Road, legally described as 7.0 acre 
tract situated in the Memucan Hunt Survey, Tract 2.2, Abstract No. 1723, Page 570, City of 
Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Planned Development - 30 District. This property is 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, NOVEMBER 23, 2020 
 

9 
 

 
 

generally located south of Bardin Road and West of Matthew Road, within the I-20 Corridor 
Overlay District. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated the applicant intends to construct two office/warehouse buildings on 7 acres. City 
Council must approve a site plan for any project involving industrial uses or that is located within a 
Corridor Overlay District.  Development at this location requires City Council approval of a Site Plan 
because the property is for industrial uses with buildings exceeding 50,000 square feet. The purpose 
of site plan approval is to ensure that development meets requirements in the Unified Development 
Code (UDC), provides adequate circulation, and uses quality site planning techniques.  The UDC 
identifies criteria for evaluating proposed developments.  Criteria include density and dimensional 
standards, landscaping and screening requirements, and architectural design for special districts. 
In addition, UDC’s Appendix X, Industrial Development Standards addresses potential adverse 
environmental, visual, and truck traffic associated with large warehouses, outside storage, 
distribution-logistical related developments exceeding five acres in size. The proposal includes 
two rear-loaded office/warehouse-buildings along Bardin Road.  Building 1 is intended to house 
the applicant’s technology business along with headquarters. Building 2 is speculative and is being 
developed without a tenant in mind.  
  

 Building 1 is 31,450 square feet. 20,000 square feet is intended for warehouse purposes, 
with the remaining balance as office space. The site will be accessible from two drives off 
West Bardin Road and includes a southwest-facing truck dock with 10 overhead doors. 

 Building 2 is 52,000 square feet. 42,000 square feet is intended for warehouse purposes, 
with the remaining balance as office space. The site will be accessible from two drives off 
of West Bardin Road and includes a southwest-facing truck dock with 12 overhead doors. 

 
The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval. 

 

Chairperson Connor asked are they providing less than 30% trees. Mr. Tooley stated only 9% 
would be saved. 
 
 
There being no further discussion on the case Commissioner Moser moved to close the public 
hearing and approve case S201105 per staff recommendations.   
 
The action and vote recorded as follows:   
 
Motion:  Moser 
Second: Coleman                            
Ayes: Spare, Smith, Coleman, Connor, Perez, Moser Fedorko, Hedin  



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, NOVEMBER 23, 2020 
 

10 
 

 
 

Nays: none   
Approved: 8-0 
Motion:  carried 
 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA ITEM # 10- Z201102 - Zoning Change – SF-5 at 1609 Ranch 
Rd (City Council District 6). Planner Jonathan Tooley presented the case report and gave a 
Power Point presentation for a request to change the base zoning from Agriculture District (A) to 
Single-Family Five Residential District (SF-5) to allow for the construction of a single-family 
residence at this location. Located at 1609 Ranch Road, legally described as Tract 63, SH 1B, 
Matthew Road Mobile Home Estates, a .43 acre tract of land situated in the Thomas J. Tone 
Survey, Abstract No. 1460, Page 225, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned 
Agriculture District. This property is generally located south of Camp Wisdom Road and east of 
Matthew Road. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated the applicant is requesting a zoning change of an existing 0.43-acre lot located 
within the Matthew Road Mobile Home Estates from Agriculture (A) District to Single Family-
Five (SF-5) District, which is necessary to allow a site built home to be constructed and occupied 
at this location. The applicant proposes to build an approximately 3324 sq. ft. four-bedroom, four-
bath home with an attached 911 sq. ft. three-car garage and 743 sq. ft. backyard porch for a total 
building footprint of 4,978 sq. ft.  The applicant is seeking a zoning change from Agriculture (A) 
District to Single Family-Five (SF-5) District to allow for the construction and occupancy of a 
detached site-built home. A detached single-family home is permitted in the Agriculture (A) 
District, but the existing lot size (0.43 acres) does not meet the minimum density allowed (0.2 units 
per acre or 1 home per 5 acres) within the Agriculture (A) District.  However, if the property is 
rezoned to Single Family-Five (SF-5) District, the property and home will meet the minimum 
density and dimensional requirements of the Unified Development Code. The maximum density 
allowed in the SF-5 District is 8.7 dwelling units per acre.  A single-family residence requires 
connection to a sewer system, a water source, and adequate access. The applicant has addressed 
these functions as follows: 
 
Sewer System - A site-built house will need to provide a sewer system that meets the requirements 
of the Environmental Services Division. A new septic system will need to be installed that can 
easily handle a larger home on the property.  
 
Water Source - The Matthew Road Mobile Home Estates community provides water for its 
parcels through a private water district.  There are no fire hydrants located within the mobile home 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, NOVEMBER 23, 2020 
 

11 
 

 
 

park and the water system is serviced by one water well drilled in 1972. The water system is not 
monitored by the City, but by the Texas Commission for Environmental Quality (TCEQ).  
 
Adequate Access - The subject property is accessed via Ranch Road, a 60-ft. prescriptive 
easement.  This roadway is maintained, at a very minimal level, by individuals within the 
Matthew Road Mobile Home Estates community.  
 

Although staff does not want to prevent the redevelopment of the area, the Development Review 
Committee (DRC) recommends denial due to the life safety and infrastructure issues noted. 

Should the zoning change be approved, staff recommends the following conditions: 

1. Approval of the use for a new septic system and safe removal of any existing system.  

2. Property platted before the issuance of building permits. 

 
Commissioner Coleman asked when the city takes property in and incorporates it does it have any 
legal obligations to supply water/sewer. Deputy City Attorney Mark Dempsey stated on this case 
everything is privately owned and the city doesn’t have any service on this property, but nothing 
prohibits the city if the owners donates the streets to the city. Mr. Coleman asked then why this 
case must come before our board to approve if it is private. Mr. Dempsey stated the city still has 
zoning authority.  
 
Commissioner Perez asked do residents pay city taxes and if that is the reason for the jurisdiction. 
Mr. Jackson stated the property is within city limits and this was an existing development annex 
many years ago and area has deteriorated to the point where from a life safety point it is the cities 
duty to make certain it is safe to build on the property. His idea is to present this proposal to the 
CIP and they need participation from property owners.  
 
Commissioner Spare asked can an owner put a mobile home on their property. Mr. Jackson stated 
it depends on how long it has been vacant and must meet acre requirements. Mr. Spare stated the 
city is willing to stop an owner to build homes on their own property but would approve apartments 
and doesn’t agree with it. Appreciates Mr. Jackson pushing this issue forward.  
 
Commissioner Moser asked it is a mobile home park and why can’t the city require for the owners 
to fix it up. Mr. Jackson stated it is privately owned and the city took it in that way.  
 
Myria Gonzalez, 302 Sparks St. Grand Prairie TX 75051, stepped forward and represented the 
case, she stated she is aware of the property conditions and she bought the property to build a 
custom home on it. She is fine with the conditions and hopes one day the city will take over it.  
 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, NOVEMBER 23, 2020 
 

12 
 

 
 

Commissioner Fedorko asked he hopes to draft a motion to address these issues and wanted to 
know how to word it for recommendation to Council. Mr. Dempsey stated all they can do is put it 
an item on the agenda for future discussion. Mr. Spare asked can they comment on the cities 
recommendations to fix conditions. Mr. Jackson stated staff will relay concerns and comments to 
council. 
 
 
There being no further discussion on the case Commissioner Smith moved to close the public 
hearing and approve case Z201102 per staff recommendations.   
 
The action and vote recorded as follows:   
 
Motion:  Smith    
Second: Coleman                              
Ayes:  Spare, Smith, Coleman, Connor, Perez, Moser Fedorko, Hedin 
Nays:  none 
Approved: 8-0 
Motion:  carried 
 
 
Item # 11- Z201103 - Zoning Change - C at 4106 Lake Ridge Pkwy (City Council District 6).  
Planner Jonathan Ware presented the case report and gave a Power Point presentation for a request 
to change the base zoning from Single Family-One Residential District (SF-1) to Commercial 
District (C) to allow for future commercial development at this location.  Located at 4106 Lake 
Ridge Parkway, legally described as Lot 1, Block 1, Lobb Addition, and Lot 1, Block 1, Lane 
Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Single-Family One Residential 
District. This property is generally located south of Interstate 20 and west of Lake Ridge Parkway, 
within the Lake Ridge Corridor Overlay District. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated the purpose of the request is to rezone the subject property from Single Family-
One Residential District (SF-1) to Commercial District (C). The current owner does not live on 
the property and intends to sell within the next year. Mrs. Raley is having it rezoned to align with 
other development along Lake Ridge Parkway, along with raising the prospects of selling to a 
future developer. The current and future owners must follow Article 6, 8, and 10 of the Unified 
Development Code for all future commercial development. Since there is an existing single-family 
structure on the property, the rezoning will transition the home from conforming to legally 
nonconforming status.  

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval with conditions: 

1. No commercial access will be allowed to/from Ernie Lane. 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, NOVEMBER 23, 2020 
 

13 
 

 
 

Commissioner Coleman asked what is wrong with resident wanting to put property for sale. Mr. 
Tooley stated it is up to the residents and the zoning is concurrent with the future land use. The 
owner is requesting zoning change in place before she sells it.  
 
Commissioner Fedorko stated he worries about neighbors that also bought their lot for residential 
purposes. Mr. Tooley stated staff views this as conformant with future land use for commercial 
and a masonry screening will be put in place when commercial comes in.  Mr. Fedorko stated if 
he is correct this is all meant to transition into commercial zoning and if so, they will need access 
thru Ernie Ln. Mr. Jackson stated the entire area will need to be reevaluated. Mr. Fedorko stated 
he wonders if it is fair for the property owners.  
 
Commissioner Moser stated the dam break is that they made Lakeridge to Hwy 161 and it is 
unfortunate and sad for the owners, but things happen.  
 
Commissioner Smith stated if other property owners were concerned, they would have come 
forward with their concerns.  
 
Jennifer L Raley, 4106 Lakeridge Pkwy Grand Prairie TX 75052, stepped forward and represented 
the case, she stated she has lived on that property since her son was five years old and he is now 
35 yrs. old. It was unfair when the city built the highway around her property. She likes Grand 
Prairie, but she would like to sell it to a commercial developer.  
 
Commissioner Moser thanked Ms. Raley for coming and understand her and believes she should 
have her land use the way she wants to use it.  
 
Commissioner Spare asked if they can modify motion to allow what is being requested without a 
use for a hotel. Mr. Dempsey stated no, it isn’t like a SUP. Mr. Jackson stated you can on a planned 
development, but this is straight zoning.  
 
David Raley, 4106 Lakeridge Pkwy Grand Prairie TX 75052, stepped forward and represented the 
case, he stated the street is very noisy and it would be better off as a commercial development.  
 
Ms. Raley stated she just wants to be able to sell her property. Mr. Connor stated she can sell to 
whomever she wants and agrees no need for anymore storage units, apartments etc.  
 
Commissioner Coleman asked if rezoned to commercial will the property taxes go up and is she 
aware of it. Mr. Jackson stated once it is reappraised, they will go up. Ms. Raley stated she is 
aware.  
 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, NOVEMBER 23, 2020 
 

14 
 

 
 

There being no further discussion on the case Commissioner Smith moved to close the public 
hearing and approve case Z201103 per staff recommendations.   
 
The action and vote recorded as follows:   
 
Motion: Smith  
Second:  Coleman                          
Ayes:  Spare, Smith, Coleman, Connor, Perez, Moser Fedorko, Hedin 
Nays:  none 
Approved: 8-0 
Motion:  carried 
 
 
 

Item # 12- CP200801 - Concept Plan - Cottages at Dechman (City Council District 2). Chief City 
Planner Savannah Ware presented the case report and gave a Power Point presentation for a 
Concept Plan for the Cottages at Dechman, a multi-family development with a mixture of 
attached and detached units on 15.91 acres.  Tract 2 of Leonidas O'Gwinn Survey, Abstract No. 
1105, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-20, within the IH-20 Corridor 
Overlay District, and generally located at the northwest corner of Dechman Dr and the IH-20 
frontage road. 
 
Ms. Ware stated the applicant intends to construct a multi-family development on 15.91 acres.  The 
Unified Development Code (UDC) requires City Council approval of a Concept Plan for Planned 
Development Districts.  The subject property is zoned PD-20 which was approved without a Concept 
Plan.  Concept Plans are designed to expedite the development process by working out site design 
issues prior to design of a project and assuring compliance with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Project Update 
At its November 9, 2020 meeting, the Planning and Zoning Commission tabled this item.  Since that 
time, the applicant has revised the plan to include an additional access point off the I-20 frontage road 
and add 22 parking spaces.  

The proposal is an example of Hybrid Housing, also known as build-to-rent homes, which combines 
elements of traditional single family and multi-family development.  Hybrid Housing includes a 
mixture of detached and attached units on a single lot.  Maintenance of individual units, common 
areas, and landscaping is the responsibility of a single entity. The Concept Plan depicts 142 units at a 
density of 8.9 dwelling units per acre.  The 15.91-acre site is accessible from Dechman Drive.  A 
second access point for emergencies and exit only is off the I-20 frontage road.  The office, fitness 
center, and pool are located at the entrance. 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, NOVEMBER 23, 2020 
 

15 
 

 
 

Staff suggested that the applicant try to adhere to the hybrid housing requirements if at all possible.  
The applicant has submitted the attached concept plan.  Noting the applicants vested rights, the 
Development Review Committee (DRC) generally supports the request.   

 
Commissioner Moser asked does TX DOT have to approve second point of access. Transportation 
Planner Brett Huntsman stated yes, they would need to get a TX DOT permit. Mr. Moser asked is it 
likely for TX DOT to allow it. Mr. Huntsman stated yes. Mr. Moser asked if approved with the second 
access would the developer still sprinkler the entire sire. Ms. Ware stated yes to her understanding.  
 
Phillip Thompson, 6735 Salt Cedar Way Frisco TX, stepped forward and represented the case, he 
stated all units would still be sprinkled. 
 
Commissioner Moser asked have they talked to TX DOT about the second entry. Mr. Thompson 
stated they worked on it thru staff. Mr. Moser asked did TX DOT state it is acceptable to them. Mr. 
Thompson stated per his understanding yes. Mr. Huntsman stated staff doesn’t speak for TX DOT 
and the developer will have to get separate approval.  
 
Commissioner Fedorko asked if they grant request and TX DOT says no to the second access can 
they still build with only one entry point. Mr. Huntsman stated process can vary on the amount of 
time it takes to meet with TX DOT. They can write a letter of support, but it depends on TX DOT. 
Mr. Dempsey stated this is really the concept plan stage also. Mr. Thompson stated if second entry 
wasn’t permitted, they would have to ask for a variance during the site plan. Mr. Jackson stated that 
is correct.  Mr. Thompson stated he has heard all the concerns and is happy to put in second entry.  
 
 
There being no further discussion on the case Commissioner Moser moved to close the public 
hearing and approve case CP200801 per staff recommendations and the amendments stated in 
motion from meeting on 11/09/2020.   
 
The action and vote recorded as follows:   
 
Motion:  Moser 
Second: Smith                            
Ayes: Smith, Coleman, Connor, Perez, Moser Fedorko, Hedin  
Nays: Spare  
Approved: 7-1 
Motion:  carried 

 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, NOVEMBER 23, 2020 
 

16 
 

 
 

Item # 13- TA201101 – Text Amendment – Article 9: Sign Standards. Chief City Planner 
Savannah Ware presented the case report and gave a Power Point presentation for a Text 
amendment to Article 9 of the Unified Development Code to amend required approval process 
for murals within the Central Area (CA) zoning district. 
 
Ms. Ware stated the purpose of this request is to amend the required approval process for murals 
within the Central Area (CA) zoning district.  The City of Grand Prairie’s Community 
Revitalization Unit manages a downtown mural program.  This amendment will align the Unified 
Development Code (UDC) with the Community Revitalization Unit’s efforts and streamline the 
approval process by designating the Community Revitalization Unit as the approval authority for 
murals in the Central Area (CA) zoning district.  This amendment also clarifies the mechanism for 
approval - either through a contract between the building owner, artist, and the City of Grand 
Prairie Community Revitalization Unit or by registering the mural with the Community 
Revitalization Unit. 

Commissioner Moser stated he really likes the murals and asked who is GPRU. Ms. Ware stated 
it is Rita Heed and Andrew Fortune. Mr. Moser asked if all you must do is register your mural 
with the city and pay for it yourself because he thought it had to get approval by the city. Ms. Ware 
stated that is correct, you don’t have to get permit thru building inspection, all you must do is 
coordinate with Rita or Andrew.  
 
 
There being no further discussion on the case Commissioner Smith moved to close the public 
hearing and approve case TA201101 per staff recommendations.   
 
The action and vote recorded as follows:   
 
Motion: Smith  
Second: Perez                            
Ayes: Smith, Spare, Connor, Perez, Moser Fedorko, Hedin  
Nays: none 
Approved: 7-0 with Max Coleman abstaining  
Motion:  carried 
 
 
 
 
Commissioner Moser moved to adjourn the meeting.  The meeting adjourned at 9:18 p.m. 
 
 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, NOVEMBER 23, 2020 
 

17 
 

 
 

 
_______________________  
Shawn Connor, Chairperson  
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________  
Cheryl Smith, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
An audio recording of this meeting is available on request at 972-237-8255. 
 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10677 Name: P201202 - Prairie Modern Addition

Status:Type: Agenda Item Public Hearing Consent Agenda

File created: In control:12/7/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:12/14/2020

Title: P201202 - Preliminary Plat - Prairie Modern Addition (City Council District 1).  A Preliminary Plat for
one multi-family and one commercial lot totaling 7.608 acres.  Legally described as Tract 6, Elizabeth
Gray Survey, Abstract No. 517, Page 215, and part of Lot 2, Block 1, Curtiss-Wright Addition, City of
Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, and zoned PD-388. Generally located east of S Highway 161
and north of Dickey Road and within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Preliminary Plat.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza, Executive Assistant

Title

P201202 - Preliminary Plat - Prairie Modern Addition (City Council District 1).  A Preliminary Plat for one
multi-family and one commercial lot totaling 7.608 acres.  Legally described as Tract 6, Elizabeth Gray Survey,
Abstract No. 517, Page 215, and part of Lot 2, Block 1, Curtiss-Wright Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas
County, Texas, and zoned PD-388. Generally located east of S Highway 161 and north of Dickey Road and
within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay

Presenter
Jonathan Tooley, Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
SUMMARY:

A Preliminary Plat for one multi-family and one commercial lot totaling 6.209 acres. Legally described as Tract
6, Elizabeth Gray Survey, Abstract No. 517, Page 215, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, and zoned
PD-388. Generally located east of State Highway 161 and north of Dickey Road and within the SH-161
Corridor Overlay District.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 12/10/2020Page 1 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10677, Version: 1

The purpose of the Preliminary Plat is to plat a survey tract into two platted lots for multi-family and
commercial uses. The developer is developing Lot 1 immediately for multi-family uses, with Lot 2 intended for
future commercial development.

The applicant has submitted a development application for a Final Plat and Site Plan approval, which is running
concurrent to this request (P201203 & S201202). The site plan is for 272 multi-family units and a five-story
garage on Lot 1.

ADJACENT LAND USES:
The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.
Table 1: Zoning and Land Use

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North PD-12, PD-175 Undeveloped, Senior Living Apartments

South Commercial Undeveloped

West PD-13 SH-161

East PD-12 Undeveloped

DENSITY AND DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS:

The lots meet the density and dimensional requirements stated in PD-388 and Article 6 of the Unified

Development Code.

Table 2: Summary of Lot Requirements - Multi-Family (CA)
Standard PD-388 Appendix W / UDC Provided Meets?

Min. Area (SF) ------ 12,000 233,250 Yes

Min. Width (Ft.) ------ 100 232 Yes

Min. Depth (Ft.) ------ 120 344 Yes

Min. All Setbacks (Ft.) 15 ------ 15 Yes

Max. DUA 65 ------ 50.8 Yes

Maximum Height (Ft.) ------ 70 47.75 Yes

Table 3: Summary of Lot Requirements - Commercial
Standard PD-388 Appendix W / UDC Provided Meets?

Min. Area (SF) ------ 5,000 37,212 Yes

Min. Width (Ft.) ------ 50 111 Yes

Min. Depth (Ft.) ------ 100 344 Yes

North, South, and West Setbacks (Ft.) 15 ------ 15 Yes

East Setback (Ft.) 10 ------ 10 Yes

HISTORY:

· Site Plan application for Prairie Modern Apartments to allow 272 multi-family units on 5.355 acres is
under concurrent review (Case Number S201202).

· Final Plat application for Prairie Modern Apartments Addition to create one multi-family and one

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 12/10/2020Page 2 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10677, Version: 1

commercial lot totaling 6.209 acres is under concurrent review (Case Number P201203).

· April 21, 2020: City Council approved a zoning change and concept plan creating Planned
Development-388 District for multi-family and commercial uses (Case Number Z190202/CP190202).

PLAT FEATURES:

The plat meets all density and dimensional requirements of PD-388 and Article 6 of the UDC. A condition of
PD-388 is installing an access drive around the north and east boundaries of the property to allow for proper
circulation for the planned development. The Raines Branch of the Cottonwood Creek System runs north/south
through the property, between the commercial and residential tracts. The applicant is working with the
Engineering Department on proper drainage between the lots. Due to the unique shape of the property and the
abutting properties, the applicant is establishing off-site easements for utilities, along with additional access
easements. There is an existing 60 foot access easement along the north side of the property that the applicant
will use for northern access to the property. Additionally, visibility easements are placed along SH-161 and
Dickey Road, where private access intersect with arterial roadways.

The applicant is required to submit all required floodplain development documentation to the Engineering
Department. Approval is required before issuance of building permits.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 12/10/2020Page 3 of 3

powered by Legistar™



Dickey Rd

S H
wy

 16
1 N

b  

S C
ar

rie
r P

kw
y

Sh
aw

ne
e T

rc
S Hwy 161 Svc Nb Rd

SHwy 16 1 Sb

Desco St
Desco Ln

Bennie Ln

Sw 14th St

´
Development Services

(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand PrairieCASE LOCATION MAP
P201202 - Prairie Modern   

   Preliminary Plat

Exhibit A - Location Map
Page 1 of 1



T

T

T

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
P

L
A

T
 
-
 
L

O
T

S
 
1
 
&

 
2
,
 
B

L
O

C
K

 
A

,
 
P

R
A

I
R

I
E

 
M

O
D

E
R

N
 
A

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

S

VICINITY MAP

DALLAS COUNTY

MAPSCO : 51 L

PROJECT

LOCATION

Exhibit B - Preliminary Plat
Page 1 of 2



PRELIMINARY

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
P

L
A

T
 
-
 
L

O
T

S
 
1
 
&

 
2
,
 
B

L
O

C
K

 
A

,
 
P

R
A

I
R

I
E

 
M

O
D

E
R

N
 
A

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

S

“ ” ’

“ ” 

“ ”

“

” 

“ ” 

“

” 

“

” 

“ ” 

“ ” 

“ ” 

“ ” 

“ ” 

Exhibit B - Preliminary Plat
Page 2 of 2



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10678 Name: P201203 - Prairie Modern Addition

Status:Type: Agenda Item Public Hearing Consent Agenda

File created: In control:12/7/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:12/14/2020

Title: P201203 - Final Plat - Prairie Modern Addition (City Council District 1).  A Final Plat for one multi-
family and one commercial lot totaling approximately 7.608 acres.  Legally described as Tract 6,
Elizabeth Gray Survey, Abstract No. 517, Page 215, and part of Lot 2, Block 1, Curtiss-Wright
Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, and zoned PD-388. Generally located east of S
Highway 161 and north of Dickey Road and within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Final Plat.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza, Executive Assistant

Title

P201203 - Final Plat - Prairie Modern Addition (City Council District 1).  A Final Plat for one multi-family and
one commercial lot totaling approximately 7.608 acres.  Legally described as Tract 6, Elizabeth Gray Survey,
Abstract No. 517, Page 215, and part of Lot 2, Block 1, Curtiss-Wright Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas
County, Texas, and zoned PD-388. Generally located east of S Highway 161 and north of Dickey Road and

within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay.

Presenter
Jonathan Tooley, Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
SUMMARY:

A Final Plat for one multi-family and one commercial lot totaling 6.209 acres. Legally described as Tract 6,
Elizabeth Gray Survey, Abstract No. 517, Page 215, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, and zoned PD
-388. Generally located east of State Highway 161 and north of Dickey Road and within the SH-161 Corridor
Overlay District.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 12/10/2020Page 1 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10678, Version: 1

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The purpose of the Final Plat is plat a survey tracts into two platted lots for multi-family and commercial uses.
The developer is developing Lot 1 immediately for multi-family uses, with Lot 2 intended for future
commercial development.

The applicant has submitted a development application for a Preliminary Plat and Site Plan approval, which is
running concurrent to this request (P201202 & S201202). The site plan is for 272 multi-family units and a five-
story garage on Lot 1.

ADJACENT LAND USES:
The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.
Table 1: Zoning and Land Use

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North PD-12, PD-175 Undeveloped, Senior Living Apartments

South Commercial Undeveloped

West PD-13 SH-161

East PD-12 Undeveloped

DENSITY AND DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS:

The lots meet the density and dimensional requirements stated in PD-388 andArticle 6 of the Unified

Development Code.

Table 2: Summary of Lot Requirements - Multi-Family (CA)
Standard PD-388 Appendix W / UDC Provided Meets?

Min. Area (SF) ------ 12,000 233,250 Yes

Min. Width (Ft.) ------ 100 232 Yes

Min. Depth (Ft.) ------ 120 344 Yes

Min. All Setbacks (Ft.) 15 ------ 15 Yes

Max. DUA 65 ------ 50.8 Yes

Maximum Height (Ft.) ------ 70 47.75 Yes

Table 3: Summary of Lot Requirements - Commercial
Standard PD-388 Appendix W / UDC Provided Meets?

Min. Area (SF) ------ 5,000 37,212 Yes

Min. Width (Ft.) ------ 50 111 Yes

Min. Depth (Ft.) ------ 100 344 Yes

North, South, and West Setbacks (Ft.) 15 ------ 15 Yes

East Setback (Ft.) 10 ------ 10 Yes

HISTORY:

· Site Plan application for Prairie Modern Apartments to allow 272 multi-family units on 5.355 acres is
under concurrent review (Case Number S201202).

· Preliminary Plat application for Prairie Modern Apartments Addition to create one multi-family and one

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 12/10/2020Page 2 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10678, Version: 1

commercial lot totaling 6.209 acres is under concurrent review (Case Number P201202).

· April 21, 2020: City Council approved a zoning change and concept plan creating Planned
Development-388 District for multi-family and commercial uses (Case Number Z190202/CP190202).

PLAT FEATURES:

The plat meets all density and dimensional requirements of PD-388 and Article 6 of the UDC. A condition of
PD-388 is installing an access drive around the north and east boundaries of the property to allow for proper
circulation for the planned development. The Raines Branch of the Cottonwood Creek System runs north/south
through the property, between the commercial and residential tracts. The applicant is working with the
Engineering Department on proper drainage between the lots. Due to the unique shape of the property and the
abutting properties, the applicant is establishing off-site easements for utilities, along with additional access
easements. There is an existing 60 foot access easement along the north side of the property that the applicant
will use for northern access to the property. Additionally, visibility easements are placed along SH-161 and
Dickey Road, where private access intersect with arterial roadways.

The applicant is required to submit all required floodplain development documentation to the Engineering
Department. Approval is required before issuance of building permits.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval with conditions:

· Prior to submitting plat for City signatures, the applicant must execute, file with the County, and
provide instrument numbers for all easements and agreements that are established with the adjacent
landowner.

· Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant must obtain permits from TxDOT for access to, and
construction within the TXDOT right-of-way.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 12/10/2020Page 3 of 3

powered by Legistar™



Dickey Rd

S H
wy

 16
1 N

b  

S C
ar

rie
r P

kw
y

Sh
aw

ne
e T

rc
S Hwy 161 Svc Nb Rd

SHwy 16 1 Sb

Desco St
Desco Ln

Bennie Ln

Sw 14th St

´
Development Services

(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand PrairieCASE LOCATION MAP
P201203 - Prairie Modern 

   Final Plat

Exhibit A - Location Map
Page 1 of 1



F
I
N

A
L

 
P

L
A

T
 
-
 
L

O
T

S
 
1
 
&

 
2
,
 
B

L
O

C
K

 
A

,
 
P

R
A

I
R

I
E

 
M

O
D

E
R

N
 
A

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

S
 
A

D
D

I
T

I
O

N

VICINITY MAP

DALLAS COUNTY

MAPSCO : 51 L

PROJECT

LOCATION

Exhibit B - Final Plat
Page 1 of 2



“ ” ’

“ ” 

“ ”

“

” 

“ ” 

“

” 

“

” 

“ ” 

“ ” 

“ ” 

“ ” 

“ ” 

PRELIMINARY

F
I
N

A
L

 
P

L
A

T
 
-
 
L

O
T

S
 
1
 
&

 
2
,
 
B

L
O

C
K

 
A

,
 
P

R
A

I
R

I
E

 
M

O
D

E
R

N
 
A

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

S
 
A

D
D

I
T

I
O

N

Exhibit B - Final Plat
Page 2 of 2



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10683 Name: Z201201 - Zoning Change - Zoning Change at 1620
Vicky Ln. (City Council District 6).

Status:Type: Ordinance Public Hearing

File created: In control:12/7/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:12/14/2020

Title: Z201201 - Zoning Change - Zoning Change at 1620 Vicky Ln. (City Council District 6).  A request to
change the base zoning from Single Family-One Residential District (SF-1) to Commercial District (C)
to allow for future commercial development at this location. Located at 1620 Vicky Lane, legally
described as 1.49 acres out of Tract 36.1, W. H. Beeman Survey, Abstract 126, Page 11, City of
Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Single-Family One Residential District. This property is
generally located south of Interstate 20 and west of Lake Ridge Parkway, within the Interstate 20
Corridor Overlay District.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Monica Espinoza, Executive Assistant

Title

Z201201 - Zoning Change - Zoning Change at 1620 Vicky Ln. (City Council District 6).  A request to change
the base zoning from Single Family-One Residential District (SF-1) to Commercial District (C) to allow for
future commercial development at this location. Located at 1620 Vicky Lane, legally described as 1.49 acres
out of Tract 36.1, W. H. Beeman Survey, Abstract 126, Page 11, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas,
zoned Single-Family One Residential District. This property is generally located south of Interstate 20 and west
of Lake Ridge Parkway, within the Interstate 20 Corridor Overlay District.

Presenter

Jonathan Tooley, Planner

Recommended Action

Table

Analysis

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 12/10/2020Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10679 Name: S201201 - Warehouse at 2700 Avenue K East

Status:Type: Agenda Item Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:12/7/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:12/14/2020

Title: S201201 - Site Plan - Warehouse at 2700 Avenue K East (City Council District 1).  Site Plan for a
198K SF industrial warehouse building on one lot on 26.46 acres.  Tract 4 of M. K. Selvidge Survey,
Abstract No. 1423 and Lot 1, Block 6, Safety Net Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County,
Texas, zoned Light Industrial (LI), generally located northwest of Avenue K and future extension of N.
Great Southwest Parkway Road, and specifically addressed at 2700 E. Avenue K.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A S201201 Location Map

Exhibit B S201201- 2700 Avenue K - Site Plan

Exhibit C S201201- Landscape Plan - 2700 Avanue K

Exhibit D S201201 Tree Preservation Plan

Exhibit E S201201 - Exlevation Plan

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza, Executive Assistant

Title

S201201 - Site Plan - Warehouse at 2700 Avenue K East (City Council District 1).  Site Plan for a 198K SF
industrial warehouse building on one lot on 26.46 acres.  Tract 4 of M. K. Selvidge Survey, Abstract No. 1423
and Lot 1, Block 6, Safety Net Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial
(LI), generally located northwest of Avenue K and future extension of N. Great Southwest Parkway Road, and
specifically addressed at 2700 E. Avenue K.

Presenter
Charles Lee, AICP, CBO, Senior Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
SUMMARY:

S201201 - Site Plan - Warehouse at 2700 Avenue K East (City Council District 1).  Site Plan for a 198,000 sq.
ft. industrial warehouse building on one lot on 26.46 acres.  Tract 4 of M. K. Selvidge Survey, Abstract No.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 12/10/2020Page 1 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10679, Version: 1

1423 and Lot 1, Block 6, Safety Net Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned Light
Industrial (LI), generally located northwest of Avenue K and future extension of N. Great Southwest Parkway

Road, and specifically addressed at 2700 E. Avenue K.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The applicant intends to construct a 198,200sf. office/warehouse building on 26.46 acres. The proposed site
consists of two properties that would be subsequently platted into one property. An existing gas well straddles
the two properties. Site Plan approval by City Council is required for any project involving industrial uses with
buildings exceeding 50,000 square feet.

The purpose of site plan approval is to ensure that development meets requirements in the Unified
Development Code (UDC), provides adequate circulation, and uses quality site planning techniques. The UDC
identifies criteria for evaluating proposed developments. Criteria include density and dimensional standards,
landscaping and screening requirements, and architectural design for special districts.

UDC’s Appendix X, Industrial Development Standards addresses potential adverse environmental, visual, and
truck traffic associated with large warehouses, outside storage, distribution-logistical related developments
exceeding five acres in size.

ADJACENT LAND USES:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North LI Warehouse

South PD-38 Single Family Residential

West LI Warehouse/Logistics

East SF-1 (East of GSW) Single Family Residential & School

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION:

The proposal includes one side-loaded office/warehouse-building. Tractor/trailer parking and storage is located
on the western portion of the site facing the truck court. The overhead truck docks are located on the west side
of the building and faces west.  The building is speculative and will be developed without specific tenants.

FUTURE N. GREAT SOUTHWEST PARKWAY:

The current Master Transportation Plan designates the extension of N. Great Southwest Parkway (Principle
Arterial Six-Lane Divided Roadway) along the eastern boundary of the property beginning at the Avenue K
East intersection and extending to the northern property boundary. The applicant plans to dedicate the full 120’
right-of-way, as well as design and construct a portion of the roadway in coordination with the City’s
Engineering & Transportation Departments.

The site will be accessible from two commercial drives off the future N. Great Southwest Parkway extension.
The center-loaded primary drive shall align with planned median opening and secondary drive located
approximately 300’ to the north. The site provides 30’ fire lane and access easement looping around the facility.
The 30’ fire lane and access drive shall serve 32 west orientated overhead dock doors along with 42 tractor

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 12/10/2020Page 2 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10679, Version: 1

The 30’ fire lane and access drive shall serve 32 west orientated overhead dock doors along with 42 tractor
trailer parking spaces.

GAS WELL PAD SITE & PIPELINE:

An operational gas well pad-site is located on the northwestern portion of the property. The existing pipeline
serving the gas well runs northwesterly from Avenue K to the well site shall be relocated. The applicant and
their design team has been coordinating relocation of pipeline with their team (DFW Mid-Stream Services) &
well head operator (GH America Energy). This will require oversight from the City’s Engineering Department
during civil review. A section of the fire lane and about 25 parking spaces encroach the well head’s 300 ft
buffer.  No planned structures are to be located within the required 100’ separation of the gas pad.

ZONING REQUIREMENTS:

Density and Dimensional Requirements

Development is subject to the LI and Appendix X Industrial Development Standards in the UDC. The table
below evaluates the density and dimensional standards of the proposed development. The proposal meets the
density and dimensional requirements.

Table 2: Site Data Summary

Standard Required Provided Meets

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 15,000 1,152,598 Yes

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 100 631 Yes

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 150 1,351 Yes

Front Setback (Ft.) 25 70+ Yes

Side Setback (Ft.) 30 185+ Yes

Max. Height (Ft.) 50 48.5 Yes

Max. Floor Area Ratio 1:1 0.17:1 Yes

Landscape and Screening

The property is subject to landscape and screening requirements in Article 8 and Appendix X of the UDC.
Zoning Analysis Tables summarizes the requirements. The site exceeds the minimum landscape area (33%
provided), number of shrubs, number of trees and screening requirements. The applicant is preserving the
required number of trees.

Table 3: Landscape & Screening Requirements

Standard Required Provided Meets

Area (Sq. Ft.) 53,999 177,387 (33%) Yes

Trees 216 + 30 Street 118+ 600 Presv. Yes

Shrubs 1,080 1,160 Yes

Foundation Plantings Along Primary Facades Provided Plantings Yes

Entrance Plantings At Building Entrance Provided Plantings Yes

Truck Screening Wing Wall Wing Walls Yes

Parking Lot Trees 30 39 (3” Cal) Yes

Parking will be screened with living screen (street trees and shrubs) within a 30’ landscape buffer. The site
provides 21 street trees planted on Avenue K East and 18 trees provided within future GSW Pkwy’s landscape

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 12/10/2020Page 3 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10679, Version: 1

provides 21 street trees planted on Avenue K East and 18 trees provided within future GSW Pkwy’s landscape
buffer along with the construction of minimum 4’ sidewalk.

Building Materials and Design

Industrial buildings greater than 50,000 sq. ft. are subject to the requirements in Appendix X of the UDC.
Appendix X requires that primary facades include at least three design elements and secondary facades include
at least two design elements. The tables below evaluate the design elements for each building. The proposed
building elevations meet Appendix X requirements.

The building’s exterior construction consists of 100% exterior masonry construction utilizing textured concrete
tilt-wall panels with reveals of varying finishes and colors in compliance with required architectural articulation
requirements. The construction styles consist of two accent materials along the vertical surface. 24” Parapet
projection shall extend along the length of the secondary facades.

Table 4A: Building Design Elements for Building A

Facade Type a. b. c. d. e. f. g. h. i. Total ElementsMeets

North SecondaryY Y         2     Y

South PrimaryY Y Y         3     Y

East PrimaryY Y Y         3     Y

West SecondaryY Y         2     Y

VARIANCES:
The applicant is not requesting any variances.

RECOMMENDATION:
The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 12/10/2020Page 4 of 4

powered by Legistar™



S201201

Avenue K East  

111
th

 St

Fa
llb

ro
ok

e D
r

Avenue M  

Santerre Dr

´
Development Services

(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand PrairieCASE LOCATION MAP
S201201 - Site PlanWarehouse at 2700 E. Avenue K

EXHIBIT A - LOCATION MAP 
     PAGE 1 OF 1



Th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t, 
to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 th

e 
co

nc
ep

ts
 a

nd
 d

es
ig

ns
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 h
er

ei
n,

 a
s 

an
 in

st
ru

m
en

t o
f s

er
vi

ce
, i

s 
in

te
nd

ed
 o

nl
y 

fo
r t

he
 s

pe
ci

fic
 p

ur
po

se
 a

nd
 c

lie
nt

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 it
 w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d.

 R
eu

se
 o

f a
nd

 im
pr

op
er

 re
lia

nc
e 

on
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t w

ith
ou

t w
rit

te
n 

au
th

or
iz

at
io

n 
an

d 
ad

ap
ta

tio
n 

by
 K

im
le

y-
H

or
n 

an
d 

As
so

ci
at

es
, I

nc
. s

ha
ll 

be
 w

ith
ou

t l
ia

bi
lit

y 
to

 K
im

le
y-

H
or

n 
an

d 
As

so
ci

at
es

, I
nc

.

BY

D
AT

E

AS
 S

H
O

W
N

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

N
o.

D
AT

E

SHEET NUMBER

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y

SC
AL

E

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y

KH
A 

PR
O

JE
C

T

LA
ST

 S
AV

ED
12

/3
/2

02
0 

2:
10

 P
M

PL
O

TT
ED

 B
Y

VA
LL

EJ
O

, K
EI

SH
LA

 1
2/

3/
20

20
 2

:1
1 

PM
D

W
G

 P
AT

H
K:

\D
AL

_C
iv

il\
06

92
69

80
1-

27
00

 A
ve

nu
e 

K 
In

du
st

ria
l\4

_D
es

ig
n\

C
AD

\P
la

nS
he

et
s

D
W

G
 N

AM
E

C
-S

IT
E.

dw
g

Te
xa

s
G

ra
nd

 P
ra

iri
e

©
 2

02
0 

KI
M

LE
Y-

H
O

R
N

 A
N

D
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TE
S,

 IN
C

.

PH
O

N
E:

 9
72

-7
70

-1
30

0 
 F

AX
: 9

72
-2

39
-3

82
0

W
W

W
.K

IM
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
.C

O
M

  T
X 

F-
92

8

IM
AG

ES
XR

EF
S 

   
   

   
   

   
 x

Tt
lb

22
x3

4 
 : 

 x
Ba

se
  :

  x
Es

m
t  

:  
xE

xU
til

  :
  x

Ss
w

r  
:  

xS
trm

  :
  x

W
at

r  
:  

xS
ur

v 
 : 

 x
Si

te
  :

  x
Bd

r2
4x

36
  :

  x
Bn

dy

13
45

5 
N

O
EL

 R
O

AD
, T

W
O

 G
AL

LE
R

IA
 O

FF
IC

E 
TO

W
ER

SU
IT

E 
70

0,
 D

AL
LA

S,
 T

X 
75

24
0

Engineer

P.E. No. Date

Not for construction or permit purposes.
FOR REVIEW ONLY

120260
DANIEL P. GALLAGHER

NOVEMBER 3, 2020

27
00

 A
VE

N
U

E 
K

IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L
PR

EP
AR

ED
 F

O
R

  C
A 

VE
N

TU
R

ES

N
O

VE
M

BE
R

 3
, 2

02
0

06
92

69
80

1

D
PG D
SA

D
FG

FL FL

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER LINE

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER LINE

EXISTING STORM DRAIN LINE

W W

8"SS

EXISTING UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC
LINE

EXISTING OVERHEAD ELECTRIC LINE OHE OHE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPOSED FIRE LANE

BUILDING SETBACK

PROPOSED WATER LINE

EXISTING WATER LINE W W

ZONING LIGHT INDUSTRIAL

PROPOSED USE TRANSFER AND STORAGE
TERMINAL

REQUESTED MAX BUILDING HEIGHT 50'-0"

PROPOSED TOTAL BUILDING AREA 198,200 SF

TOTAL LAND AREA 1,152,598 SF / 26.46 ACRES

LOT COVERAGE 17%

PROPOSED TRAILER PARKING 42

PROPOSED AUTO PARKING 131

REQUIRED AUTO PARKING 77

PROPOSED ACCESSIBLE PARKING 5

REQUIRED ACCESSIBLE PARKING 5

LEGEND SITE SUMMARY TABLE

UGE UGE

EXISTING FENCE LINE

SS SS

1. ACCORDING TO FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY'S FLOOD
INSURANCE RATE MAP NO. 48439C0245L, FOR TARRANT COUNTY, TEXAS
AND INCORPORATED AREAS, DATED MARCH 21, 2019, THIS PROPERTY IS
LOCATED WITHIN ZONE X (UNSHADED) DEFINED AS "AREAS DETERMINED
TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOODPLAIN.

2. TRUCK ROUTING SIGNAGE WILL BE PROVIDED AS A PART OF THIS
DEVELOPMENT.

NOTES

DEVELOPER
CA INDUSRIAL

130 E RANDOLPH STREET, SUITE 2100
CHICAGO IL 60601
PHONE NUMBER: (713) 294-9611
EMAIL: KROBERSON@CA-VENTURES.COM

CONTACT: KYLE ROBERSON

PROPOSED EASEMENT

EXISTING EASEMENT

N
O

R
TH

0
GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

6030 60 120

PARKING CALCULATION:
AUTO PARKING SPACES PROVIDED BASED ON CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE UNIFIED
DEVELOPMENT CODE ARTICLE 10, SECTION 7.
ASSUMED OFFICE SF (10%) = 19,820 SF ÷ 1000 = 20
178,380 SF WAREHOUSE ÷ 5000 + 20 = 57
TOTAL REQUIRED SPACES AT 10% OFFICE = 20+57 = 77

SUNNYVALE

D
U

N
C

AN
 P

ER
R

Y

M
ER

IT
AG

E

11
1T

H

BURNEY

C
O

R
PO

R
AT

E 
W

C
O

R
PO

R
AT

E 
E

JO
HN

SO
N

AVE N

AVE M

SANTERRE

10
9T

H

AVENUE K

FOUNTAIN

AVENUE H

W
IL

D 
RO

SE

W
ES

T 
PA

R
K

GREENVIEW

PLAZA

AVE J EAST

10
7T

H

111TH

VICINITY MAP NOT TO SCALE

SITE

NORTH

AVENUE K

SI
TE

 P
LA

N

SP

120' RIGHT-OF-WAY

60'60'

℄

12.0'12.0'
LANELANE

 PROPOSED
ROW

PROPOSED
ROW

FUTURE GREAT SOUTHWEST PARKWAY
P-6-D

SIX LANE DIVIDED ARTERIAL
-TYPICAL SECTION-

N.T.S.

2%

11'

PARKWAY BUFFER
6" INTEGRAL CURB

C

A 11" THICK 4,000 PSI REINFORCED CONCRETE
PAVEMENT WITH #4 BARS AT 24" O.C.E.W.

B 8" CEMENT STABILIZED SUBGRADE

C 6" INTEGRAL CURB

D 5' WIDE 4" THICK CONCRETE SIDEWALK

16'
6" INTEGRAL CURB

6" INTEGRAL CURB

MEDIAN

LIGHTING CONDUIT AND
POLE BASE EVERY 250'.

POLE INSTALLATION
PROVIDED BY ONCOR

12.0'
LANE

12.0'12.0'12.0'
FUTURE

LANE

4.0'

D

1' 11' 4.0' 1'

PARKWAY BUFFER

6"
INTEGRAL
CURB

FUTURE
LANE

FUTURE
LANE

A

B

WAREHOUSE AT 2700 E AVENUE K
LOT 1

BEING A REPLAT OF
LOT 1, BLOCK 6 SAFETY NET ADDITION

AND UNPLATTED LAND
 BEING 26.4583 ACRES IN THE

M.K. SELVIDGE SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 1423
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TARRANT COUNTY, TEXAS

CASE NO. S201201

EXHIBIT B - SITE PLAN 
        PAGE 1 OF 1



Th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t, 
to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 th

e 
co

nc
ep

ts
 a

nd
 d

es
ig

ns
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 h
er

ei
n,

 a
s 

an
 in

st
ru

m
en

t o
f s

er
vi

ce
, i

s 
in

te
nd

ed
 o

nl
y 

fo
r t

he
 s

pe
ci

fic
 p

ur
po

se
 a

nd
 c

lie
nt

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 it
 w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d.

 R
eu

se
 o

f a
nd

 im
pr

op
er

 re
lia

nc
e 

on
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t w

ith
ou

t w
rit

te
n 

au
th

or
iz

at
io

n 
an

d 
ad

ap
ta

tio
n 

by
 K

im
le

y-
H

or
n 

an
d 

As
so

ci
at

es
, I

nc
. s

ha
ll 

be
 w

ith
ou

t l
ia

bi
lit

y 
to

 K
im

le
y-

H
or

n 
an

d 
As

so
ci

at
es

, I
nc

.

BY

D
AT

E

AS
 S

H
O

W
N

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

N
o.

D
AT

E

SHEET NUMBER

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y

SC
AL

E

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y

KH
A 

PR
O

JE
C

T

LA
ST

 S
AV

ED
12

/3
/2

02
0 

6:
01

 P
M

PL
O

TT
ED

 B
Y

LO
C

KW
O

O
D

, L
O

R
IE

N
 1

2/
3/

20
20

 6
:0

5 
PM

D
W

G
 P

AT
H

K:
\d

al
_c

iv
il\

06
92

69
80

1-
27

00
 a

ve
nu

e 
k 

in
du

st
ria

l\4
_D

es
ig

n\
C

AD
\p

la
ns

he
et

s\
La

nd
sc

ap
e

D
W

G
 N

AM
E

LP
 1

.0
0.

dw
g

Te
xa

s
G

ra
nd

 P
ra

iri
e

©
 2

02
0 

KI
M

LE
Y-

H
O

R
N

 A
N

D
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TE
S,

 IN
C

.

PH
O

N
E:

 9
72

-7
70

-1
30

0 
 F

AX
: 9

72
-2

39
-3

82
0

W
W

W
.K

IM
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
.C

O
M

  T
X 

F-
92

8

13
45

5 
N

O
EL

 R
O

AD
, T

W
O

 G
AL

LE
R

IA
 O

FF
IC

E 
TO

W
ER

SU
IT

E 
70

0,
 D

AL
LA

S,
 T

X 
75

24
0

27
00

 A
VE

N
U

E 
K

IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L
PR

EP
AR

ED
 F

O
R

  C
A 

VE
N

TU
R

ES

N
O

VE
M

BE
R

 2
02

0

06
92

69
80

1

AM
P

AM
P

LL
L

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E 

PL
AN

LP 1.00

M
AT

CH
LI

NE
 S

HE
ET

 L
P 

1.
01

N
O

R
TH

40

SUNNYVALE

D
U

N
C

AN
 P

ER
R

Y

M
ER

IT
AG

E

11
1T

H

BURNEY

C
O

R
PO

R
AT

E 
W

C
O

R
PO

R
AT

E 
E

JO
HN

SO
N

AVE N

AVE M

SANTERRE

10
9T

H

AVENUE K

FOUNTAIN

AVENUE H

W
IL

D 
RO

SE

W
ES

T 
PA

R
K

GREENVIEW

PLAZA

AVE J EAST

10
7T

H

111TH

VICINITY MAP NOT TO SCALE

SITE

NORTH

AVENUE K

NOTES:
1. AN IRRIGATOR SHALL PREPARE AN IRRIGATION PLAN FOR EACH SITE WHERE A

NEW IRRIGATION SYSTEM WILL BE INSTALLED. A PAPER OR ELECTRONIC COPY
OF THE IRRIGATION PLAN MUST BE ON SITE AT ALL TIMES DURING THE
INSTALLATION OF THE IRRIGATION SYSTEM.

2. THE IRRIGATION PLAN MUST INCLUDE COMPLETE COVERAGE OF THE AREA TO BE
IRRIGATED. IF A SYSTEM DOES NOT PROVIDE COMPLETE COVERAGE OF THE
AREA TO BE IRRIGATED, IT MUST BE NOTED ON THE IRRIGATION PLAN.

3. ALL IRRIGATION PLANS USED FOR CONSTRUCTION MUST INCLUDE ALL
INFORMATION SPECIFIED UNDER THE IRRIGATION PLAN DESIGN: MINIMUM
STANDARDS NOTED UNDER ARTICLE 8.4.1.7 OF THE GRAND PRAIRIE UNIFIED
DEVELOPMENT CODE.

4. REF. SHEET LP 3.00 FOR FULL PLANT SCHEDULE
5. REF. SHEET LP 3.00 FOR FULL CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE CODE LANDSCAPE

REQUIREMENTS.

WAREHOUSE AT 2700 E
AVENUE K

LOT 1, BLOCK 1
BEING A REPLAT OF

LOT 1, BLOCK 6 SAFETY NET ADDITION
AND UNPLATTED LAND

 BEING 26.4583 ACRES IN THE
M.K. SELVIDGE SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 1423

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TARRANT COUNTY, TEXAS
CASE NO. S201201

EXHIBIT C - LANDSCAPE PLAN



Th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t, 
to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 th

e 
co

nc
ep

ts
 a

nd
 d

es
ig

ns
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 h
er

ei
n,

 a
s 

an
 in

st
ru

m
en

t o
f s

er
vi

ce
, i

s 
in

te
nd

ed
 o

nl
y 

fo
r t

he
 s

pe
ci

fic
 p

ur
po

se
 a

nd
 c

lie
nt

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 it
 w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d.

 R
eu

se
 o

f a
nd

 im
pr

op
er

 re
lia

nc
e 

on
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t w

ith
ou

t w
rit

te
n 

au
th

or
iz

at
io

n 
an

d 
ad

ap
ta

tio
n 

by
 K

im
le

y-
H

or
n 

an
d 

As
so

ci
at

es
, I

nc
. s

ha
ll 

be
 w

ith
ou

t l
ia

bi
lit

y 
to

 K
im

le
y-

H
or

n 
an

d 
As

so
ci

at
es

, I
nc

.

BY

D
AT

E

AS
 S

H
O

W
N

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

N
o.

D
AT

E

SHEET NUMBER

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y

SC
AL

E

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y

KH
A 

PR
O

JE
C

T

LA
ST

 S
AV

ED
12

/3
/2

02
0 

6:
01

 P
M

PL
O

TT
ED

 B
Y

LO
C

KW
O

O
D

, L
O

R
IE

N
 1

2/
3/

20
20

 6
:0

5 
PM

D
W

G
 P

AT
H

K:
\d

al
_c

iv
il\

06
92

69
80

1-
27

00
 a

ve
nu

e 
k 

in
du

st
ria

l\4
_D

es
ig

n\
C

AD
\p

la
ns

he
et

s\
La

nd
sc

ap
e

D
W

G
 N

AM
E

LP
 1

.0
0.

dw
g

Te
xa

s
G

ra
nd

 P
ra

iri
e

©
 2

02
0 

KI
M

LE
Y-

H
O

R
N

 A
N

D
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TE
S,

 IN
C

.

PH
O

N
E:

 9
72

-7
70

-1
30

0 
 F

AX
: 9

72
-2

39
-3

82
0

W
W

W
.K

IM
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
.C

O
M

  T
X 

F-
92

8

13
45

5 
N

O
EL

 R
O

AD
, T

W
O

 G
AL

LE
R

IA
 O

FF
IC

E 
TO

W
ER

SU
IT

E 
70

0,
 D

AL
LA

S,
 T

X 
75

24
0

27
00

 A
VE

N
U

E 
K

IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L
PR

EP
AR

ED
 F

O
R

  C
A 

VE
N

TU
R

ES

N
O

VE
M

BE
R

 2
02

0

06
92

69
80

1

AM
P

AM
P

LL
L

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E 

PL
AN

LP 1.01

M
AT

CH
LI

NE
 S

HE
ET

 L
P 

1.
00

N
O

R
TH

SUNNYVALE

D
U

N
C

AN
 P

ER
R

Y

M
ER

IT
AG

E

11
1T

H

BURNEY

C
O

R
PO

R
AT

E 
W

C
O

R
PO

R
AT

E 
E

JO
HN

SO
N

AVE N

AVE M

SANTERRE

10
9T

H

AVENUE K

FOUNTAIN

AVENUE H

W
IL

D 
RO

SE

W
ES

T 
PA

R
K

GREENVIEW

PLAZA

AVE J EAST

10
7T

H

111TH

VICINITY MAP NOT TO SCALE

SITE

NORTH

AVENUE K

NOTES:
1. AN IRRIGATOR SHALL PREPARE AN IRRIGATION PLAN FOR EACH SITE WHERE A

NEW IRRIGATION SYSTEM WILL BE INSTALLED. A PAPER OR ELECTRONIC COPY
OF THE IRRIGATION PLAN MUST BE ON SITE AT ALL TIMES DURING THE
INSTALLATION OF THE IRRIGATION SYSTEM.

2. THE IRRIGATION PLAN MUST INCLUDE COMPLETE COVERAGE OF THE AREA TO BE
IRRIGATED. IF A SYSTEM DOES NOT PROVIDE COMPLETE COVERAGE OF THE
AREA TO BE IRRIGATED, IT MUST BE NOTED ON THE IRRIGATION PLAN.

3. ALL IRRIGATION PLANS USED FOR CONSTRUCTION MUST INCLUDE ALL
INFORMATION SPECIFIED UNDER THE IRRIGATION PLAN DESIGN: MINIMUM
STANDARDS NOTED UNDER ARTICLE 8.4.1.7 OF THE GRAND PRAIRIE UNIFIED
DEVELOPMENT CODE.

4. REF. SHEET LP 3.00 FOR FULL PLANT SCHEDULE
5. REF. SHEET LP 3.00 FOR FULL CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE CODE LANDSCAPE

REQUIREMENTS.

WAREHOUSE AT 2700 E
AVENUE K

LOT 1, BLOCK 1
BEING A REPLAT OF

LOT 1, BLOCK 6 SAFETY NET ADDITION
AND UNPLATTED LAND

 BEING 26.4583 ACRES IN THE
M.K. SELVIDGE SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 1423

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TARRANT COUNTY, TEXAS
CASE NO. S201201

EXHIBIT C - LANDSCAPE PLAN



TREES CODE QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME CONT CAL HT REMARKS

UP 5 ULMUS PARVIFOLIA SEMPERVIRENDS `ATHENA` / ATHENA LACEBARK ELM B & B 3" CAL. 12` - 14` HT. STRONG CENTRAL LEADER, FULL

UC 19 ULMUS CRASSIFOLIA / CEDAR ELM B & B 3.5" CAL. 14`-16` HT. STRONG CENTRAL LEADER, FULL

VA 15 VITEX AGNUS-CASTUS / CHASTE TREE CONT. 3" CAL. 8` - 10` HT. MULTI-TRUNK (3-5 STEMS), FULL

PC 11 PISTACIA CHINENSIS / CHINESE PISTACHE B & B 3" CAL. 10`-12` HT. STRONG CENTRAL LEADER, FULL

QS 21 QUERCUS SHUMARDII / SHUMARD RED OAK B & B 3.5" CAL. 14`-16` HT. STRONG, CENTRAL LEADER, FULL

CC 16 CERCIS CANADENSIS `TEXENSIS` / TEXAS REDBUD B & B 3" CAL. 10`-12` HT. FULL

IV 31 ILEX VOMITORIA / YAUPON HOLLY CONT. 3" CAL. 12` - 14` HT. FULL

SHRUBS CODE QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME CONT SIZE SPACING REMARKS

LF 215 LEUCOPHYLLUM FRUTESCENS `COMPACTA` / COMPACT TEXAS RANGER CONT. 24" HT. 36" O.C. FULL AND MATCHING

IC 71 ILEX CORNUTA `BURFORDII NANA` / DWARF BURFORD HOLLY CONT. 24" HT. 36" O.C. FULL AND MATCHING

MP 100 MYRICA PUSILLA / DWARF SOUTHERN WAX MYRTLE CONT. 24" HT. 36" O.C. FULL AND MATCHING

LG 225 LIRIOPE GIGANTEA / GIANT LIRIOPE CONT. 24" HT. 36" O.C. FULL AND MATCHING

AE 72 ABELIA X GRANDIFLORA `EDWARD GOUCHER` / GLOSSY ABELIA CONT. 24" HT. 36" O.C. FULL AND MATCHING

RI 48 RAPHIOLEPIS INDICA `CLARA` / INDIAN HAWTHORN CONT. 24" HT. 36" O.C. FULL AND MATCHING

ML 156 MUHLENBERGIA LINDHEIMERI / LINDHEIMER`S MUHLY CONT. 24" HT. 36" O.C. FULL AND MATCHING

LC 231 LOROPETALUM CHINENSE `PURPLE DIAMOND` / PURPLE DIAMOND LOROPETALUM CONT. 24" HT. 36" O.C. FULL AND MATCHING

JC 42 JUNIPERUS CONFERTA / SHORE JUNIPER CONT. 18" HT. 36" O.C. FULL AND MATCHING

GROUND COVERS CODE QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME ROOT SIZE SPACING REMARKS

LM 625 LIRIOPE MUSCARI `BIG BLUE` / BIG BLUE LILY TURF 1 GAL 9"-12" HT 18" O.C. 5 BIB MIN, FULL

SOD 7,392 SF CYNODON DACTYLON / COMMON BERMUDA GRASS N/A N/A N/A SOD TO HAVE TIGHT, SAND FILLED JOINTS AND BE FREE OF WEEDS.

EF 219 EUONYMUS FORTUNEI `COLORATUS` / PURPLE WINTERCREEPER 4" POT 3-5 RUNNERS, 12"-18" SPR. 18" O.C.

PLANT SCHEDULE

PLAN

ARBOR STAKE TYP., INSTALL 4"
MIN. FROM EDGE OF ROOTBALL.

ROOTBALL

TREE TRUNK

TREE CANOPY

6"

3 X ROOTBALL WIDTH

4" MULCH LAYER. PLACE NO MORE THAN 1" OF MULCH ON
TOP OF ROOTBALL (REF. PLANTING SPECIFICATIONS FOR
MULCH TYPE)

4" HIGH x 8" WIDE BERM SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED AROUND
THE ROOTBALL. BERM SHALL BEGIN AT ROOTBALL PERIPHERY,
FIRMLY COMPACTED.

6" DIA. CLEAR OF MULCH AT ROOT FLARE. IF
REQUIRED, REMOVE EXCESS SOIL ON TOP OF
ROOTBALL (MAX 2") AND EXPOSE TREE ROOT FLARE.

ORIGINAL GRADE.

SCARIFY BOTTOM AND LOOSEN SIDES OF PLANTING PIT

NATIVE LOOSENED PLANTING SOIL BACKFILL. DIG AND TURN
THE SOIL TO REDUCE COMPACTION TO THE AREA AND
DEPTH SHOWN. LIGHTLY TAMP SOIL AROUND ROOTBALL IN
6" LIFTS TO BRACE TREE. DO NOT OVER COMPACT. IN THE
TOP 1/3 DEPTH OF BACK FILL, MIX 1/2" LAYER OF COMPOST
INTO EACH 6" LIFT OF BACKFILL. WHEN THE PLANTING HOLE
HAS BEEN BACKFILLED, POUR WATER AROUND ROOTBALL
TO SETTLE THE SOIL. ADD ADDITIONAL SOIL AS NEEDED TO
MEET REQUIRED FINISH GRADE.

TRUNK/ROOTBALL TO BE CENTERED AND
PLUMB/LEVEL IN PLANTING PIT

UNDISTURBED NATIVE SOIL

MINIMUM

SECTION

FINISHED GRADE.

4"

NOTES:
1. REF. PLANTING AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.
2. PERFORM PERCOLATION TEST PER PLANTING

SPECIFICATIONS. IF SUBSURFACE DRAINAGE
PROBLEMS ARE ENCOUNTERED, NOTIFY
PROJECT LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.

8' DIA. MULCH RING (MIN.) FOR INDIVIDUAL
TREES NOT IN LANDSCAPE BEDS

TYPICAL TREE PLANTING AScale: NTS

6"8"

SET ROOTBALL ON UNDISTURBED
STABLE SUBSOIL SO THAT TOP OF
ROOTBALL IS 2-3" ABOVE FINISHED
GRADE. STABILIZE/PLUMB TREE BY
TAMPING SOIL FIRMLY AROUND THE
LOWER 1/4 OF THE ROOTBALL.
� FOR CONTAINER STOCK: REMOVE

ENTIRE CONTAINER.
� FOR B&B STOCK: COMPLETELY

REMOVE TOP 1/2 OF THE ENTIRE
WIRE BASKET. COMPLETELY
REMOVE ALL BURLAP/SYNTHETIC
FABRICS AND STRAPPING.

3 X
ROOTBALL WIDTH

2-3" MULCH LAYER

4" HIGH x 8" WIDE BERM SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED
AROUND THE ROOT  BALL. BERM SHALL BEGIN AT
ROOT BALL PERIPHERY, FIRMLY COMPACTED.

FINISHED GRADE.

UNDISTURBED NATIVE SOIL

SCARIFY BOTTOM AND SIDES OF PLANTING PIT

SET ROOTBALL ON UNDISTURBED STABLE SUBSOIL

LOOSENED SOIL. DIG AND TURN THE SOIL TO REDUCE THE
COMPACTION TO THE AREA AND DEPTH SHOWN. LIGHTLY
TAMP SOIL AROUND ROOTBALL IN 6" LIFTS TO BRACE
SHRUB. DO NOT OVER COMPACT. WHEN PLANTING HOLE
HAS BEEN BACKFILLED, POUR WATER AROUND ROOTBALL
TO SETTLE THE SOIL. ADD ADDITIONAL SOIL AS NEEDED
TO MEET REQUIRED FINISH GRADE.

PLANT ROOTBALL TO BE INSTALLED CENTERED
AND PLUMB/LEVEL IN PLANTING PIT

NOTES:
1. WHEN SHRUBS MASSED TOGETHER WITH GROUNDCOVER BEDS, ALL SOIL IN BED TO BE AMENDED. WHEN

SHRUBS ARE USED IN MASSES, PRUNE ALL SHRUBS TO ACHIEVE UNIFORM MASS/HEIGHT.
2. REF. TO PLANT SCHEDULE AND PLANTING PLANS FOR SPACING/LAYOUT.

SECTION

BEST FACE OF SHRUB TO FACE
FRONT OF PLANTING BED

PLAN

4"

FRONT OF BED
EQ.

EQ.

SHRUBS TO BE TRIANGULARLY SPACED UNLESS
SHOWN DIFFERENTLY ON PLANTING PLANS.

SHRUB
LEAVE 6" OF TOP OF ROOTBALL EXPOSED
AROUND BASE OF STEMS.

TYPICAL SHRUB PLANTING CScale: NTS

2-3" MULCH LAYER

4" HIGH x 8" WIDE BERM SHALL BE
CONSTRUCTED AROUND EDGE OF BED,
FIRMLY COMPACTED (ALONG
ADJACENT TURF AREAS IF NO
EDGING/PAVEMENT SHOWN ON PLANS)

FINISHED GRADE

UNDISTURBED NATIVE SOIL

MODIFIED SOIL (ENTIRE BED). DEPTH VARIES. LIGHTLY TAMP
SOIL AROUND ROOTBALL IN 6" LIFTS TO BRACE PLANT. DO
NOT OVER COMPACT. WHEN PLANTING HOLE HAS BEEN
BACKFILLED, POUR WATER AROUND ROOTBALL TO SETTLE
THE SOIL. ADD ADDITIONAL SOIL AS REQUIRED TO MEET
REQUIRED FINISH GRADE

SECTION

SCARIFY BOTTOM AND SIDES OF
 PLANTING PIT

BEST FACE OF PLANT TO FACE
FRONT OF PLANTING BED

PLAN

NOTES:
1. REF. PLANT SCHEDULE AND PLANTING

PLANS FOR SPACING/LAYOUT.

FRONT OF BED

4"
EQ.

EQ.

GROUNDCOVER PLANTS TO BE
TRIANGULARLY SPACED UNLESS SHOWN
DIFFERENTLY ON PLANTING PLANS.

GROUNDCOVER PLANT

TYPICAL GROUNDCOVER PLANTING DScale: NTS

1"

BScale: 1 1/2" = 1'-0"

METAL EDGING (AT TURF & LANDSCAPE BED)

MULCH LAYER

AMENDED PLANTING SOIL

METAL EDGING STAKES REF.
PLANTING SPECIFICATIONS

UNDISTURBED NATIVE SOIL

TURF (SOD) LANDSCAPE BED

TOPSOIL

METAL EDGING,
REF. PLANTING
SPECIFICAITONS

MIN. 1/2 MATURE
SHRUB WIDTH

2'-0"
MIN. CLEAR

SHRUB PLANTING, REF.
DETAIL B THIS SHEET

BUILDING

SLOPE AWAY
PER GRADING

PLAN

SHRUB PLANTING AT BUILDING FACE EScale: NTS

CL

Th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t, 
to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 th

e 
co

nc
ep

ts
 a

nd
 d

es
ig

ns
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 h
er

ei
n,

 a
s 

an
 in

st
ru

m
en

t o
f s

er
vi

ce
, i

s 
in

te
nd

ed
 o

nl
y 

fo
r t

he
 s

pe
ci

fic
 p

ur
po

se
 a

nd
 c

lie
nt

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 it
 w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d.

 R
eu

se
 o

f a
nd

 im
pr

op
er

 re
lia

nc
e 

on
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t w

ith
ou

t w
rit

te
n 

au
th

or
iz

at
io

n 
an

d 
ad

ap
ta

tio
n 

by
 K

im
le

y-
H

or
n 

an
d 

As
so

ci
at

es
, I

nc
. s

ha
ll 

be
 w

ith
ou

t l
ia

bi
lit

y 
to

 K
im

le
y-

H
or

n 
an

d 
As

so
ci

at
es

, I
nc

.

BY

D
AT

E

AS
 S

H
O

W
N

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

N
o.

D
AT

E

SHEET NUMBER

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y

SC
AL

E

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y

KH
A 

PR
O

JE
C

T

LA
ST

 S
AV

ED
12

/1
/2

02
0 

11
:0

1 
AM

PL
O

TT
ED

 B
Y

LO
C

KW
O

O
D

, L
O

R
IE

N
 1

2/
3/

20
20

 6
:0

5 
PM

D
W

G
 P

AT
H

K:
\d

al
_c

iv
il\

06
92

69
80

1-
27

00
 a

ve
nu

e 
k 

in
du

st
ria

l\4
_D

es
ig

n\
C

AD
\p

la
ns

he
et

s\
La

nd
sc

ap
e

D
W

G
 N

AM
E

LP
 3

.0
0.

dw
g

Te
xa

s
G

ra
nd

 P
ra

iri
e

©
 2

02
0 

KI
M

LE
Y-

H
O

R
N

 A
N

D
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TE
S,

 IN
C

.

PH
O

N
E:

 9
72

-7
70

-1
30

0 
 F

AX
: 9

72
-2

39
-3

82
0

W
W

W
.K

IM
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
.C

O
M

  T
X 

F-
92

8

13
45

5 
N

O
EL

 R
O

AD
, T

W
O

 G
AL

LE
R

IA
 O

FF
IC

E 
TO

W
ER

SU
IT

E 
70

0,
 D

AL
LA

S,
 T

X 
75

24
0

27
00

 A
VE

N
U

E 
K

IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L
PR

EP
AR

ED
 F

O
R

  C
A 

VE
N

TU
R

ES

N
O

VE
M

BE
R

 2
02

0

06
92

69
80

1

AM
P

AM
P

LL
L

PL
AN

TI
N

G
 D

ET
AI

LS

LP 3.00

PLANTING NOTES:
1. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING THE LOCATIONS OF ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES,

PIPES, STRUCTURES, AND LINE RUNS IN THE FIELD PRIOR TO THE INSTALLATION OF ANY PLANT MATERIAL.

2. IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO ADVISE THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OF ANY CONDITION
FOUND ON SITE WHICH PERMITS INSTALLATION AS SHOWN ON THESE DRAWINGS.

3. ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE MAINTAINED IN A HEALTHY, GROWING CONDITION AND MUST BE REPLACED
WITHIN 30 DAYS WITH PLANT MATERIAL OF THE SAME VARIETY AND SIZE IF DAMAGED, DESTROYED, OR
REMOVED.

4. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR FINE GRADING AND REMOVAL OF DEBRIS PRIOR TO PLANTING IN
ALL AREAS.

5. FINAL FINISH GRADING SHALL BE REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.  THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY ADDITIONAL TOPSOIL REQUIRED TO CREATE A SMOOTH
CONDITION PRIOR TO PLANTING.

6. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL PLANT QUANTITIES.  ALL PLANT QUANTITIES ARE LISTED FOR INFORMATION
PURPOSES ONLY.  IT IS THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO PROVIDE FULL COVERAGE IN ALL PLANTING
AREAS AS SHOWN ON THE PLANS AND SPECIFIED IN THE PLANT SCHEDULE.

7. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE STEEL EDGING BETWEEN ALL PLANTING BEDS AND TURF AREAS UNLESS
OTHERWISE INDICATED ON THE DRAWINGS.

8. ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL CONFORM TO THE SPECIFICATIONS GIVEN IN THE PLANT SCHEDULE, PLANTING
DETAILS, AND PLANTING SPECIFICATIONS.

9. ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL MEET INDUSTRY STANDARDS AS INDICATED IN THE CURRENT EDITION OF THE
AMERICAN STANDARD FOR NURSERY STOCK (ANSI Z60.1).

10.  ALL PLANT MATERIAL SUBSTITUTIONS SHALL BE APPROVED BY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO
PURCHASE.

11.  CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL COORDINATION WITH OTHER CONTRACTORS ON SITE AS REQUIRED
TO ACCOMPLISH ALL PLANTING OPERATIONS.

12.  ALL PLANTING AREAS SHALL RECEIVED SOIL AMENDMENTS AS NOTED ON THE PLANTING SOIL PLANS,
DETAILS, AND SPECIFICATIONS.

13.  PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE PRUNED PER PLANTING SPECIFICATIONS UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED ON
DRAWINGS.

14.  PLANTING AREAS SHALL BE KEPT FREE OF TRASH, WEEDS, DEBRIS, AND DEAD PLANT MATERIAL.

15.  ALL LIME STABILIZED SOIL AND INORGANIC SELECT FILL FOR BUILDING OR PAVING CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE
REMOVED FROM ALL PLANTING BEDS TO A MINIMUM DEPTH OF 24” UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED ON PLANTING
SOILS PLANS.  REPLACE MATERIAL REMOVED WITH IMPORTED TOPSOIL.

16.  TREES OVERHANGING PEDESTRIAN WALKS SHALL BE LIMBED TO A HEIGHT OF SEVEN FEET (7').  TREE
OVERHANGING PUBLIC STREETS AND FIRELANES SHALL BE LIMBED TO A HEIGHT OF FOURTEEN FEET (14').

17.  TREES PLANTED NEXT TO ACCESSIBLE ROUTES AND ACCESSIBLE AREAS SHALL BE LIMBED TO 7'6” (80” MIN.)
AFF.

18.  ALL PROPSED TREES SHALL BE STAKED WITH AN AT-GRADE ROOT BALL SECURING SYSTEM AS SHOWN IN
THE PLANTING DETAILS AND SPECIFICATIONS.  NO ABOVE-GROUND STAKING SYSTEMS, GUY WIRES/WIRES,
HOSES, STRAPS, POSTS (METAL OR WOOD) SHALL BE ALLOWED UNLESS AURTHORIZED IN WRITING BY THE
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.

EXHIBIT C - LANDSCAPE PLAN



Th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t, 
to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 th

e 
co

nc
ep

ts
 a

nd
 d

es
ig

ns
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 h
er

ei
n,

 a
s 

an
 in

st
ru

m
en

t o
f s

er
vi

ce
, i

s 
in

te
nd

ed
 o

nl
y 

fo
r t

he
 s

pe
ci

fic
 p

ur
po

se
 a

nd
 c

lie
nt

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 it
 w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d.

 R
eu

se
 o

f a
nd

 im
pr

op
er

 re
lia

nc
e 

on
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t w

ith
ou

t w
rit

te
n 

au
th

or
iz

at
io

n 
an

d 
ad

ap
ta

tio
n 

by
 K

im
le

y-
H

or
n 

an
d 

As
so

ci
at

es
, I

nc
. s

ha
ll 

be
 w

ith
ou

t l
ia

bi
lit

y 
to

 K
im

le
y-

H
or

n 
an

d 
As

so
ci

at
es

, I
nc

.

BY

D
AT

E

AS
 S

H
O

W
N

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

N
o.

D
AT

E

SHEET NUMBER

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y

SC
AL

E

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y

KH
A 

PR
O

JE
C

T

LA
ST

 S
AV

ED
12

/3
/2

02
0 

6:
00

 P
M

PL
O

TT
ED

 B
Y

LO
C

KW
O

O
D

, L
O

R
IE

N
 1

2/
3/

20
20

 6
:0

4 
PM

D
W

G
 P

AT
H

K:
\d

al
_c

iv
il\

06
92

69
80

1-
27

00
 a

ve
nu

e 
k 

in
du

st
ria

l\4
_D

es
ig

n\
C

AD
\p

la
ns

he
et

s\
La

nd
sc

ap
e

D
W

G
 N

AM
E

TP
 1

.0
0.

dw
g

Te
xa

s
G

ra
nd

 P
ra

iri
e

©
 2

02
0 

KI
M

LE
Y-

H
O

R
N

 A
N

D
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TE
S,

 IN
C

.

PH
O

N
E:

 9
72

-7
70

-1
30

0 
 F

AX
: 9

72
-2

39
-3

82
0

W
W

W
.K

IM
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
.C

O
M

  T
X 

F-
92

8

13
45

5 
N

O
EL

 R
O

AD
, T

W
O

 G
AL

LE
R

IA
 O

FF
IC

E 
TO

W
ER

SU
IT

E 
70

0,
 D

AL
LA

S,
 T

X 
75

24
0

27
00

 A
VE

N
U

E 
K

IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L
PR

EP
AR

ED
 F

O
R

  C
A 

VE
N

TU
R

ES

N
O

VE
M

BE
R

 2
02

0

06
92

69
80

1

AM
P

AM
P

LL
L

TR
EE

 P
R

O
TE

C
TI

O
N

 &
R

EM
O

VA
L 

PL
AN

TP 1.00

M
AT

CH
LI

NE
 S

HE
ET

 T
P 

1.
01

N
O

R
TH

40

SUNNYVALE

D
U

N
C

AN
 P

ER
R

Y

M
ER

IT
AG

E

11
1T

H

BURNEY

C
O

R
PO

R
AT

E 
W

C
O

R
PO

R
AT

E 
E

JO
HN

SO
N

AVE N

AVE M

SANTERRE

10
9T

H

AVENUE K

FOUNTAIN

AVENUE H

W
IL

D 
RO

SE

W
ES

T 
PA

R
K

GREENVIEW

PLAZA

AVE J EAST

10
7T

H

111TH

VICINITY MAP NOT TO SCALE

SITE

NORTH

AVENUE K

EXISTING CONTOURS

PROPOSED CONTOURS

TREE PROTECTION FENCE

EXISTING TREE TO BE REMOVED

LEGEND

X

EXISTING TREE TO REMAIN

WAREHOUSE AT 2700 E
AVENUE K

LOT 1, BLOCK 1
BEING A REPLAT OF

LOT 1, BLOCK 6 SAFETY NET ADDITION
AND UNPLATTED LAND

 BEING 26.4583 ACRES IN THE
M.K. SELVIDGE SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 1423

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TARRANT COUNTY, TEXAS
CASE NO. S201201

EXHIBIT D - TREE PRESERVATION/PROTECTION PLAN



Th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t, 
to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 th

e 
co

nc
ep

ts
 a

nd
 d

es
ig

ns
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 h
er

ei
n,

 a
s 

an
 in

st
ru

m
en

t o
f s

er
vi

ce
, i

s 
in

te
nd

ed
 o

nl
y 

fo
r t

he
 s

pe
ci

fic
 p

ur
po

se
 a

nd
 c

lie
nt

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 it
 w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d.

 R
eu

se
 o

f a
nd

 im
pr

op
er

 re
lia

nc
e 

on
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t w

ith
ou

t w
rit

te
n 

au
th

or
iz

at
io

n 
an

d 
ad

ap
ta

tio
n 

by
 K

im
le

y-
H

or
n 

an
d 

As
so

ci
at

es
, I

nc
. s

ha
ll 

be
 w

ith
ou

t l
ia

bi
lit

y 
to

 K
im

le
y-

H
or

n 
an

d 
As

so
ci

at
es

, I
nc

.

BY

D
AT

E

AS
 S

H
O

W
N

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

N
o.

D
AT

E

SHEET NUMBER

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y

SC
AL

E

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y

KH
A 

PR
O

JE
C

T

LA
ST

 S
AV

ED
12

/3
/2

02
0 

6:
00

 P
M

PL
O

TT
ED

 B
Y

LO
C

KW
O

O
D

, L
O

R
IE

N
 1

2/
3/

20
20

 6
:0

4 
PM

D
W

G
 P

AT
H

K:
\d

al
_c

iv
il\

06
92

69
80

1-
27

00
 a

ve
nu

e 
k 

in
du

st
ria

l\4
_D

es
ig

n\
C

AD
\p

la
ns

he
et

s\
La

nd
sc

ap
e

D
W

G
 N

AM
E

TP
 1

.0
0.

dw
g

Te
xa

s
G

ra
nd

 P
ra

iri
e

©
 2

02
0 

KI
M

LE
Y-

H
O

R
N

 A
N

D
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TE
S,

 IN
C

.

PH
O

N
E:

 9
72

-7
70

-1
30

0 
 F

AX
: 9

72
-2

39
-3

82
0

W
W

W
.K

IM
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
.C

O
M

  T
X 

F-
92

8

13
45

5 
N

O
EL

 R
O

AD
, T

W
O

 G
AL

LE
R

IA
 O

FF
IC

E 
TO

W
ER

SU
IT

E 
70

0,
 D

AL
LA

S,
 T

X 
75

24
0

27
00

 A
VE

N
U

E 
K

IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L
PR

EP
AR

ED
 F

O
R

  C
A 

VE
N

TU
R

ES

N
O

VE
M

BE
R

 2
02

0

06
92

69
80

1

AM
P

AM
P

LL
L

TR
EE

 P
R

O
TE

C
TI

O
N

 &
R

EM
O

VA
L 

PL
AN

TP 1.01

N
O

R
TH

40

SUNNYVALE

D
U

N
C

AN
 P

ER
R

Y

M
ER

IT
AG

E

11
1T

H

BURNEY

C
O

R
PO

R
AT

E 
W

C
O

R
PO

R
AT

E 
E

JO
HN

SO
N

AVE N

AVE M

SANTERRE

10
9T

H

AVENUE K

FOUNTAIN

AVENUE H

W
IL

D 
RO

SE

W
ES

T 
PA

R
K

GREENVIEW

PLAZA

AVE J EAST

10
7T

H

111TH

VICINITY MAP NOT TO SCALE

SITE

NORTH

AVENUE K

M
AT

CH
LI

NE
 S

HE
ET

 T
P 

1.
00

EXISTING CONTOURS

PROPOSED CONTOURS

TREE PROTECTION FENCE

EXISTING TREE TO BE REMOVED

LEGEND

X

EXISTING TREE TO REMAIN

WAREHOUSE AT 2700 E
AVENUE K

LOT 1, BLOCK 1
BEING A REPLAT OF

LOT 1, BLOCK 6 SAFETY NET ADDITION
AND UNPLATTED LAND

 BEING 26.4583 ACRES IN THE
M.K. SELVIDGE SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 1423

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TARRANT COUNTY, TEXAS
CASE NO. S201201

EXHIBIT D - TREE PRESERVATION/PROTECTION PLAN



LEVEL 01
0"

PARAPET A
46' - 0"

PARAPET B
43' - 6"

A B C D E F G

CLR HT
36' - 0"

60' - 0" 50' - 0" 50' - 0" 50' - 0" 50' - 0" 50' - 0"

310' - 0"
PARAPET C

48' - 6"

G.1

15' - 0"

LEVEL 01
0"

PARAPET A
46' - 0"

PARAPET B
43' - 6"

ABCDEFG

PARAPET C
48' - 6"

G.1

60' - 0"50' - 0"50' - 0"50' - 0"50' - 0"50' - 0"

310' - 0"

15' - 0"

LEVEL 01
0"

PARAPET A
46' - 0"

PARAPET B
43' - 6"

TRUCK COURT
-4' - 0"

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

37' - 0" 56' - 0" 56' - 0" 56' - 0" 56' - 0" 56' - 0" 56' - 0" 56' - 0" 56' - 0" 56' - 0" 56' - 0"

13

634' - 0"

37' - 0"

LEVEL 01
0"

PARAPET A
46' - 0"

PARAPET B
43' - 6"

123456789101112

PARAPET C
48' - 6"

37' - 0" 56' - 0" 56' - 0" 56' - 0" 56' - 0" 56' - 0" 56' - 0" 56' - 0" 56' - 0" 56' - 0" 56' - 0" 37' - 0"

13

634' - 0"

TEXASHOUSTON

SCALE:

*PRELIMINARY NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, PERMIT, OR REGULATORY APPROVAL. *RENDERING IS REPRESENTATIVE OF DESIGN INTENT ONLY.  IT IS NOT A PHOTOREALISTIC REPRESENTATION OF ACTUAL MATERIALS PROPOSED AND SHOULD BE CONSIDERED PRELIMINARY AT ALL STAGES.
*ALL BUILDING AREAS ARE APPROXIMATE UNTIL BUILDING FOOTPRINT / ENTRY DESIGNS ARE FINALIZED.

A PROJECT FOR

 1" = 30'-0"

201190

OVERALL ELEVATIONS
OVERALL

CAV
AVE K & GSW PRKWY

11/02/20 Author

SCALE:  1" = 30'-0"

SOUTH ELEVATION
SCALE:  1" = 30'-0"

NORTH ELEVATION

SCALE:  1" = 30'-0"

WEST ELEVATION

SCALE:  1" = 30'-0"

EAST ELEVATION

S201201

DIRECTION

NORTH
SOUTH
EAST
WEST

TOTAL AREA 

15,077 SF
15,077 SF
32,845 SF
27,500

TOTAL OPENINGS 

1,333 SF
1,333 SF
4,447 SF
4,231 SF

TOTAL CANOPY 

52'-7"
52'-7"
243'
0'

CANOPY % 

16.7%
16.7%
38.3%
0%

TOTAL GLASS

1,279 SF
1,279 SF
4,338 SF
775 SF

GLASS % 

8.5%
8.5%
13.2 %
2.8%

TOTAL ACCENT 

9,184 SF
9,184 SF
17,340 SF
366 SF

ACCENT % 

60.9%
60.9%
52.7%
1.3%

TILTWALL W/ REVEALS 

4,642 SF
4,642 SF
10,776 SF
22,903

MASONRY 

100%
100%
100%
100%

MEETS 

YES
YES
YES
YES

FACADE

NORTH
SOUTH
EAST
WEST

TYPE 

SECONDARY
PRIMARY
PRIMARY
SECONDARY

A

YES
YES
YES
YES

MEETS 

YES
YES
YES
YES

BUILDING MATERIALS TABLE

BUILDING DETAIL ELEMENTS
B

NO
YES
YES
NO

C

NO
NO
NO
NO

D

YES
NO
NO
YES

E

YES
YES

F

NO
NO

G

NO
NO

H

NO
NO

I

NO
NO

TOTAL ELEMENTS 

2
3
3
2

EXHIBIT E - EXTERIOR ELEVATION PLAN



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10680 Name: S201202 - Prairie Modern Apartments

Status:Type: Agenda Item Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:12/7/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:12/14/2020

Title: S201202 - Site Plan - Prairie Modern Apartments (City Council District 1). Site Plan for Prairie Modern
Apartments, which includes 272 multi-family units in one building with a five-story parking garage on
5.355 acres. Legally described as Tract 6, Elizabeth Gray Survey, Abstract No. 517, Page 215, City of
Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, and zoned PD-388. Generally located east of State Highway 161
and north of Dickey Road and within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Site Plan.pdf

Exhibit C - Landscape Plans.pdf

Exhibit D - Building Elevations.pdf

Exhibit E - Appendix W Checklist.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza, Executive Assistant

Title
S201202 - Site Plan - Prairie Modern Apartments (City Council District 1). Site Plan for Prairie Modern
Apartments, which includes 272 multi-family units in one building with a five-story parking garage on 5.355
acres. Legally described as Tract 6, Elizabeth Gray Survey, Abstract No. 517, Page 215, City of Grand Prairie,
Dallas County, Texas, and zoned PD-388. Generally located east of State Highway 161 and north of Dickey
Road and within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District.

Presenter
Jonathan Tooley, Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
SUMMARY:

Site Plan for Prairie Modern Apartments, which includes 272 multi-family units in one building with a five-
story parking garage on 5.355 acres. Legally described as Tract 6, Elizabeth Gray Survey, Abstract No. 517,
Page 215, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, and zoned PD-388. Generally located east of State

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 12/10/2020Page 1 of 5

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10680, Version: 1

Highway 161 and north of Dickey Road and within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The applicant intends to construct a multi-family development of 272 units in one building with a five-story
parking garage on 5.355 acres. Any multi-family development or development in a planned development
district or overlay district requires City Council approval of a Site Plan. Development at this location requires
site plan approval by City Council because the property is for multi-family use, zoned PD-388, and within the
SH-161 Corridor Overlay District.

ADJACENT LAND USES:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Zoning and Land Use

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North PD-12, PD-175 Undeveloped, Senior Living Apartments

South Commercial Undeveloped

West PD-13 SH-161

East PD-12 Undeveloped

HISTORY:

· Final Plat application for Prairie Modern Apartments Addition to create one multi-family and one
commercial lot totaling 6.209 acres is under concurrent review (Case Number P201203).

· Preliminary Plat application for Prairie Modern Apartments Addition to create one multi-family and one
commercial lot totaling 6.209 acres is under concurrent review (Case Number P201202).

· April 21, 2020: City Council approved a zoning change and concept plan creating Planned
Development-388 District for multi-family and commercial uses (Case Number Z190202/CP190202).

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION:

The 272-unit multi-family development will be accessible from the service road of north bound SH-161 and
additional access points along Dickey Road. A requirement of PD-388 is the installation of an access drive
around the north and east boundaries on the property to allow for proper circulation for the planned
development. The Site Plan depicts one four-story residential building, five-story parking garage, internal Zen
courtyard spaces, amenity center, and a dog park. Other amenities include a cabana pool, outdoor kitchen, and
entertainment areas.

ZONING REQUIREMENTS:

Density and Dimensional Requirements

The subject property is zoned PD-388, with a base zoning of Central Area, for multi-family uses; development
is subject to the standards in PD-388 and Appendix W. The applicant has submitted a Preliminary and Final Plat
that is under concurrent review. The following table evaluates the density and dimensional standards of the
proposed development.

Table 2: Density and Dimensional Requirements
Standard PD-388 Appendix W / UDC Provided Meets?

Max. Density (Units Per Acre) 65 ------ 50.8 Yes

Min. Living Area (SF) ------ 450 650 Yes

One-Bedroom Units (%) ------ ------ 67.7 N/A

Two & Three Bedroom Units (%) ------ ------ 32.3 N/A

Min. Area (SF) ------ 12,000 233,250 Yes

Min. Width (Ft.) ------ 100 481.19 Yes

Min. Depth (Ft.) ------ 120 344 Yes

Maximum Height (Ft.) ------ 70 47.75 Yes

Min. All Setbacks (Ft.) 15 ------ 15 Yes

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 12/10/2020Page 2 of 5

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10680, Version: 1
Standard PD-388 Appendix W / UDC Provided Meets?

Max. Density (Units Per Acre) 65 ------ 50.8 Yes

Min. Living Area (SF) ------ 450 650 Yes

One-Bedroom Units (%) ------ ------ 67.7 N/A

Two & Three Bedroom Units (%) ------ ------ 32.3 N/A

Min. Area (SF) ------ 12,000 233,250 Yes

Min. Width (Ft.) ------ 100 481.19 Yes

Min. Depth (Ft.) ------ 120 344 Yes

Maximum Height (Ft.) ------ 70 47.75 Yes

Min. All Setbacks (Ft.) 15 ------ 15 Yes

Parking

The table below evaluates the parking requirements. The proposal meets the required total, garage, and guest
parking spaces requirements. The site plan depicts a five-story wrap-style parking garage, with resident and
visitor parking. The site plan does not include any carport parking spaces but does provide garage parking
spaces for 93% of the parking spaces. This amount exceeds what is required for garage and carport spaces
combined.

Table 3: Parking Requirements

Standard Required Provided Meets

1.25 Parking Spaces/One-Bedroom230 ------ ------

2 Parking Spaces/Two & Three Bedroom176 ------ ------

Total Parking Spaces 406 440 Yes

Parking Garage Spaces (% of Total)30 93 Yes

Carport (% of Total) 20 0 No

Guest (% of Total) 10 10 Yes

Landscape and Screening

The property is subject to landscape and screening requirements in PD-388, Appendix W, and Article 8 of the
UDC. The property provides open space along the southern portion of the property, along with a dog park. The
proposal does not meet all the requirements of Appendix W. The applicant is proposing no perimeter fence with
gated entry, and has a dumpster enclosure that is located within 20 feet of residentially zoned property. The
table below summarizes these requirements.

Table 4: Landscape Requirements

Standard Required Provided Meets

Landscape Area (SF) 34,985 129,864 Yes

Groundcover (SF) 13,994 86,073 Yes

Trees 70 70 Yes

Shrubs 700 711 Yes

Dumpster Enclosure Masonry enclosure Masonry enclosure Yes

 Perimeter Fence Type II & III None No

Exterior Building Materials

The exterior building materials include stone, fiber cement boards and panels, stucco, concrete, and

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 12/10/2020Page 3 of 5

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10680, Version: 1

architectural metal panel. The building elevations meet the recommendations of Appendix W.

Project Amenities

Appendix W requires multi-family developments to provide amenities from three categories. If developers meet
the exterior requirements of Appendix W, projects only need to meet two of three categories. The applicant is
meeting the amenity requirements of Appendix W.

· Environmentally friendly features.

· High-quality features or designs.

· Technology.

The table below summarize the amenities included in the project.

Table 5: Appendix W Amenities

Category Tier Amenity

Environmentally Friendly Features 1 Drought resistant plantings

Environmentally Friendly Features 1 Electric car charge station

Environmentally Friendly Features 1 High efficiency windows

Environmentally Friendly Features 2 Permeable pavement

Environmentally Friendly Features 2 Eco - friendly roofing material

Environmentally Friendly Features 2 Recycling Program

Environmentally Friendly Features 2 Walking/jogging trails

Environmentally Friendly Features 3 Additional insulation

Environmentally Friendly Features 3 Bicycle Parking

Environmentally Friendly Features 3 Native plantings

Environmentally Friendly Features 3 Outdoor Recreation Spaces with Communal Features

Environmentally Friendly Features 3 Dog Park

High-Quality Features or Designs 1 Granite Countertops

High-Quality Features or Designs 1 Upgraded Woodwork

High-Quality Features or Designs 2 Upgraded Light Fixtures

High-Quality Features or Designs 2 Walk-in Closets

High-Quality Features or Designs 2 Upgraded Bathroom and Kitchen Hardware

High-Quality Features or Designs 2 Full-Size Stainless-Steel Major Appliances

Technology N/A Wi-Fi Internet Access in Common Areas

Technology N/A USB ports

Technology N/A App - Communication

Technology N/A App- Enabled Electronics

Trash Compactor/Dumpster

The site plan depicts a mini trash compactor located in the parking garage and an exterior dumpster to house
dumpster containers for daily pickup. The applicant and Environmental Services Department are working to
mitigate any issues with compactor design and trash capacity. Environmental Services is concerned if the 2-
cubic yard mini compactor, dumpster, and containers will be enough to handle the anticipated trash volume. By
staff calculations, a 30-cubic yard compactor is needed to handle trash volume properly. The use of a
compactor by multi-family projects is not uncommon, but the design of an internal compactor with rollout
dumpsters is new to Grand Prairie. Staff recommends continued cooperation between both parties to mitigate
and resolve any outstanding issues before construction.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 12/10/2020Page 4 of 5

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10680, Version: 1

EXCEPTIONS OR APPEALS:

The applicant is requesting the following variances:

1. Less than 20% carports: Appendix W requires that applicants provide covered parking for 20% of
required parking spaces.

2. No perimeter fence and gated entry: Appendix W requires that multi-family developments contain
perimeter fences with secure entry gates at all entrances to the site. The proposal does not include a
perimeter fence with gated entry. Alternatively, the applicant is proposing to secure all entrances into
the building with all courtyards secured internally.

3. Dumpster located within 20 feet of residentially zoned property. Article 8 requires that dumpster
enclosures not be located within 20 feet of residentially zoned property.

ANALYSIS OF EXCEPTION REQUESTS:

1. Less than 20% carports: Staff is supportive of this request. Due to the apartment’s unique wrap style, the
applicant is incorporating a five-story parking garage to house over 93% of the parking for the site.
Appendix W requires that if the parking garage option is used, it must contain over 50% of the total
required parking. The applicant is exceeding this requirement.

2. No perimeter fence and gated entry: Staff is supportive of the request. The project aims to have a
distinctive urban feel with the building closer to the street. The applicant collaborated with the Police
Department and has proposed key code access to entry points on the exterior of the building. The GPPD
does not object to this request.

3. Dumpster located within 20 feet of residentially zoned property: Staff does not object to the request.
The applicant is using a mini compactor that will be located in the parking garage and will roll out the
dumpsters on pick-up day. Due to the limited space on site (multiple easements), the applicant will need
relief from the dumpster spacing requirement.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval with conditions:

· Prior to submitting plat for City signatures, the applicant must execute, file with the County, and
provide instrument numbers for all easements and agreements that are established with the adjacent
landowner.

· Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant must obtain permits from TxDOT for access to, and
construction within the TXDOT right-of-way.

· Continued coordination with the Police Department to finalize security for the site.

· Continued coordination with Environmental Services Department to resolve any issues with compactor
and dumpster capacity issues.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 12/10/2020Page 5 of 5

powered by Legistar™



Dickey Rd

S H
wy

 16
1 N

b  

S C
ar

rie
r P

kw
y

Sh
aw

ne
e T

rc
S Hwy 161 Svc Nb Rd

SHwy 16 1 Sb

Desco St
Desco Ln

Bennie Ln

Sw 14th St

´
Development Services

(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand PrairieCASE LOCATION MAP
S201203 - Site PlanPrairie Modern Apartments

Exhibit A - Location Map
Page 1 of 1



4

F

T

 0

IN

  

 N

O

 D

IV

IN

G

3

F

T

 0

IN

   N

O

 D

IV

IN

G

3FT 0

IN

   

N

O

 D

IV

IN

G

5

F

T

 0

IN

  

 N

O

 D

IV

IN

G

9

IN

   N

O

 D

IV

IN

G

9

IN

   N

O

 D

IV

IN

G

9IN

   N

O

 D

IV

IN

G

ONLY

ONLY

T

D

D

SP1.1

SITE PLAN

VICINITY MAP

DALLAS COUNTY
MAPSCO: 51 L

PROJECT   LOCATION

NO. DATE REVISION

DESIGN DRAWN DATE SCALE NOTES FILE NO.

PRAIRIE MODERN APARTMENTS
272 UNITS W/ PARKING GARAGE

PR
A

IR
IE

 M
O

D
ER

N
 A

PA
R

TM
EN

TS

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS
LOT 1, BLOCK A; 5.355 ACRES

S201202

CONCRETE
PAVEMENT CONNECTION1

Exhibit B - Site Plan
Page 1 of 1

50.8



   344
°

rotation

4F
T 0

IN
   N

O D
IV

IN
G

3FT 0IN   NO DIVING

3FT 0IN   N
O DIVING

5F
T 0

IN
   N

O D
IV

IN
G

9IN   NO DIVING

9IN   NO DIVING

9IN   NO DIVING

ONLY

ONLY

S 02°08'05" W

132.99'

8'-0"

7
0
'-0

"

8'-0"

7
0
'-0

"

8
'-0

"

70'-0"

8
'-0

"

70'-0"

8
'-0

"

70'-0"

8
'-0

"

70'-0"

LOT 1, BLOCK A
5.354 ACRES
(233,238 SF)

LOT 2, BLOCK
A

0.854 ACRES
(37,209 SF)

N
 0

0
°3

0
'1

7
" W

  
 1

2
3
.0

5
'

N
 0

0
°5

1
'2

5
" E

  
 1

5
2
.0

0
'

N 51°57'55" W
89.60'

N 89°58'56" E
21.47'

S 40°01'04" E   173.45'

N 89°58'56" E   44.37'

Δ=50°00'00"
R=220.00'
L=191.99'
T=102.59'
CB=S 65°01'04" E
CD=185.95'

N
 0

2
°2

1
'4

5
" E

  
 1

5
2
.0

0
'

N
 0

3
°5

2
'0

5
" E

  
 1

5
2
.0

0
'

S 89°25'34" W
59.09'

S 89°25'34" W   343.49'

S
 0

0
°0

1
'0

4
" E

  
 1

9
3
.1

4
'

Δ=50°00'00"
R=280.00'
L=244.35'
T=130.57'
CB=S 65°01'04" E
CD=236.67'

PROP. 15' WATER
EASEMENT

PROP. 15' WATER
EASEMENT

PROP. 15' WATER
EASEMENT

PROP. 15' WATER
EASEMENT

PROP. 24' WATER &
ACCESS EASEMENT

EXIST. 15' WATER
EASEMENT

PROP. 15' WATER
EASEMENT

PROP. 15' WATER
EASEMENT

EXIST. 15' WATER
EASEMENT

PROP.
DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

15' BLDG
SETBACK

15' BLDG
SETBACK

15' BLDG
SETBACK

DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE
INSIDE PARKING GARAGE

100 YEAR
FLOODPLAIN

PROP ACCESS
EASEMENT

PROP. 15' WATER
EASEMENT

PROP 30'
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

PROP 15'
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE

PROP. 30' WATER &
ACCESS EASEMENT

EXISTING TREE
TO REMAIN (TYP.)

NOTESDRAWNDESIGN DATE SCALE FILE NO.

DATENO. REVISION

DATENO. ISSUE

PR
A

IR
IE

 M
O

D
ER

N
 A

PA
R

TM
EN

TS

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

PRAIRIE MODERN APARTMENTS
272 UNITS W/ PARKING GARAGE

LOT 1 (5.35 AC) & LOT 2 (0.85 AC)

OVERALL LANDSCAPE SUBMITTAL PLAN

L1.01
1 OVERALL LANDSCAPE SUBMITTAL PLAN

1" = 40'-0"

DICKEY ROAD

S
TA

TE
 H

IG
H
W

A
Y 

N
O

. 
1
6
1

PROPERTY LINE

PR
O

PE
R
TY

 L
IN

E

PR
O

PE
R
TY

 L
IN

E

PROPERTY LINE

LO
T 

1

LO
T 

2

NOTE - LOT 2 LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS WILL BE CALCULATED WHEN
THE SITE IS DEVELOPED.

S201202

NOTE - SEE SHEET L1.02 FOR PLANT SCHEDULE/KEY
AND GENERAL NOTES

8' X 70' VISIBILITY
TRIANGLE

8' X 70' VISIBILITY
TRIANGLE

8' X 70' VISIBILITY
TRIANGLE 8' X 70' VISIBILITY

TRIANGLE

OVERHEAD UTILITY
POWER POLE

ORNAMENTAL TREES
PLACED TO DUE

OVERHEAD UTILITIES

OVERHEAD UTILITY
POWER POLE

OVERHEAD UTILITY
POWER POLE

PROP. 30' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

DOG PARK

EXISTING TREE TO
REMAIN (TYP.)

Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 1 of 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PK FILE: 4216-19.025

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEC 2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMD

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMW/AMD

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
11/03/2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
1ST CITY SUBMITTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
TX REG. ENGINEERING FIRM F-14439       

AutoCAD SHX Text
TX REG. SURVEYING FIRM LS-10193805

AutoCAD SHX Text
7557 RAMBLER ROAD, SUITE 1400

AutoCAD SHX Text
DALLAS, TX 75231    972.235.3031

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIM REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE DOCUMENTS ARE INTENDED FOR INTERIM REVIEW ONLY AND NOT FOR REGULATORY APPROVAL,PERMITTING, OR CONSTRUCTION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGISTERED LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEXAS REGISTRATION NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
3363

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMBER M. DAVIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
11/20/2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
2ND CITY SUBMITTAL - SITE PLAN UPDATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
12/09/2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
3RD CITY SUBMITTAL - SITE PLAN UPDATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIM REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE DOCUMENTS ARE INTENDED FOR INTERIM REVIEW ONLY AND NOT FOR REGULATORY APPROVAL,PERMITTING, OR CONSTRUCTION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGISTERED LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEXAS REGISTRATION NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
3363

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMBER M. DAVIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AMBER M. DAVIS PACHECO KOCH CONSULTING ENGINEERS 7557 RAMBLER ROAD SUITE 1400 DALLAS. TX 75231 P: 972-235-3031 E: amdavis@pkce.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER NATITEX LTD. 801 WEST FREEWAY, SUITE 810 GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS 75053



1. ALL PLANTS SHALL BE SET OUT FOR APPROVAL BY THE OWNER'S
REPRESENTATIVE PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

2. FINE GRADING SHALL BE PERFORMED IN ALL AREAS TO BE LANDSCAPED. FINE
GRADING SHALL INCLUDE THE REMOVAL OF DEBRIS, ROCKS, ETC. FROM THE
SITE AND INSURE POSITIVE DRAINAGE IN ALL AREAS.

3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL LOCATE ALL UTILITIES AND EASEMENTS IN THE FIELD
PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORK.  CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR
ANY DAMAGE TO UTILITIES DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION.

4. WRITTEN DIMENSIONS SHALL GOVERN OVER SCALED DIMENSIONS.

5. IT IS PREFERABLE THAT NO TREE BE STAKED.  HOWEVER, CONDITIONS AND
PLANT MATERIAL SIZE MAY NECESSITATE STAKING.  THE OWNER'S REP SHALL
DETERMINE IF SUPPORT IS NEEDED AND SHALL DIRECT THE CONTRACTOR
ACCORDINGLY.

6. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REFER TO THE SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION AND REQUIREMENTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE LANDSCAPE AND
ACCESSORIES.

7. ALL PLANT MATERIALS SHALL MEET ANSI Z60.1 STANDARDS FOR CALIPER,
HEIGHT AND ROOT BALL SIZE.  ANY MATERIALS THAT DO NOT MEET OR EXCEED
SUCH STANDARDS SHALL BE REJECTED AND REPLACED AT THE CONTRACTOR'S
EXPENSE.

8. BALLED AND BURLAPPED TREES SHALL HAVE THE TOP HALF OF THE WIRE
BASKET REMOVED.  THE BURLAP SHALL BE REMOVED TO THE GREATEST
EXTENT POSSIBLE, USING A KNIFE TO CUT AND REMOVE THE BOTTOM HALF
UNDER THE WIRE BASKET THAT REMAINS.

9. QUANTITIES ARE SHOWN FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY. CONTRACTOR IS
RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING ALL QUANTITIES.

10. ALL PROPOSED PLANTING SHALL HAVE A FULLY AUTOMATED IRRIGATION
SYSTEM.

PLANTING GENERAL NOTES

TREES QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE/COND. REMARKS

12 PISTACIA CHINENSIS 65 GAL 3" CAL. MIN, SINGLE, STRAIGHT LEADER,
CHINESE PISTACHE MATCHING

6 QUERCUS SHUMARDII 65 GAL 3" CAL. MIN, SINGLE, STRAIGHT LEADER,
SHUMARD RED OAK MATCHING

7 QUERCUS VIRGINIANA `HIGH RISE` 65 GAL 3" CAL. MIN, SINGLE, STRAIGHT LEADER,
HIGH RISE LIVE OAK MATCHING

4 TAXODIUM DISTICHUM 65 GAL 3" CAL. MIN, SINGLE, STRAIGHT LEADER,
BALD CYPRESS MATCHING

4 ULMUS CRASSIFOLIA 65 GAL 3" CAL. MIN, SINGLE, STRAIGHT LEADER,
CEDAR ELM MATCHING

4 ULMUS PARVIFOLIA 65 GAL 3" CAL. MIN, SINGLE, STRAIGHT LEADER,
LACEBARK ELM MATCHING

ORNAMENTAL TREE QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE/COND. REMARKS

14 MAGNOLIA GRANDIFLORA `LITTLE GEM` 30 GAL 3" CAL, MULTI STEM, FULL, MATCHING
LITTLE GEM MAGNOLIA

ORNAMENTAL TREES QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE/COND. REMARKS

7 CERCIS CANADENSIS `TEXENSIS` 30 GAL 3" CAL. MIN, MULTI-LEADER, FULL, MATCHING
EASTERN REDBUD

6 ILEX DECIDUA 30 GAL MULTI-LEADER, FULL, MATCHING
POSSUMHAW HOLLY

4 LAGERSTROEMIA X `NATCHEZ` 30 GAL 3" CAL. MIN, MULTI-TRUNK, FULL, MATCHING
CRAPE MYRTLE

14 MORELLA CERIFERA 30 GAL 3" CAL. MIN, MULTI-TRUNK, FULL, MATCHING
SOUTHERN WAX MYRTLE

6 VITEX AGNUS-CASTUS `SHOAL CREEK` 30 GAL 3" CAL. MIN, MULTI-TRUNK, FULL, MATCHING
CHASTE TREE

SHRUBS QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE REMARKS

233 ABELIA X GRANDIFLORA `RADIANCE` 7 GAL FULL, MATCHING
RADIANCE ABELIA

61 ASPIDISTRA ELATIOR 7 GAL FULL, MATCHING
CAST IRON PLANT

179 BUXUS SEMPERVIRENS `BABY GEM` 7 GAL FULL, MATCHING
DWARF BOXWOOD

381 ILEX CORNUTA `DWARF BURFORD` 7 GAL FULL, MATCHING
DWARF BURFORD HOLLY

53 ILEX X `NELLIE R STEVENS` 15 GAL FULL, MATCHING
NELLIE STEVENS HOLLY

20 JUNIPERUS CHINENSIS `BLUE POINT` 15 GAL FULL, MATCHING
BLUE POINT JUNIPER

10 JUNIPERUS CHINENSIS `SPARTAN` 30 GAL 8-9FT HEIGHT, FULL, MATCHING
TAYLOR EASTERN REDCEDAR

25 LIGUSTRUM SINENSE `SUNSHINE` 7 GAL FULL, MATCHING
SUNSHINE LIGUSTRUM

272 MISCANTHUS SINENSIS `ADAGIO` 3 GAL FULL, MATCHING
ADAGIO MAIDEN GRASS

21 MISCANTHUS SINENSIS `GRACILLIMUS` 5 GAL FULL, MATCHING
MAIDEN GRASS

163 MISCANTHUS SINENSIS `YAKUSHIMA` 7 GAL FULL, MATCHING
DWARF MAIDEN GRASS

326 NANDINA DOMESTICA `COMPACTA` 3 GAL FULL, MATCHING
COMPACT NANDINA

76 PITTOSPORUM TOBIRA `WHEELERS DWARF` 3 GAL FULL, MATCHING
WHEELER`S DWARF PITTOSPORUM

12 RHAPHIOLEPIS X DELACOURII `GEORGIA PETITE` 3 GAL FULL, MATCHING
GEORGIA PETITE INDIAN HAWTHORN

95 SALVIA COCCINEA 1 GAL FULL, MATCHING
SCARLET SAGE

2020-12-09 13:20
PLANT SCHEDULE

GROUND COVERS QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE SPACING REMARKS

920 CAREX DIVULSA 1 GAL 18" o.c. FULL, MATCHING
BERKELEY SEDGE

915 LIRIOPE MUSCARI `SILVER DRAGON` 1 GAL 18" o.c. FULL, MATCHING
SILVER DRAGON LIRIOPE

SOD/SEED QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE SPACING REMARKS

43,441 SF CYNODON DACTYLON HYDROSEED HYDROSEED
BERMUDA GRASS

45,091 SF CYNODON DACTYLON SOD SOLID, ROLLED TIGHT, SAND FILLED JOINTS,
BERMUDA GRASS 100% WEED, PEST AND DISEASE FREE

23,063 SF UPPER SLOPE WILDFLOWER MIX SEED REF. MANUFACTURER`S SPECIFICATIONS
NATIVE AMERICAN SEED

12,364 SF WETLAND FRINGE AND DRAINFIELD MIX SEED REF. MANUFACTURER`S SPECIFICATIONS
NATIVE AMERICAN SEED

NOTESDRAWNDESIGN DATE SCALE FILE NO.

DATENO. REVISION

DATENO. ISSUE

PR
A

IR
IE

 M
O

D
ER

N
 A

PA
R

TM
EN

TS

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

PRAIRIE MODERN APARTMENTS
272 UNITS W/ PARKING GARAGE

LOT 1 (5.35 AC) & LOT 2 (0.85 AC)

LANDSCAPE SUBMITTAL GENERAL NOTES

L1.02
S201202

TO RECEIVE TEMPORARY IRRIGATION UNTIL ESTABLISHED
REFERENCE IRRIGATION PLANS.

TO RECEIVE TEMPORARY IRRIGATION UNTIL ESTABLISHED
REFERENCE IRRIGATION PLANS.

Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 2 of 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
PK FILE: 4216-19.025

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEC 2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMD

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMW/AMD

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
11/03/2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
1ST CITY SUBMITTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
TX REG. ENGINEERING FIRM F-14439       

AutoCAD SHX Text
TX REG. SURVEYING FIRM LS-10193805

AutoCAD SHX Text
7557 RAMBLER ROAD, SUITE 1400

AutoCAD SHX Text
DALLAS, TX 75231    972.235.3031

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIM REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE DOCUMENTS ARE INTENDED FOR INTERIM REVIEW ONLY AND NOT FOR REGULATORY APPROVAL,PERMITTING, OR CONSTRUCTION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGISTERED LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEXAS REGISTRATION NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
3363

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMBER M. DAVIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
11/20/2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
2ND CITY SUBMITTAL - SITE PLAN UPDATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
12/09/2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
3RD CITY SUBMITTAL - SITE PLAN UPDATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIM REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE DOCUMENTS ARE INTENDED FOR INTERIM REVIEW ONLY AND NOT FOR REGULATORY APPROVAL,PERMITTING, OR CONSTRUCTION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGISTERED LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEXAS REGISTRATION NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
3363

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMBER M. DAVIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AMBER M. DAVIS PACHECO KOCH CONSULTING ENGINEERS 7557 RAMBLER ROAD SUITE 1400 DALLAS. TX 75231 P: 972-235-3031 E: amdavis@pkce.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER NATITEX LTD. 801 WEST FREEWAY, SUITE 810 GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS 75053



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 1 of 13



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 2 of 13



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 3 of 13



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 4 of 13



ELEVATION KEYNOTES

1A
MANUFACTURED STONE 1
PRAIRIE STONE - CT585

2A
ALTERNATING WIDTHS FIBER CEMENT
SIDING 1 (AGED PEWTER)

3 FIBER CEMENT BOARD (SOFFIT)

4
FIBER CEMENT BALCONY FASCIA
(SW 7674 PEPPERCORN)

5A STUCCO (SW 7636 ORIGAMI WHITE)

6 FIBERGLASS PANELS

7 METAL AWNING / CANOPY

8 METAL MESH SCREEN

10
CONDUCTOR HEAD AND DOWNSPOUT,
TIE TO STORM

11 OVERFLOW SCUPPER

12 ELECTRICAL METERS

13 PREFINISHED METAL COPING

14 FIBER CEMENT PANEL

15 MASONRY EXPANSION JOINT

17
PAINTED METAL MESH
GUARDRAILS (CITYSCAPE)

16 GEOLAM LOUVERS

1B
MANUFACTURED STONE 2
PRARIE STONE - CT579

9 DECORATIVE WALL SCONCE

2B FIBER CEMENT SIDING 2 (WOODTONE)

18 CONTROL JOINT

19 METAL AND GLASS GUARDRAIL

20 COORDINATE VENTS W/ MEP

21
EXHAUST LOCATION NOT TYPICAL,
COORD. W/ MEP

22 ROOF LINE BEYOND

2C
ALTERNATING WIDTHS FIBER CEMENT
SIDING 3 (NIGHT GRAY)

5B STUCCO (SW 7674 PEPPERCORN)

SPANDREL GLASS

GENERAL NOTES -
GLAZING

1. FIELD VERIFY ALL ROUGH OPENINGS.

2. REF. TO DOOR SCHEDULE FOR DOOR TYPES 
AND SIZES.

3. REF. TO FLOOR PLAN FOR DOOR HANDING.

4. REF. TO SPEC'S FOR ALUMINUM 
STOREFRONT SYSTEMS, CURTAIN WALL 
SYSTEMS AND GLASS TYPES 

S.O.G. AT LEVEL 1
78' - 5 3/4"

S.O.G. LEVEL 3
100' - 0"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 4
110' - 9 1/8"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 5
121' - 5"

T.O. PLATE AT 6 STORY
141' - 0 3/4"

T.O. PARAPET AT 6 STORY
147' - 7 1/2"

S.O.G. LEVEL 2
89' - 2 7/8"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 6
132' - 0 7/8"

1

A6.106

2

A6.106

2

A6.103

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 3 AMENITIES
99' - 0"

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

1
' 
- 

0
"

9
' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

S.O.G. AT LEVEL 1
78' - 5 3/4"

S.O.G. LEVEL 3
100' - 0"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 4
110' - 9 1/8"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 5
121' - 5"

T.O. PLATE AT 6 STORY
141' - 0 3/4"

T.O. PARAPET AT 6 STORY
147' - 7 1/2"

S.O.G. LEVEL 2
89' - 2 7/8"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 6
132' - 0 7/8"

2

A6.104

1

A6.106

2

A6.106

2

A6.103

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 3 AMENITIES
99' - 0"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

9
' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"1
' 
- 

0
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

S.O.G. AT LEVEL 1
78' - 5 3/4"

S.O.G. LEVEL 3
100' - 0"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 4
110' - 9 1/8"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 5
121' - 5"

S.O.G. LEVEL 2
89' - 2 7/8"

1

A6.101

T.O. PARAPET AT 4 STORY
128' - 3 3/4"

1

A6.201

1

A6.104

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

KEYPLAN

AREA A

1/A5.101

AREA B

AREA C

AREA F AREA E

AREA D

3
/A

5
.1

0
1

4/
A5.1

01

2/A5.101

5
/A

5
.1

0
1

TRUE

NORTH

S.O.G. LEVEL 3
100' - 0"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 4
110' - 9 1/8"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 5
121' - 5"

T.O. PLATE AT 6 STORY
141' - 0 3/4"

T.O. PARAPET AT 6 STORY
147' - 7 1/2"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 6
132' - 0 7/8"

1

A6.101

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 3 AMENITIES
99' - 0"

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

1
' 
- 

0
"

S.O.G. LEVEL 3
100' - 0"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 4
110' - 9 1/8"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 5
121' - 5"

T.O. PLATE AT 6 STORY
141' - 0 3/4"

T.O. PARAPET AT 6 STORY
147' - 7 1/2"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 6
132' - 0 7/8"

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

COPYRIGHT © 2020 O'BRIEN THESE DRAWINGS, OR PARTS
THEREOF, MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED IN ANY FORM, BY ANY 
METHOD, FOR ANY PURPOSE, WITHOUT THE PRIOR WRITTEN

CONSENT FROM O'BRIEN

SHEET NO.

ISSUE DATE

ISSUE LOG

DATE DESCRIPTION

09.11.2020 100 % DESIGN DEVELOPMENT 

PROJECT #

5310 HARVEST HILL RD.
SUITE 136
DALLAS, TX 75230
(972) 788-1010
www.obrienarch.com

HUD REFERENCE:

FHA # 117-35877

10.30.2020 80 % PROGRESS SET 

11.16.2020 PROGRESS SET 

12.07.2020 PERMIT SET 

SHEET  #

1
2

/2
/2

0
2

0
 1

2
:4

3
:1

1
 P

M
E

:\
U

s
e

rs
\M

ic
h
a

e
l.
S

o
lis

\D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

\A
_
W

o
o

d
h

a
v
e

n
 D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t_
 P

ra
ir

ie
 M

o
d

e
rn

_
2
0

2
0

_
m

ic
h

a
e

l.
s
o

lis
.r

v
t

11/16/20

A5.101

PRAIRIE
MODERN

19028

OVERALL EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS

GRAND PRAIRIE,
TX

A DEVELOPMENT OF:
PRAIRIE MODERN

LLC

1/16" = 1'-0"
1

WEST

1/16" = 1'-0"
2

EAST

1/16" = 1'-0"
5

SOUTH

1/16" = 1'-0"
3

NORTH
1/16" = 1'-0"

4
NORTH-EAST

CASE# S201202

 REVISION LOG

DATE DESCRIPTION DELTA

Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 5 of 13



S.O.G. LEVEL 3
100' - 0"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 4
110' - 9 1/8"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 5
121' - 5"

T.O. PLATE AT 6 STORY
141' - 0 3/4"

T.O. PARAPET AT 6 STORY
147' - 7 1/2"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 6
132' - 0 7/8"

1

A6.102

2

A6.203

2

A6.102

32A 5A2A

LIGHT STRIP LIGHT STRIP

8
' 
- 

1
1
 7

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

1
' 
- 

0
"

BBBB

BBB

BBB

B

B

D

D

D

D

S02

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 3 AMENITIES
99' - 0"

S.O.G. LEVEL 3
100' - 0"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 4
110' - 9 1/8"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 5
121' - 5"

T.O. PLATE AT 6 STORY
141' - 0 3/4"

T.O. PARAPET AT 6 STORY
147' - 7 1/2"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 6
132' - 0 7/8"

2A 5A
5B

2A
5B

5A

5B

5B

5B

5B

5B
2A?

UNIT B4UNIT B3UNIT A1UNIT A1UNIT B5

BBBBBBBBBB

BBBB

BBBB

BBBB

BBBB

B

B

B

B

BBBB BBBB B

D

D

D

D

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 3 AMENITIES
99' - 0"

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

1
' 
- 

0
"

S.O.G. LEVEL 3
100' - 0"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 4
110' - 9 1/8"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 5
121' - 5"

T.O. PLATE AT 6 STORY
141' - 0 3/4"

T.O. PARAPET AT 6 STORY
147' - 7 1/2"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 6
132' - 0 7/8"

1

A6.203

5A
2A

1

5A

5A

5A
5A

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

8
' 
- 

1
1
 7

/8
"

UNIT C1.1

UNIT A1.2UNIT A1

B BB

B

B

B

B

BB

B

D

B

G GS01

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 3 AMENITIES
99' - 0"

1
' 
- 

0
"

S.O.G. LEVEL 3
100' - 0"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 4
110' - 9 1/8"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 5
121' - 5"

T.O. PLATE AT 6 STORY
141' - 0 3/4"

T.O. PARAPET AT 6 STORY
147' - 7 1/2"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 6
132' - 0 7/8"

1

A6.101

4
3

2A1

8
' 
- 

1
1
 7

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

1
' 
- 

0
"

UNIT B1

B
H

B
H

B
H

B
H

C

C

C

E

E

FF

LIGHT STRIP

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 3 AMENITIES
99' - 0"

ELEVATION KEYNOTES

1 CORONADO STONE

2B FIBER CEMENT SIDING - COLOR 2

4 FIBER CEMENT PANEL

5A
STUCCO
COLOR 1

2A FIBER CEMENT SIDING - COLOR 1

5B
STUCCO
COLOR 2

3 WOODTONE SIDING

3B FIBER CEMENT SIDING - COLOR 3

KEYPLAN

AREA A

AREA B

AREA C

AREA F AREA E

AREA D

/
1

A
5
.2

0
1

/
3

A
5
.2

0
1

/
4

A5.
201

/2 A5.201

TRUE

NORTH

COPYRIGHT © 2020 O'BRIEN THESE DRAWINGS, OR PARTS
THEREOF, MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED IN ANY FORM, BY ANY 
METHOD, FOR ANY PURPOSE, WITHOUT THE PRIOR WRITTEN

CONSENT FROM O'BRIEN

SHEET NO.

ISSUE DATE

ISSUE LOG

DATE DESCRIPTION

09.11.2020 100 % DESIGN DEVELOPMENT 

PROJECT #

5310 HARVEST HILL RD.
SUITE 136
DALLAS, TX 75230
(972) 788-1010
www.obrienarch.com

HUD REFERENCE:

FHA # 117-35877

10.30.2020 80 % PROGRESS SET 

11.16.2020 PROGRESS SET 

12.07.2020 PERMIT SET 

SHEET  #

1
2

/2
/2

0
2

0
 1

2
:4

3
:1

6
 P

M
E

:\
U

s
e

rs
\M

ic
h
a

e
l.
S

o
lis

\D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

\A
_
W

o
o

d
h

a
v
e

n
 D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t_
 P

ra
ir

ie
 M

o
d

e
rn

_
2
0

2
0

_
m

ic
h

a
e

l.
s
o

lis
.r

v
t

11/16/20

A5.201

PRAIRIE
MODERN

19028

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

GRAND PRAIRIE,
TX

A DEVELOPMENT OF:
PRAIRIE MODERN

LLC

1/8" = 1'-0"
3

EXTERIOR NORTH ELEVATION - 2

1/8" = 1'-0"
4

EXTERIOR NORTH-EAST ELEVATION - 1

1/8" = 1'-0"
2

EXTERIOR EAST ELEVATION - 1
1/8" = 1'-0"

1
EXTERIOR NORTH ELEVATION - 1

CASE# S201202

 REVISION LOG

DATE DESCRIPTION DELTA

Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 6 of 13



S.O.G. AT LEVEL 1
78' - 5 3/4"

S.O.G. LEVEL 3
100' - 0"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 4
110' - 9 1/8"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 5
121' - 5"

T.O. PLATE AT 6 STORY
141' - 0 3/4"

T.O. PARAPET AT 6 STORY
147' - 7 1/2"

S.O.G. LEVEL 2
89' - 2 7/8"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 6
132' - 0 7/8"

3

A6.101

T.O. CANOPY ROOF
144' - 6 5/8"

2

A6.205

3

A6.205

5B 5A5A 2A

5B

5B

5B

5B

2

A6.104

METAL MESH 
VEGETATION 
SCREEN, TYPICAL

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

8
' 
- 

1
1
 7

/8
"

UNIT B2

S.O.G AT GARAGE LEVEL 1
78' - 2 3/4"

3
"

BBB

BBB

BBB

BBB

02
1

A6.106

2

A6.206

0304 01

3

A6.102

S.O.G. AT LEVEL 1
78' - 5 3/4"

S.O.G. LEVEL 3
100' - 0"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 4
110' - 9 1/8"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 5
121' - 5"

S.O.G. LEVEL 2
89' - 2 7/8"

4

A6.101
4

A6.20513 5A

T.O.PARAPET LEVEL 4
128' - 3 3/8"

METAL MESH 
VEGETATION 
SCREEN, TYPICAL

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

S.O.G AT GARAGE LEVEL 1
78' - 2 3/4"

3
"

D

D

D

D

A

A

A

2

A6.103

05060708

ELEVATION KEYNOTES

1 CORONADO STONE

2B FIBER CEMENT SIDING - COLOR 2

4 FIBER CEMENT PANEL

5A
STUCCO
COLOR 1

2A FIBER CEMENT SIDING - COLOR 1

5B
STUCCO
COLOR 2

3 WOODTONE SIDING

3B FIBER CEMENT SIDING - COLOR 3

KEYPLAN

AREA A

AREA B

AREA C

AREA F AREA E

AREA D

/1 A5.202 /2 A5.202

TRUE

NORTH

COPYRIGHT © 2020 O'BRIEN THESE DRAWINGS, OR PARTS
THEREOF, MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED IN ANY FORM, BY ANY 
METHOD, FOR ANY PURPOSE, WITHOUT THE PRIOR WRITTEN

CONSENT FROM O'BRIEN

SHEET NO.

ISSUE DATE

ISSUE LOG

DATE DESCRIPTION

09.11.2020 100 % DESIGN DEVELOPMENT 

PROJECT #

5310 HARVEST HILL RD.
SUITE 136
DALLAS, TX 75230
(972) 788-1010
www.obrienarch.com

HUD REFERENCE:

FHA # 117-35877

10.30.2020 80 % PROGRESS SET 

11.16.2020 PROGRESS SET 

12.07.2020 PERMIT SET 

SHEET  #

1
2

/2
/2

0
2

0
 1

2
:4

3
:2

0
 P

M
E

:\
U

s
e

rs
\M

ic
h
a

e
l.
S

o
lis

\D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

\A
_
W

o
o

d
h

a
v
e

n
 D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t_
 P

ra
ir

ie
 M

o
d

e
rn

_
2
0

2
0

_
m

ic
h

a
e

l.
s
o

lis
.r

v
t

11/16/20

A5.202

PRAIRIE
MODERN

19028

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

GRAND PRAIRIE,
TX

A DEVELOPMENT OF:
PRAIRIE MODERN

LLC

1/8" = 1'-0"
1

EXTERIOR EAST ELEVATION - 2

1/8" = 1'-0"
2

EXTERIOR EAST ELEVATION - 3

CASE# S201202

 REVISION LOG

DATE DESCRIPTION DELTA

Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 7 of 13



S.O.G. AT LEVEL 1
78' - 5 3/4"

S.O.G. LEVEL 3
100' - 0"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 4
110' - 9 1/8"

S.O.G. LEVEL 2
89' - 2 7/8"

T.O. PARAPET AT 4 STORY
128' - 3 3/4"

1

A6.201

1

A6.105

2

A6.201

2A 5A 2A

1
5B

3

1 1 11

5B

5B

5B

5B 5B

5B

5B

5B 5B

5B

5B

5B

2

A0.006

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A2

B B B B B BB

B

B B B B B BB

B B B B B BB

B B B B B B

1

A6.104

T.O.PLATE LEVEL 4
119' - 9"

S.O.G. AT LEVEL 1
78' - 5 3/4"

S.O.G. LEVEL 3
100' - 0"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 4
110' - 9 1/8"

S.O.G. LEVEL 2
89' - 2 7/8"

1

A6.101

T.O. PARAPET AT 4 STORY
128' - 3 3/4"

4

A6.201

1
1

1 1
5B

5B

5B

5B

5A 3 1
5B

5A
5B 1

2A
5A

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

UNIT A1 UNIT B2 UNIT A1

B B B B

B B B B

B B B B

B B BB

A

A

A

D

D

D

D

T.O.PLATE LEVEL 4
119' - 9"

ELEVATION KEYNOTES

1 CORONADO STONE

2B FIBER CEMENT SIDING - COLOR 2

4 FIBER CEMENT PANEL

5A
STUCCO
COLOR 1

2A FIBER CEMENT SIDING - COLOR 1

5B
STUCCO
COLOR 2

3 WOODTONE SIDING

3B FIBER CEMENT SIDING - COLOR 3

KEYPLAN

AREA A

AREA B

AREA C

AREA F AREA E

AREA D

/
1

A
5
.2

0
3

/
2

A
5
.2

0
3

TRUE

NORTH

COPYRIGHT © 2020 O'BRIEN THESE DRAWINGS, OR PARTS
THEREOF, MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED IN ANY FORM, BY ANY 
METHOD, FOR ANY PURPOSE, WITHOUT THE PRIOR WRITTEN

CONSENT FROM O'BRIEN

SHEET NO.

ISSUE DATE

ISSUE LOG

DATE DESCRIPTION

09.11.2020 100 % DESIGN DEVELOPMENT 

PROJECT #

5310 HARVEST HILL RD.
SUITE 136
DALLAS, TX 75230
(972) 788-1010
www.obrienarch.com

HUD REFERENCE:

FHA # 117-35877

10.30.2020 80 % PROGRESS SET 

11.16.2020 PROGRESS SET 

12.07.2020 PERMIT SET 

SHEET  #

1
2

/2
/2

0
2

0
 1

2
:4

3
:2

4
 P

M
E

:\
U

s
e

rs
\M

ic
h
a

e
l.
S

o
lis

\D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

\A
_
W

o
o

d
h

a
v
e

n
 D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t_
 P

ra
ir

ie
 M

o
d

e
rn

_
2
0

2
0

_
m

ic
h

a
e

l.
s
o

lis
.r

v
t

11/16/20

A5.203

PRAIRIE
MODERN

19028

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

GRAND PRAIRIE,
TX

A DEVELOPMENT OF:
PRAIRIE MODERN

LLC

1/8" = 1'-0"
1

EXTERIOR SOUTH ELEVATION - 1

1/8" = 1'-0"
2

EXTERIOR SOUTH ELEVATION - 2

CASE# S201202

 REVISION LOG

DATE DESCRIPTION DELTA

Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 8 of 13



S.O.G. AT LEVEL 1
78' - 5 3/4"

S.O.G. LEVEL 3
100' - 0"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 4
110' - 9 1/8"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 5
121' - 5"

S.O.G. LEVEL 2
89' - 2 7/8"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 6
132' - 0 7/8"

4

A6.101

T.O. PARAPET AT 5 STORY
136' - 11 5/8"

T.O. PARAPET AT 4 STORY
128' - 3 3/4"

3

A6.2015A 2A 5A

5B

1 1 1 1
1

5B

5B

5B

5B

5B

5B

5B

5A 3

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

UNIT B2 UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT C1

B B B B B B B B C

B B B B B B B

B B B B B B B

C

CB

B

B BB B B CB

B

B

2

A6.103

S.O.G. LEVEL 3
100' - 0"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 4
110' - 9 1/8"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 5
121' - 5"

T.O. PARAPET AT 6 STORY
147' - 7 1/2"

S.O.G. LEVEL 2
89' - 2 7/8"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 6
132' - 0 7/8"

3

A6.101

T.O. PARAPET AT 5 STORY
136' - 11 5/8"

2

A6.202

5B
5A

3 5A 3

5A
1

1 5A 1 1 5A 5A 11

5A

UNIT B2UNIT A1UNIT A1UNIT A1UNIT A1UNIT A1

B B B B B

B

B

B B B B

B B B B

B

B BB B B B

B B

B B

B B

1

A6.106

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

S.O.G. LEVEL 3
100' - 0"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 4
110' - 9 1/8"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 5
121' - 5"

T.O. PLATE AT 6 STORY
141' - 0 3/4"

T.O. PARAPET AT 6 STORY
147' - 7 1/2"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 6
132' - 0 7/8"

4

A6.202

3

A6.202

1
3

5A
5B 5A

5A
5B

5A

3

5A

5A

5A

5A

5A

11
15A

5B 5B

2A

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

1
' 
- 

0
"

UNIT B1 UNIT A1UNIT A1UNIT A1UNIT A1UNIT A1UNIT A1UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1

A B

W3

D

H

W3

D

B
B

B B B B B B B BB

B

B B B B B B B BB

B B B B BB

H

H

H

D

B
B

BB
B

B B B

D

D

A

A

LIGHT STRIP
2

A6.106

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 3 AMENITIES
99' - 0"

ELEVATION KEYNOTES

1 CORONADO STONE

2B FIBER CEMENT SIDING - COLOR 2

4 FIBER CEMENT PANEL

5A
STUCCO
COLOR 1

2A FIBER CEMENT SIDING - COLOR 1

5B
STUCCO
COLOR 2

3 WOODTONE SIDING

3B FIBER CEMENT SIDING - COLOR 3

KEYPLAN

AREA A

AREA B

AREA C

AREA F AREA E

AREA D

/1 A5.204 /2 A5.204 /3 A5.204

TRUE

NORTH

COPYRIGHT © 2020 O'BRIEN THESE DRAWINGS, OR PARTS
THEREOF, MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED IN ANY FORM, BY ANY 
METHOD, FOR ANY PURPOSE, WITHOUT THE PRIOR WRITTEN

CONSENT FROM O'BRIEN

SHEET NO.

ISSUE DATE

ISSUE LOG

DATE DESCRIPTION

09.11.2020 100 % DESIGN DEVELOPMENT 

PROJECT #

5310 HARVEST HILL RD.
SUITE 136
DALLAS, TX 75230
(972) 788-1010
www.obrienarch.com

HUD REFERENCE:

FHA # 117-35877

10.30.2020 80 % PROGRESS SET 

11.16.2020 PROGRESS SET 

12.07.2020 PERMIT SET 

SHEET  #

1
2

/2
/2

0
2

0
 1

2
:4

3
:2

7
 P

M
E

:\
U

s
e

rs
\M

ic
h
a

e
l.
S

o
lis

\D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

\A
_
W

o
o

d
h

a
v
e

n
 D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t_
 P

ra
ir

ie
 M

o
d

e
rn

_
2
0

2
0

_
m

ic
h

a
e

l.
s
o

lis
.r

v
t

11/16/20

A5.204

PRAIRIE
MODERN

19028

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

GRAND PRAIRIE,
TX

A DEVELOPMENT OF:
PRAIRIE MODERN

LLC

1/8" = 1'-0"
1

EXTERIOR WEST ELEVATION - 1

1/8" = 1'-0"
2

EXTERIOR WEST ELEVATION - 2

1/8" = 1'-0"
3

EXTERIOR WEST ELEVATION - 3

CASE# S201202

 REVISION LOG

DATE DESCRIPTION DELTA

Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 9 of 13



S.O.G. LEVEL 3
100' - 0"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 4
110' - 9 1/8"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 5
121' - 5"

T.O. PLATE AT 6 STORY
141' - 0 3/4"

T.O. PARAPET AT 6 STORY
147' - 7 1/2"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 6
132' - 0 7/8"

3

A6.203

1

A6.102

2

A6.102

2A5A

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

1
' 
- 

0
"

UNIT A1 UNIT A1

B B B B

B B B

B B B

B

B

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 3 AMENITIES
99' - 0"

S.O.G. LEVEL 3
100' - 0"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 4
110' - 9 1/8"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 5
121' - 5"

T.O. PLATE AT 6 STORY
141' - 0 3/4"

T.O. PARAPET AT 6 STORY
147' - 7 1/2"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 6
132' - 0 7/8"

4

A6.203

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

1
' 
- 

0
"

UNIT A2.1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1

B B B B B

B B B B B

B B B B B

B BB B

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 3 AMENITIES
99' - 0"

S.O.G. LEVEL 3
100' - 0"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 4
110' - 9 1/8"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 5
121' - 5"

T.O. PLATE AT 6 STORY
141' - 0 3/4"

T.O. PARAPET AT 6 STORY
147' - 7 1/2"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 6
132' - 0 7/8"

7

A8.106

1

A6.2043

A6.206

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

UNIT A2.1UNIT B2UNIT A1UNIT A1

BBB B B B B B

B B B B B

B B B B B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B B B BB B

1

A6.104

S.O.G. LEVEL 3
100' - 0"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 4
110' - 9 1/8"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 5
121' - 5"

T.O. PLATE AT 6 STORY
141' - 0 3/4"

T.O. PARAPET AT 6 STORY
147' - 7 1/2"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 6
132' - 0 7/8"

1
' 
- 

0
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

8
' 
- 

1
1
 7

/8
"

UNIT A2UNIT A2UNIT A2

BB BBB

BB

BB

BB

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

S03

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 3 AMENITIES
99' - 0"

ELEVATION KEYNOTES

1 CORONADO STONE

2B FIBER CEMENT SIDING - COLOR 2

4 FIBER CEMENT PANEL

5A
STUCCO
COLOR 1

2A FIBER CEMENT SIDING - COLOR 1

5B
STUCCO
COLOR 2

3 WOODTONE SIDING

3B FIBER CEMENT SIDING - COLOR 3

KEYPLAN

AREA A

AREA B

AREA C

AREA F AREA E

AREA D

/
1

A
5
.2

0
5

/
2

A5.
205

/
3

A
5
.2

0
5

/4 A5.205

TRUE

NORTH

COPYRIGHT © 2020 O'BRIEN THESE DRAWINGS, OR PARTS
THEREOF, MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED IN ANY FORM, BY ANY 
METHOD, FOR ANY PURPOSE, WITHOUT THE PRIOR WRITTEN

CONSENT FROM O'BRIEN

SHEET NO.

ISSUE DATE

ISSUE LOG

DATE DESCRIPTION

09.11.2020 100 % DESIGN DEVELOPMENT 

PROJECT #

5310 HARVEST HILL RD.
SUITE 136
DALLAS, TX 75230
(972) 788-1010
www.obrienarch.com

HUD REFERENCE:

FHA # 117-35877

10.30.2020 80 % PROGRESS SET 

11.16.2020 PROGRESS SET 

12.07.2020 PERMIT SET 

SHEET  #

1
2

/2
/2

0
2

0
 1

2
:4

3
:3

3
 P

M
E

:\
U

s
e

rs
\M

ic
h
a

e
l.
S

o
lis

\D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

\A
_
W

o
o

d
h

a
v
e

n
 D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t_
 P

ra
ir

ie
 M

o
d

e
rn

_
2
0

2
0

_
m

ic
h

a
e

l.
s
o

lis
.r

v
t

11/16/20

A5.205

PRAIRIE
MODERN

19028

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

GRAND PRAIRIE,
TX

A DEVELOPMENT OF:
PRAIRIE MODERN

LLC

1/8" = 1'-0"
1

NORTH ELEVATION - POOL COURTYARD
1/8" = 1'-0"

2
EAST ELEVATION - POOL COURTYARD

1/8" = 1'-0"
3

SOUTH ELEVATION - POOL COURTYARD

1/8" = 1'-0"
4

WEST ELEVATION - POOL COURTYARD

CASE# S201202

 REVISION LOG

DATE DESCRIPTION DELTA

Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 10 of 13



S.O.G. LEVEL 3
100' - 0"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 4
110' - 9 1/8"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 5
121' - 5"

T.O. PARAPET AT 6 STORY
147' - 7 1/2"

S.O.G. LEVEL 2
89' - 2 7/8"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 6
132' - 0 7/8"

T.O. PARAPET AT 5 STORY
136' - 11 5/8"

T.O. CANOPY ROOF
144' - 6 5/8"

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

UNIT A2.1 UNIT B2

BBBBB

BBB

BBBB

BBBB

B

B

B

S14

S.O.G. AT LEVEL 1
78' - 5 3/4"

S.O.G. LEVEL 3
100' - 0"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 4
110' - 9 1/8"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 5
121' - 5"

S.O.G. LEVEL 2
89' - 2 7/8"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 6
132' - 0 7/8"

4

A6.101

T.O. CANOPY ROOF
144' - 6 5/8"

3

A6.205

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

METAL MESH 
VEGETATION SCREEN, 
TYPICAL

METAL MESH 
VEGETATION SCREEN, 
TYPICAL

02 03 04 05 06 07

T.O.PLATE LEVEL 4
119' - 9"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 3 AMENITIES
99' - 0"

ELEVATION KEYNOTES

1 CORONADO STONE

2B FIBER CEMENT SIDING - COLOR 2

4 FIBER CEMENT PANEL

5A
STUCCO
COLOR 1

2A FIBER CEMENT SIDING - COLOR 1

5B
STUCCO
COLOR 2

3 WOODTONE SIDING

3B FIBER CEMENT SIDING - COLOR 3

KEYPLAN

AREA A

AREA B

AREA C

AREA F AREA E

AREA D

/
1

A
5
.2

0
6

/2 A5.206

TRUE

NORTH

COPYRIGHT © 2020 O'BRIEN THESE DRAWINGS, OR PARTS
THEREOF, MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED IN ANY FORM, BY ANY 
METHOD, FOR ANY PURPOSE, WITHOUT THE PRIOR WRITTEN

CONSENT FROM O'BRIEN

SHEET NO.

ISSUE DATE

ISSUE LOG

DATE DESCRIPTION

09.11.2020 100 % DESIGN DEVELOPMENT 

PROJECT #

5310 HARVEST HILL RD.
SUITE 136
DALLAS, TX 75230
(972) 788-1010
www.obrienarch.com

HUD REFERENCE:

FHA # 117-35877

10.30.2020 80 % PROGRESS SET 

11.16.2020 PROGRESS SET 

12.07.2020 PERMIT SET 

SHEET  #

1
2

/2
/2

0
2

0
 1

2
:4

3
:3

7
 P

M
E

:\
U

s
e

rs
\M

ic
h
a

e
l.
S

o
lis

\D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

\A
_
W

o
o

d
h

a
v
e

n
 D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t_
 P

ra
ir

ie
 M

o
d

e
rn

_
2
0

2
0

_
m

ic
h

a
e

l.
s
o

lis
.r

v
t

11/16/20

A5.206

PRAIRIE
MODERN

19028

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

GRAND PRAIRIE,
TX

A DEVELOPMENT OF:
PRAIRIE MODERN

LLC

1/8" = 1'-0"
1

NORTH ELEVATION - ZEN COURTYARD

1/8" = 1'-0"
2

EAST ELEVATION - ZEN COURTYARD

CASE# S201202

 REVISION LOG

DATE DESCRIPTION DELTA

Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 11 of 13



S.O.G. AT LEVEL 1
78' - 5 3/4"

S.O.G. LEVEL 3
100' - 0"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 4
110' - 9 1/8"

S.O.G. LEVEL 2
89' - 2 7/8"

4

A6.204

T.O.PARAPET LEVEL 4
128' - 3 3/8"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

UNIT B2 UNIT A1

BBBBB

BBBBB

BBBBB

BBBBB

T.O.PLATE LEVEL 4
119' - 9"

S.O.G. AT LEVEL 1
78' - 5 3/4"

S.O.G. LEVEL 3
100' - 0"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 4
110' - 9 1/8"

T.O. GYPCRETE LEVEL 5
121' - 5"

S.O.G. LEVEL 2
89' - 2 7/8"

4

A6.101

T.O. PARAPET AT 5 STORY
136' - 11 5/8"

3

A6.204 2A3B5A2A5A

2A 3B

T.O.PARAPET LEVEL 4
128' - 3 3/8"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
 1

/8
"

1
0

' 
- 

7
 7

/8
"

UNIT B2 UNIT A2 UNIT A2

UNIT A1 UNIT B5

UNIT A2.1

BBBBBBBB

BBBBB

BBBBB

BBBBB

B

B

B

BB

BB

B

T.O.PLATE LEVEL 4
119' - 9"

ELEVATION KEYNOTES

1 CORONADO STONE

2B FIBER CEMENT SIDING - COLOR 2

4 FIBER CEMENT PANEL

5A
STUCCO
COLOR 1

2A FIBER CEMENT SIDING - COLOR 1

5B
STUCCO
COLOR 2

3 WOODTONE SIDING

3B FIBER CEMENT SIDING - COLOR 3

KEYPLAN

AREA A

AREA B

AREA C

AREA F AREA E

AREA D

/
1

A
5
.2

0
7

/2 A5.207

TRUE

NORTH

COPYRIGHT © 2020 O'BRIEN THESE DRAWINGS, OR PARTS
THEREOF, MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED IN ANY FORM, BY ANY 
METHOD, FOR ANY PURPOSE, WITHOUT THE PRIOR WRITTEN

CONSENT FROM O'BRIEN

SHEET NO.

ISSUE DATE

ISSUE LOG

DATE DESCRIPTION

09.11.2020 100 % DESIGN DEVELOPMENT 

PROJECT #

5310 HARVEST HILL RD.
SUITE 136
DALLAS, TX 75230
(972) 788-1010
www.obrienarch.com

HUD REFERENCE:

FHA # 117-35877

10.30.2020 80 % PROGRESS SET 

11.16.2020 PROGRESS SET 

12.07.2020 PERMIT SET 

SHEET  #

1
2

/2
/2

0
2

0
 1

2
:4

3
:4

1
 P

M
E

:\
U

s
e

rs
\M

ic
h
a

e
l.
S

o
lis

\D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

\A
_
W

o
o

d
h

a
v
e

n
 D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t_
 P

ra
ir

ie
 M

o
d

e
rn

_
2
0

2
0

_
m

ic
h

a
e

l.
s
o

lis
.r

v
t

11/16/20

A5.207

PRAIRIE
MODERN

19028

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

GRAND PRAIRIE,
TX

A DEVELOPMENT OF:
PRAIRIE MODERN

LLC

1/8" = 1'-0"
1

SOUTH ELEVATION - ZEN COURTYARD

1/8" = 1'-0"
2

WEST ELEVATION - ZEN COURTYARD

CASE# S201202

 REVISION LOG

DATE DESCRIPTION DELTA

Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 12 of 13



PREFINISHED MTL COPING ON 
WD BLOCKING - MECH. 
FASTENED TO MASONRY

BOND BEAM W/ 2 #5s 
CONTINUOUS

8" NOM. MASONRY

1/2" SEALANT JOINT

INSIDEOUTSIDE

SLOPE 1/4"/FT

8
' 
- 

0
"

8'-0" A.F.F.

FILL STL PIPE W/ CONC 
& ROUND OFF TOP

6" DIA STL PIPE, PAINT 
"SAFETY YELLOW"

E.J. & SEALANT AROUND 
PIPE  AT PAVEMENT

SITE PAVEMENT

CONC AROUND STL PIPE

3
' 
- 

6
"

STL GATE

STL CANE W/ STL SLEEVES SET 
IN CONC PAVEMENT AT CLOSED 
& HOLD OPEN POSITIONS

PREFINISHED 
METAL COPING

8" MASONRY

3 EA PAINTED HEAVY 
DUTY STEEL SELF 
CLOSING HINGES @ 
EACH SIDE OF DOOR 
LEAF

6" DIA BOLLARD

6"X6"X3/8" STL TUB COLUMN 
W/ 1/4" PLATE TOP CAP 
FILLED W/ CONC, PAINTED

6" DIA BOLLARD

8'-0" A.F.F.

21' - 10 1/2"

SELF CLOSING LATCH 

2"X6"X5/16" STL TUBE, PAINTED

6x6x3/8" STEEL TUBE WITH 1/4" 
WELDED CAP 

8" MASONRY

#5 VERTICAL REINFORCED 
REBAR  THROUGH OUT 
CONC, TYP

SELF CLOSING 
HEAVY DUTY BALL BEARING 
HINGE, 1-1/2 PAIRS PER LEAF 

1
"

7
 5

/8
"

8"

BOLLARD 

2
2

' 
- 

0
"

4
' 
- 

6
"

4
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

4
' 
- 

0
"

4
' 
- 

6
"

11' - 6" 1' - 0"9"

12' - 0"

TRASH 

TRASH 

3
' 
- 

0
"

REFER TO DETAIL 4/A2.170

REFER TO DETAIL 3/A2.170

5

A2.170

53
A2.170

COPYRIGHT © 2020 O'BRIEN THESE DRAWINGS, OR PARTS
THEREOF, MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED IN ANY FORM, BY ANY 
METHOD, FOR ANY PURPOSE, WITHOUT THE PRIOR WRITTEN

CONSENT FROM O'BRIEN

SHEET NO.

ISSUE DATE

ISSUE LOG

DATE DESCRIPTION

09.11.2020 100 % DESIGN DEVELOPMENT 

PROJECT #

5310 HARVEST HILL RD.
SUITE 136
DALLAS, TX 75230
(972) 788-1010
www.obrienarch.com

HUD REFERENCE:

FHA # 117-35877

10.30.2020 80 % PROGRESS SET 

11.16.2020 PROGRESS SET 

12.07.2020 PERMIT SET 

SHEET  #

1
2

/2
/2

0
2
0

 9
:5

7
:3

3
 A

M
E

:\
U

s
e
rs

\C
la

u
d
ia

.H
e
rn

a
n

d
e
z
\D

o
c
u

m
e
n

ts
\A

_
W

o
o

d
h
a

v
e
n

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t_

 P
ra

ir
ie

 M
o

d
e
rn

_
2

0
2

0
_
c
la

u
d
ia

.h
e

rn
a
n

d
e
z
.r

v
t

11/30/20

A2.170

PRAIRIE
MODERN

19028

TRASH ENCLOSURE

GRAND PRAIRIE,
TX

A DEVELOPMENT OF:
PRAIRIE MODERN

LLC

 REVISION LOG

DATE DESCRIPTION DELTA

1/2" = 1'-0"
4

WALL SECTION DETAIL

1/2" = 1'-0"
3

BOLLARD SECTION

1/4" = 1'-0"
2

TRASH ENCLOSURE  ELEVATION
1 1/2" = 1'-0"

5
COMPACTOR ENCLOSURE 01

1/4" = 1'-0"
1

COMPACTOR ENCLOSURE PLAN

Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 13 of 13



��������	���������������������������������������������������������������������������������
������������������ �

!"#$" %&'()*+,*-./012134,5/6./,(7*1'(*6.(224,.10*)128,970.*6108,87./,(8,263/*8,(0:,*/-)'18*(*,*1,)-:7.-,-0-)34,21(:8,:7)603,*/-,:(4";<"=>">#?@A";B"
C@=D"@E@<FG"HA=F@$"

!"##$" IA@";B"A;J=<";<";>K@<"B;<?";B"=J>@<E=>#L@"@E@<FG">;"A=>#ABG"=CC<;M#?=>@JG"NOP";<"?;<@";B";EQA#>@"@E@<FG"R@?=ER$"

!"###$" S=ERAT=C#EF"CJ=E">K=>"?=D@A"HA@";B"E=>#L@U"R<;HFK>"<@A#A>=E>"CJ=E>#EFA"E;>"<@VH#<#EF">K@"HA@";B"#<<#F=>#;E$"WE"J#@H";B"A;R";<">H<BU"R<;HFK>"<@A#A>=E>"
CJ=E>#EFA"?=G"X@"T;?X#E@R"Y#>K"T;;<R#E=>@R"K=<RAT=C@A";B"K#FK"R@A#FE"VH=J#>G"=ER"=CC@=<=ET@"B;<">K@"CH<C;A@A";B"?@@>#EF"Z#@<"W"<@VH#<@?@E>A$"

!"#L$" [@A@<L=>#;E";B"@M#A>#EF"E=>H<=J"=<@=A"T;?C<#A#EF"OP";<"?;<@";B">K@";L@<=JJ"C<;\@T>"A#]@U"Y#>K"AHTK"=<@=A"#ET;<C;<=>#EF"VH=J#>G"E;EQ#EL=A#L@"><@@"
A>=ERAU"K=X#>=>";<"<#C=<#=E"=<@=AU"=ER"E;>"#ETJHR#EF"@M#A>#EF"BJ;;RCJ=#E";<";>K@<"=<@=A"=J<@=RG"C<;>@T>@R";<"#EK@<@E>JG"HEAH#>=XJ@"B;<"R@L@J;C?@E>$"

!"L$" @̂<?@=XJ@"C=L@?@E>"B;<"_̀P";<"?;<@";B">;>=J"C=L#EF$"

!"L#$" aJ@T><#T"T=<"TK=<F#EF"A>=>#;E"b?#E#?H?"Nc$"

!"L##$" d#FK"@BB#T#@ETG"Y#ER;YA";E"<@A#R@E>#=J"=ER"T;??;E"XH#JR#EFA$"

!"L###$" e>;<?Y=>@<";<"F<@G"Y=>@<"<@TJ=?=>#;E"B;<";EQA#>@"<@HA@"@VH#L=J@E>">;"="?#E#?H?"_̀ P̀";B"#<<#F=>#;E"#E"=TT;<R=ET@"Y#>K"A@T>#;E"f$g$_$__$"

��������������h��� �

!"#$" WE>@F<=>#;E";B"T;??@<T#=Ji<@>=#Ji;BB#T@"AC=T@";<"J#L@QY;<D"HE#>A$"

!"##$" @̂<?@=XJ@"C=L@?@E>"B;<"OP";<"?;<@";B">;>=J"C=L#EF$"

!"###$" [;;B#EF"?=>@<#=J"Y#>K"="?#E#?H?">;>=J"A;J=<"<@BJ@T>=ET@";B"̀$j̀"=ER"="?#E#?H?">K@<?=J"@?#>>=ET@";B"̀$jO"YK@E"?@=AH<@R"HA#EF"keZl">@A>#EF"
?@>K;RA"@ER;<A@R"XG">K@"m;<>K"n@E><=J"Z@M=A"n;HET#J";B"o;L@<E?@E>A$"

!"#L$" e#FE#B#T=E>"HA@";B"<@TGTJ@R";<"J;T=JJGQA;H<T@R"?=>@<#=JA$""S;T=JJGQA;H<T@R"#A"R@B#E@R"=A"="?=>@<#=J"K=L#EF"#>A";<#F#E"Y#>K#E"Ò"?#J@A";B">K@"C<;\@T>$"

!"L$" <̂@A@<L=>#;E";B"@M#A>#EF"E;EQ#EL=A#L@"><@@A"Y#>K"="T;?X#E@R"T=E;CG"AVH=<@"B;;>=F@"=<@=">;>=J#EF"=>"J@=A>"OP";B">K@";L@<=JJ"C<;\@T>"A#]@"b><@@A"
T=E"T;?@"B<;?"=EG"C;<>#;E";B">K@"A#>@";>K@<">K=E"=<@=A"YK#TK"=<@"=J<@=RG"C<;\@T>@R";<"#EK@<@E>JG"HEAH#>=XJ@"B;<"R@L@J;C?@E>U"AHTK"=A"
BJ;;RCJ=#Ec$"

!"L#$" pH=J#B#@R"<@TGTJ#EF"C<;F<=?"=L=#J=XJ@">;"@L@<G"<@A#R@E>$"

!"L##$" q=JD#EFi\;FF#EF"><=#JA"Y#>K#E">K@"R@L@J;C?@E>$""qK@<@"C;AA#XJ@U"><=#JA"AK;HJR"H>#J#]@"@M#A>#EF"E=>H<=J"=<@=A"=ER"C<;L#R@"J#ED=F@A">;"@M#A>#EF";<"
BH>H<@"=<@="><=#J"E@>Y;<DA$"

!"L###$" e>;<?Y=>@<";<"F<@G"Y=>@<"<@TJ=?=>#;E"B;<";EQA#>@"<@HA@"@VH#L=J@E>">;"="?#E#?H?"ÒP";B"#<<#F=>#;E"#E"=TT;<R=ET@"Y#>K"A@T>#;E"f$g$_$__$"

���������������h�� �

!"#$" kRR#>#;E=J"#EAHJ=>#;E$"

!"##$" Sar";<"J;YQY=>>=F@"J#FK>#EF$"

!"###$" s#TGTJ@"C=<D#EF$"

!"#L$" IA@";B"=RR#>#;E=J"E=>#L@"CJ=E>#EFA">;>=J#EF"_̀P";<"?;<@";B"?#E#?H?"J=ERAT=C@"<@VH#<@?@E>A$"

!"L$" e>;<?Y=>@<";<"F<@G"Y=>@<"<@TJ=?=>#;E"B;<";EQA#>@"<@HA@"#E"=TT;<R=ET@"Y#>K"A@T>#;E"f$g$_$__$"

!"L#$" e;J=<Q<@=RG"XH#JR#EF"R@A#FE$"

!"L##$" tH>R;;<"<@T<@=>#;E"AC=T@A"Y#>K"T;??HE=J"B@=>H<@A"AHTK"=A"BH<E#>H<@U"J=ERAT=C#EFU"F=<R@EAU">@J@L#A#;EAU"?;L#@"AT<@@EAU"ssp"F<#JJAU"C@<F;J=AU"
=<@=A"B;<"B#>E@AA";<"AC;<>A"=T>#L#>#@AU"=ER"#E>@<=T>#L@"Y=>@<"B@=>H<@AU"E;>"#ETJHR#EF"A>=ER=<R"HEK@=>@R"AY#??#EF"C;;JAU"YK#TK"=<@"R@A#FE@R"B;<"
Y=>@<"T;EA@<L=>#;E";<"<@HA@$"

!"L###$" s#F"=ER"A?=JJ"R;F"C=<DA$"
���������u
�v��������������������������������
�������������h��� �

!"#$" o<=E#>@"T;HE>@<>;CA";<"A#?#J=<"#E"D#>TK@EA"=ER"X=>K<;;?A$"

!"##$" ICF<=R@R"BJ;;<#EF">K<;HFK;H>U"T;EA#A>#EF";B"?=A;E<G">#J@U"AHTK"=A"C;<T@J=#E";<"><=L@<>#E@U"Y;;RQJ;;D">#J@U"><H@"K=<RY;;RU"A>=#E@R"T;ET<@>@U";<"
R@@C"C#J@"T=<C@>#EF$"

!"###$" l#E#?H?"_̀"B;;>"T@#J#EFA"#E"J#L#EF"=<@=AU"D#>TK@EU"R#E#EF"<;;?AU"K=JJY=GAU"X=>K<;;?A"=ER"X@R<;;?A$"

!"#L$" ICF<=R@R"Y;;RY;<D">K<;HFK;H>"@=TK"HE#>U"AHTK"=A"T<;YE"?;JR#EFU"Y=#EAT;>U"TK=#<"<=#JAU"Y#ER;Y"=ER"R;;<"?;JR#EFA$"

!"L$" ICF<=R@R"T=X#E@><G$"

��������������h�� �

!"#$" k<TK@R"B;<?A"A@C=<=>#EF"<;;?A"=ER"J#L#EF"AC=T@A$"

!"##$" ICF<=R@R"J#FK>"B#M>H<@A"#ETJHR#EF"<@T@AA@R"J#FK>#EF";<"#ER#<@T>"J#FK>#EF$"

!"###$" q=JDQ#E"TJ;A@>A$"

!"#L$" w@>>@R"X=>K>HXA$"

!"L$" ICF<=R@R"X=>K<;;?"=ER"D#>TK@E"K=<RY=<@U"#ETJHR#EF"B=HT@>A"=ER"A#EDA$"

!"L#$" xHJJQA#]@"A>=#EJ@AA"A>@@J"?=\;<"=CCJ#=ET@A"b;L@EU"<=EF@U"<@B<#F@<=>;<U"R#AKY=AK@<U"?#T<;Y=L@";L@Ec$"

!"L##$" f"B;;>"R;;<A"J@=R#EF">;"@=TK"<;;?";B"="HE#>$"

���������y
��������������������z�� �

!"=$" WE>@F<=>@R"Ies"C;<>A"Y#>K#E"=JJ"HE#>A$"

!"X$" kCCQ@E=XJ@R"BHET>#;E=J#>G"B;<"R;;<"J;TDAU"J#FK>#EFU">K@<?;A>=>U"=CCJ#=ET@AU";<";>K@<"@J@T><;E#TA$"

!"T$" kCCQ@E=XJ@R"T;??HE#T=>#;E"X@>Y@@E"<@A#R@E>A"=ER"?=E=F@?@E>"B;<">K@"<@C;<>#EF";B"C<;XJ@?A"<@J=>@R">;"?@TK=E#T=J"B=#JH<@AU"A=B@>G"
T;ET@<EAU";<"E;#A@"#AAH@A$"

!"R$" q#QB#"#E>@<E@>"=TT@AA"C<;L#R@R">;"HA@<A";B"T;??;E"=?@E#>#@A"AHTK"=A"TJHXK;HA@U"C;;JU"Y=JD#EF"><=#JAU"=ER"B#>E@AA"=<@=$"

"

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

x

x

x

x
x

x

x

x

x

x

Exhibit E - Appendix W Checklist
Page 1 of 2



Amenities 
Prairie Modern Apartments amenities include: 

• Open floor plans 

• European-style cabinetry 

• Granite countertops 

• Stainless appliances 

• Designer backsplashes 

• Kitchen islands 

• Top floor clubroom/deck 

• Spacious balconies 

• Secure package deliver 

• Smart technology packages 

• Big/small dog park 

• Bicycle storage 

• Dog wash area 

• Valet trash service 

• Structured parking 

• Electric vehicle charging stations 

• Co-working space 

• Cabana-style pool 

• Outdoor kitchen 

• Zen courtyard / garden space  
 
 
 

Exhibit E - Appendix W Checklist
Page 2 of 2



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10681 Name: SU180504C - 3025 Hardrock Rd

Status:Type: Ordinance Public Hearing

File created: In control:12/7/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:12/14/2020

Title: SU180504C - Specific Use Permit Renewal - 3025 Hardrock Rd (City Council District 1).  Renewal of
a Specific Use Permit for a Trucking and Storage Terminal Facility located at 3025 Hardrock Rd.  Lot
3, Block A, Matt M. Lavail Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-39, within
the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, and generally located north of W Oakdale Rd and east of
Hardrock Rd.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A -Location Map update

Exhibit B 3025a Hardrock - SUP Parking Exhibit

Exhibit C SU180504B Operational Plan 2020

Exhibit D Reason of Additional Parking

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza, Executive Assistant

Title
SU180504C - Specific Use Permit Renewal - 3025 Hardrock Rd (City Council District 1).  Renewal of a
Specific Use Permit for a Trucking and Storage Terminal Facility located at 3025 Hardrock Rd.  Lot 3, Block
A, Matt M. Lavail Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-39, within the SH-161
Corridor Overlay District, and generally located north of W Oakdale Rd and east of Hardrock Rd.

Presenter
Charles Lee, AICP, CBO, Senior Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
SUMMARY:

SU180504C - Specific Use Permit Renewal - 3025 Hardrock Rd (City Council District 1).  Renewal of a
Specific Use Permit for a Trucking and Storage Terminal Facility located at 3025 Hardrock Rd.  Lot 3, Block
A, Matt M. Lavail Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-39, within the SH-161
Corridor Overlay District, and generally located north of W Oakdale Rd and east of Hardrock Rd.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 12/10/2020Page 1 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10681, Version: 1

ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing uses for the surrounding properties.

Direction Zoning Existing Land Use

North Light Industrial (LI) District Undeveloped

South Light Industrial (LI) District Industrial Uses-Trinity Hearth &
Home

East Light Industrial (LI) District SB SH 161 Service Rd

West Light Industrial (LI) District Grand Prairie Auto Pound

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

As required by Ordinance No. 10466-2018 and subsequent Ordinance No. 10824-2020 for Specific Use Permit
1044B the City Council shall conduct a public hearing six-month (6) months after City Council adoption of this
Ordinance to confirm compliance with all applicable codes which shall include, but not be limited to, the
requirements of this SUP Ordinance, the Unified Development Code, The City of Grand Prairie Code of
Ordinances, City adopted building codes, city adopted fire codes and other applicable regulatory requirements
enforced by the state and federal government. The purpose of this request is to conduct the review of said case
for compliance.

CASE HISTORY AND PREVIOUS REVIEWS:

May 15, 2018, City Council adopted Ordinance No. 10466-2018 (Case SU180504) granting Specific Use
Permit-1044 for a Trucking and Storage Terminal Facility subject to certain conditions including compliance
with associated site plan. The other conditions include removal of certain accessory structures and construction
of masonry screening wall along the eastern property boundary. The SUP is subject to standard 12-month
review for compliance.

August 14, 2019, Joint Inspection was held onsite including Code Enforcement, Environmental Services and
Planning Departments. The following violations on the property were cited at that time including non-
compliance with adopted site plan.

1. Excessive truck and trailer storage on-site.
2. Outside storage of batteries.
3. Outside storage of tires without rims.
4. Inoperable Holding yard (5) vehicles / salvaging.
5. Display vehicle for sale on property.
6. Parking on non-improved surface.
7. Emergency exits barred.
8. Small amount of debris outside (pallets) outside.
9. Electrical plug damaged and needs repaired.
10. Sewer cleanout missing cap (combined sewer).
11. Front gates made of corrugated tin (not sure if this was an approved material).

September 17, 2019, City Council adopted Ordinance No. 10707-2019 (Case SU180504A) Amending SUP-
1044A permitting the Trucking and Storage Terminal Facility use to continue and granting operator six months

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 12/10/2020Page 2 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10681, Version: 1

to bring into compliance with all applicable codes and conditions or risk revocation of SUP-1044A.

March 17, 2020, City Council adopted Ordinance No. 10824-2020 (Case SU180504B)
Amending SUP-1044B permitting the Trucking and Storage Facility use to continue, granting an amendment to
the site plan as requested by the applicant including the following:

· Expanding concrete paving allowing for up to 15 trucks and/or tractor trailers onsite.

· Installing concrete bollards along the perimeter of the paved area to prevent storage of trucks and/or
trailers on unpaved areas of the site.

· Installation of remote cameras to monitor operational compliance.

· Provide six (6) month review of operations for compliance.

November 17, 2020, DRC Staff inspected the site to verify installation of cameras, concrete pavement and
bollard completion. DRC continues to monitor the site for compliance as of date.

RECOMMENDATION:

DRC recommends approval of the applicant’s renewal subject to registration, acceptance, and compliance in the
City’s Auto-Related Business Program.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 12/10/2020Page 3 of 3

powered by Legistar™



3010
3025

2937

3001

1200

N 
HW

Y 1
61

 SB
  

HARDROCK RD N 
HW

Y 1
61

 SV
C 

SB
 R

D

CASE LOCATION MAP
Case Number: 

Trucking & Storage Termina ´
Planning and Development

(972) 237-8257
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

EXHIBIT A

chartman
Typewritten Text

dpowell
Text Box
SU180504C



PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y

NO
T 

FO
R 

RE
GU

LA
TO

RY
 A

PP
RO

VA
L,

PE
RM

IT
TI

NG
, O

R 
CO

NS
TR

UC
TI

ON
.

TH
IS

 P
RE

LI
M

IN
AR

Y 
DO

CU
M

EN
T

IS
 R

EL
EA

SE
D 

UN
DE

R 
TH

E 
AU

TH
OR

IT
Y 

OF
JA

M
ES

 R
. G

IL
LI

LA
ND

TE
XA

S 
RE

GI
ST

RA
TI

ON
 N

O.
 8

96
2

ON
 D

AT
E 

IN
DI

CA
TE

D 
BE

LO
W

.

RGA  PROJECT  NUMBER:

DATE:

REVISIONS:

SHEET:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

JE
FF

 C
OO

K 
   

 P
LO

T 
DA

TE
:

2/
25

/2
02

0 
12

:16
 P

M
   

  F
IL

E 
LO

CA
TI

ON
:F

:\
DR

AW
IN

GS
\2

01
8 

PR
OJ

EC
TS

\1
80

52
\1

80
52

 A
1

A1.01

GENERAL SITE INFORMATION:
SITE ADDRESS: 3025 HARDROCK ROAD

GRAND PRAIRIE, TX 75050

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: MATT M LAVAIL
BLK A LT 3 LESS ROW ACS 2.9435

INT201600071960 DD03162016 CO-DC
124000A00300 5CP1247000A

ZONING: LI - LIGHT INDUSTRIAL
ADJACENT ZONING: LI - LIGHT INDUSTRIAL

SITE AREA: 2.9425 ACRES (APP. 128,175 SF)
EXISTING BUILDING AREA (MAIN BUILDING): 13,058 SF
EXISTING PARKING/PAVING AREA: 45,362 SF
NEW PAVING AREA (NET): 8,750 SF
TOTAL IMPERVIOUS: 67,170 SF (52.40%)

PROPOSED USE: WAREHOUSE/OFFICE

PARKING REQUIRED: 19 SPACES
(OFFICE = 1:325 SF X 2,400 SF = 8 SPACES)
(WAREHOUSE = 1:1,000 SF X 10,658 SF = 11 SPACES)

EXISTING PARKING PROVIDED: 27 SPACES

LANDSCAPE INFORMATION:
LOT AREA: 2.9425 ACRES
IMPERVIOUS AREA: 67,170 SF (52.40%)
LANDSCAPED AREA: 61,005 SF (47.60%)

*BUILDING, PARKING, AND LOADING AREAS ARE EXISTING TO REMAIN, U.N.O.

18052

2.25.2020

1 2.25.2020 NEW TRAILER PARKING

Si
te

 P
la

n 
fo

r

Hi
m

al
 L

og
is

tic
s

30
25

 H
ar

dr
oc

k 
Ro

ad
Gr

an
d 

Pr
ai

ri
e,

 T
X 

 7
50

50

N Scale: 1" = 30'-0"

SITE PLAN1

H
AR

D
R

O
C

K 
R

O
AD

SITE

ST
AT

E 
H

IG
H

W
AY

 1
61

 F
R

O
N

TA
G

E 
R

O
AD

N
O

R
TH

 4
65

.1
1'

EAST 272.93'

S 03° 28' 59" E
S 01° 12' 38" W

N 88° 44' 00" W
#SU180504

HIMAL LOGISTICS

H
A

HH
A

H
A

H
A

H
A

H
AA

H
A

H
A

H
A

HHHH
R

D
R

D
R

D
R

D
R

D
R

D
R

D
RR

OO
R

O
R

O
R

O
R

O
C

K
C

KK
CC

K
C

K
C

K
C

KK
RRRRR RRRRR

O
A

O
A

O
A

O
A

O
A

O
A

O
A

O
A

O
ADDDDDDD

STST
ATA

E 
H

I
H

G
H

W
AY

 1
61

 F
R

O
N

TA
G

E 
RR

O
A

O
AD

N
O

R
N

O
R

N
O

R
N

O
RR

TH
 

TH
 

HHH
46

5
46

5
46

55
46

55.
11.1

111
.111

1''

EASEASEAST 2T 72.72 9393'93''

S 000
S 0
SS

3° 
33°3°3°

'8'
28'8'
228'
22

595959595
 5959" EE" E" E" EE

0
S 0
S

001
 

1
 

1° 1° 1121212'
12' 3838

 38383838
W WW"W"W"W

N N 8NN 888°8°8° 8°88°°°° 44'44'444'4444' 00 00000000000000" W" W" W" WWWWW

H
AR

D
R

O
C

K 
R

O
AD

ST
AT

E 
H

IG
H

W
AY

 1
61

 F
R

O
N

TA
G

E 
R

O
AD

N
O

R
TH

 4
65

.1
1'

EAST 272.93'

S 03° 28' 59" E
S 01° 12' 38" W

N 88° 44' 00" W

EXIST. GATE

EXIST. GATE

EXISTING CONCRETE
PAVING

EXISTING 1-STORY STUCCO
OFFICE/WAREHOUSE BUILDING

(13,058 SF)

E
X
IS

T
IN

G
 C

A
R

P
A
R

K
IN

G
2
7 

S
P
A
C
E
S

(6) EXISTING DOCK
DOORS

EXIST. CONC. RAMP TO
DRIVE-IN DOOR

30'X40' ACCESS
EASEMENT

2
5
' B

UI
L
D

IN
G

 S
E
T
B

A
C
K

15' DRAINAGE & UTILITY EASEMENT

2
0

' D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
 &

 U
T
IL

IT
Y
 E

A
S
E
M

E
N
T

100'X100'
DETENTION POND

EASEMENT

EXISTING 8' MASONRY
WALL

EXTENT OF MASONRY
WALL

EXISTING 8' MASONRY
WALL

EXTENT OF MASONRY
WALL

EXISTING WOOD FENCE

EXISTING WOOD FENCE

161'-1"

8
0

'-
8
"

16
'-
0

"

86'-0" 25'-10"

3
5
'-
0

"

2
5
'-
0

"

NEW CONCRETE PAVING
(HATCHED AREA= APP. 15,000
SF) FOR (15) TRAILER PARKING

SPACES

9 
S
P
A
C
E
S
 I
N

10
8
'-
0

"

183'-6"

6
 S

P
A
C
E
S
 I
N

72
'-
0

"

EXHIBIT B - SITE PLAN 
     PAGE 1 OF 1



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10682 Name: SU191101A - Kia Auto Sales

Status:Type: Ordinance Public Hearing

File created: In control:12/7/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:12/14/2020

Title: SU191101A - Specific Use Permit Renewal - Kia Auto Sales (City Council District 5).  Renew a
Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Internet Auto Sales and amend the SUP to add Major Auto Repair.  Lot
446R of Burbank Gardens Unit 2, zoned Commercial (C), within the Central Business District No. 4,
and addressed as 3118 E Main St.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A SU191101A Location Map

Exhibit B SU191101A Renewal Site Plan 3118 E. Main St Kia Auto

Exhibit C SU191101A New Operational Plan

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Monica Espinoza, Executive Assistant

Title

SU191101A - Specific Use Permit Renewal - Kia Auto Sales (City Council District 5).  Renew a Specific Use
Permit (SUP) for Internet Auto Sales and amend the SUP to add Major Auto Repair.  Lot 446R of Burbank
Gardens Unit 2, zoned Commercial (C), within the Central Business District No. 4, and addressed as 3118 E

Main St.

Presenter

Charles Lee, AICP, CBO, Senior Planner

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

SUMMARY:

SU191101A - Specific Use Permit Renewal - Kia Auto Sales (City Council District 5).  Renew a Specific Use
Permit (SUP) for Internet Auto Sales and amend the SUP to add Major Auto Repair.  Lot 446Rof Burbank
Gardens Unit 2, zoned Commercial (C), within the Central Business District No. 4, and addressed as 3118 E

Main St.

PURPOSE OF THE REQUEST:

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 12/10/2020Page 1 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10682, Version: 1

The purpose for this request is to consider a twelve (12)-month review and renewal of Specific Use Permit-
1083 for compliance with the applicable codes and conditions as required by Ordinance No. 10770-2019.
During this review, the applicant requests consideration to amend SUP-1083 allowing for Major Auto Repair
use component onsite replacing the approved private vehicle maintenance’s space.

In November 19, 2019, City Council granted Specific Use Permit (SUP-1083) for an Internet Auto Sales and
Private Vehicle Maintenance use on a commercial site. The ordinance requires twelve (12)-month review for
compliance with the conditions of SUP-1083. The .36-acre property is zoned Commercial (C) District and is
located within the Central Business District (CDB) Section 4. The property is generally located at the northeast
corner of E. Main Street and NE 32nd Street, specifically addressed at 3118 E. Main Street. The 7,000 square
foot building was previously used as a wood shop. The applicant has successfully repurposed the building and
site into an internet automotive sales and private vehicle maintenance facility.

ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS:

The following table summarizes the zoning designations and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Direction Zoning Existing Land Use

North Commercial (C) District Vacant

East Commercial (C) District Long’s Motorcycle Shop

West Commercial (C) District Used Auto Sales

South Light Industrial (LI) District Industrial Outdoor Storage Use

Primary access to the site shall be from an existing commercial drive along E. Main Street. A private concrete
drive was recently constructed to serve as vehicle inventory and provide access to the rear of property.

SUP-1083 RENEWAL CONSIDERATION:

The current operator of the business is registered with the city’s Auto-Related Business (ARB) program and has
been in good-standing with no code and/or environmental notices, citations or violations for non-compliance.
Ordinance No. 10770-2019 requires the applicant provide certain improvements (within 12-months) to the
building’s front elevation facing the street and install landscape elements as a complimentary feature visible
from the street. The applicant has installed unique awnings above the front windows and landscape planters
along the front of the building. The operator/applicant complies with applicable codes and ARB regulations
and the adopted SUP-1083 conditions.

SUP-1083 REQUIREMENTS AND REQUEST TO AMEND:

SUP-1083 limits the Internet Auto Sales use to inside the building. The SUP allows for auto storage inventory
on the eastern and rear portion of the site, with no vehicles for sale visible from the public view. Private
Vehicle Maintenance is allowed for auto make-ready and other minor repairs in conditioning vehicles for resale.

Major Auto Repair uses are not permitted by-right within the Commercial zoning districts per Article 4,
“Permissible Uses” of the Unified Development Code, Article 4, Section 15, ‘Use Charts’. As noted on the
applicant’s operational plan; the proposed major auto repair function shall be limited to the 1,636 SF lease
space/shop and restricted to the following auto-related repairs:

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 12/10/2020Page 2 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10682, Version: 1

· Tune-ups

· Electrical Work

· Front-end repair including shocks, struts, control arms.

· Engine Repair

PARKING AND OVERALL FUNCTIONS:

Adequate customer parking is being provided up front and to the east of the building (12 spaces). Employee
and customer completed vehicle repair spaces (4 spaces) are located towards the rear of the facility. The
remodel of the building shall provide for one overhead roll-up doors located on the front of the facility and one
on the rear (used for proposed repair shop). The remaining elements and functions of the facility shall provide
for an interior showroom, customer waiting areas, and offices and mechanic workspace towards the rear of the
building.

General Operations:
According to the Operational Plan and discussion with the applicant, the single tenant facility will be open
Monday through Saturday from 11:00 AM to 6:00 PM. Internet Auto Sale requirements restricts outdoor auto
inventory displays. Inventory must be displayed virtually. The applicant proposes to maintain interior auto
inventory with an interior repair shop in lieu of the private vehicle maintenance component of the operation.

APPLICABLE DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS:

This site shall conform to the Auto-Related Business (ARB) Standards.  In conjunction with the ARB standards,
staff recommends no outside repair and/or storage of parts and materials.  Parking of vehicles shall be on
designated areas.

STAFF COMMENTS:

During the 12-months in operation there has been no citations and/or notices of violations from Code and
Environmental Health Departments and the applicant’s is registered with the City ARB program in good
standing.

The applicant has provided the required improvements to the site (landscape planters) and building’s facade
(glass canopies) per the adopted ordinance.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends approval of the Specific Use Permit with the following conditions:

· Inventory cars be kept inside the building or within a gated area behind the Main Street-facing side of
the building, and not be advertised as ‘For Sale’ in any manner that may attract drive-by customers.
Such advertising shall include, but not be limited to, attention-attracting devices such as banners, flags,
streamers, balloons, adhesive letters, numbers, or graphics on bodywork or windows, paint, chalk, or
plastic or cardboard sheeting used for advertising purposes. This prohibition includes the use of such
devices on the premises and on the vehicles. The applicant is allowed one permitted permanent sign
covering no more than 15% of the Main Street-facing facade, with no changeable copy or digital
signage.

· Limit on-site mechanic work to the inside of the building and that such work be limited to vehicles
registered to the operator.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 12/10/2020Page 3 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10682, Version: 1

· Any violation of the SUP or the ARB ordinance shall be subject the operator to revocation proceedings.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 12/10/2020Page 4 of 4

powered by Legistar™



Ne
 31

st 
St

E Main St

Ne
 32

nd
 St

Trible Dr

Purcell St

Ne
 32

nd
 St

´
Development Services

(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand PrairieCASE LOCATION MAP
SU191101A - SUP Renewal
Kia Auto Sales at 3118 E. Main St.

EXHIBIT A - LOCATION MAP 
        PAGE 1 OF 1



X X

NORTH

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X X X X X X X X X X X X X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

XXXXX

NORTH

PROPOSED
SITE PLAN

LEGEND
B.L. - BUILDING LINE
D.E. - DRAINAGE EASEMENT
P.A.E. - PEDESTRIAN ACCESS EASEMENT
S.S.E. - SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT
T.E. - TRANSFORMER EASEMENT
U.E. - UTILITY EASEMENT
W.M.E. - WALL MAINT. EASEMENT
M.E. - MAINTENANCE EASEMENT
V.E.- VISIBILITY EASEMENT

- DRAINAGE FLOW

- PROPOSED FENCE

- NON PARKING

- REQUIRED TREE PLANTING

- REQUIRED BUSH - NEW AGGREGATE CONCRETE

SCALE: 1' = 20'-0"

- PARKING CAR FLOW

EXHIBIT B - SITE EXHIBIT 
      PAGE 1 OF 1



EXHIBIT C - UPDATED OPERATIONAL PLAN 
                  PAGE 1 OF 1


	legistar.com
	Meeting Agenda
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10675
	Microsoft Word - 11-23-2020.docx
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10677
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8997845&GUID=69CCCD18-014E-43E8-A4A3-AC13BA8CBD13
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=9004062&GUID=D4A6B6A3-142D-42B8-BB29-870E59995D53
	1
	2

	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10678
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8997847&GUID=1CE56D38-3DCE-4DCD-8A35-591A2EDF5C02
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=9004061&GUID=D71B19F2-4D23-4B24-B48F-9A8F18FB41B5
	1
	2

	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10683
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10679
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8999655&GUID=AB11AC61-1F59-4878-BBB2-DB7973393C29
	Layout1
	2700 Avenue K - Landscape Plan_8-10.pdf
	2700 Avenue K - Tree Protection  Removal_6-7.pdf
	C:\Users\driver\Pictures\Viz Library\Textures\wood\2020-11-02  ext.pdf
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10680
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8997849&GUID=5F0CD35A-4F06-4F1C-BA7B-33B840F7314C
	OVERALL DIMENSIONAL CONTROL PLAN
	Sheets and Views
	OVERALL DIMENSIONAL CONTROL PLAN


	L1.01
	Sheets and Views
	L1.01


	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=9004066&GUID=53C77869-63DA-455D-9600-2E50FFD319B6
	20.12.02_PM_1_High Res
	20.12.02_PM_2_High Res
	20.12.02_PM_3_High Res
	20.12.02_PM_4_High Res

	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8997851&GUID=5745C77B-DB75-4B04-A3A7-361E777B2E7E
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10681
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8999717&GUID=03FF1392-339E-49D5-8D41-D9CA606CBA3E
	A1.01
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10682
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8999880&GUID=F59ECBFE-D229-40E7-AE22-9D53BB7EE2EF
	Existing
	New Operational Plan.pdf




